
TO THE CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE 
PLANNING COMMITTEE

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Planning Committee to be held on Tuesday, 
23 February 2021 at 7.00 pm. The meeting will be held virtually and webcast live through the 
Council’s website in accordance with the Coronavirus Act 2020 and The Local Authorities and 
Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel 
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 (S.I.2020 No. 392).

The agenda for the meeting is set out below.

RAY MORGAN
Chief Executive

NOTE:  Filming Council Meetings

Please note the meeting will be filmed and will be broadcast live and subsequently as an archive on the 
Council’s website (www.woking.gov.uk).  The images and sound recording will also be used for training 
purposes within the Council.  By joining the meeting remotely you are consenting to being filmed.

AGENDA
PART I - PRESS AND PUBLIC PRESENT

1. Minutes 
To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 2 February 2021 
as published.

2. Apologies for Absence 
3. Declarations of Interest 

(i) To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary and other interests from 
Members in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting.

(ii) In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, any Member who is a 
Council- appointed Director of a Thameswey Group company will declare a non-
pecuniary interest in any item involving that Thameswey Group company. The 
interest will not prevent the Member from participating in the consideration of that 
item.

(iii) In accordance with the Officer Procedure Rules, any Officer who is a Council- 
appointed Director of a Thameswey Group company will declare an interest in 
any item involving that Thameswey Group company. The interest will not prevent 
the Officer from advising the Committee on that item.

Public Document Pack



4. Urgent Business 
To consider any business that the Chairman rules may be dealt with under Section 100B(4) 
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Matters for Determination

5. Planning and Enforcement Appeals (Pages 5 - 6)

6. Planning Applications (Pages 7 - 10)

Section A - Applications for Public Speaking
There are no applications under this section.

Section B - Application reports to be introduced by Officers

6a. 2020/0894  Qaro, Pyrford Heath, Pyrford, Woking  (Pages 15 - 40)
6b. 2017/1307  Part of Five Acres and land to south of Brookwood Lye Road, Woking  

(Pages 41 - 98)
6c. 2020/1037  Fairfield, Sun Hill, Hook Heath, Woking  (Pages 99 - 124)
6d. 2020/1136  G4S Industrial Building, Monument Way West, Woking  (Pages 125 - 140)
6e. 2020/1095  23 Oriental Road, Woking  (Pages 141 - 160)
6f. COND/20/0137  Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking  (Pages 161 - 172)
6g. COND/20/0139  Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking  (Pages 173 - 182)
6h. COND/20/0169  Land At Bishop David Brown School, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking  

(Pages 183 - 196)
6i. COND/19/0185  Land At Bishop David Brown School, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking  

(Pages 197 - 206)
6j. COND/20/0136  Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking  (Pages 207 - 218)
6k. TREE/2021/8012  41 Strathcona Gardens, Knaphill, Woking  (Pages 219 - 228)

Section C - Application Reports not to be introduced by officers unless requested by a 
Member of the Committee

There are no applications under this section.

AGENDA ENDS

Date Published - 15 February 2021

For further information regarding this agenda and 
arrangements for the meeting, please contact Becky 
Capon on 01483 743011 or email 
becky.capon@woking.gov.uk 







PLANNING COMMITTEE – 23 FEBRUARY 2021

PLANNING AND ENFORCEMENT APPEALS

The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE: 
  That the report be noted.

The Committee has authority to determine the above recommendation.

Background Papers:
Planning Inspectorate Reports

Reporting Person:
Peter Bryant, Director of Legal and Democratic Services

Date Published:
15 February 2021

APPEALS LODGED

2020/0847
Application for erection of single storey rear 
extension, formation of rear dormer window and 
alterations to rear roof form and rear fenestration 
at Little Gables, Scotts Grove Road, Chobham 
Woking, GU24 8DX.

Refused by Delegated Authority
26 November 2020.
Appeal Lodged
28 January 2021.

2019/1176
Application for redevelopment of site following 
demolition of all existing buildings and structures to 
provide replacement stadium with ancillary facilities 
including flexible retail, hospitality and community 
spaces, independent retail floorspace (Classes 
A1/A2/A3) and medical centre (Class D1) and 
vehicle parking plus residential accommodation 
comprising of 1,048 dwellings (Class C3) within 5 
buildings of varying heights of between 3 and 11 
storeys (plus lower ground floor and partial 
basement levels) on the south and west sides of the 
site together with hard and soft landscaping, 
highway works, vehicle parking, bin storage, cycle 
storage, plant and other ancillary works including 
ancillary structures and fencing/gates and provision 
of detached residential concierge building 
(Environmental Statement submitted) at Land South 
Of Kingfield Road And East Of Westfield Avenue 
Westfield Avenue Westfield Woking Surrey GU22 
9PF.

Refused by Planning Committee
23 June 2020.
Appeal Lodged
2 February 2021.

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



2019/1177
Application for redevelopment of site following 
demolition of existing building to provide health club 
building (Class D2) also incorporating external 
swimming pool, spa garden, terrace and tennis 
courts (including tennis court airdomes), provision of 
36 dwelling houses (Class C3) up to a maximum of 
3 storeys in height, vehicle parking, hard and soft 
landscaping, ancillary works including ancillary 
structures and fencing/gates and new vehicular 
access from existing road serving Hoe Valley School 
(Environmental Statement submitted) at Land South 
Of Hoe Valley School And East Of Railway Tracks 
Egley Road Woking Surrey GU22 0NH.

Refused by Planning Committee
23 June 2020.
Appeal Lodged
2 February 2021.

2020/0788
Application for proposed first floor rear extension 
with roof alterations and pitched roof addition to 
detached garage. (Amendment to PLAN/2019/1099) 
at 22 Park Road, Woking, Surrey, GU22 7BW.

Refused by Delegated Authority
18 November 2020.
Appeal Lodged
2 February 2021.

2020/0881
Application for proposed hip to gable and dormer loft 
conversion at Little Orchard, Robin Hood Lane, 
Sutton Green, Guildford Surrey GU4 7QG.

Refused by Delegated Authority
9 December 2020.
Appeal Lodged
12 February 2021.

APPEAL DECISION

2016/0834
Application for demolition of existing buildings and 
erection of a six storey building comprising 46x 
self-contained flats (26x one bed & 20x two bed), 
including 30x off-street parking places at basement 
level and associated landscaping at 7 York Road, 
Woking, Surrey, GU22 7XH.

Approved by Planning Committee 
on 26 September 2017 subject to 
completion of a Section 106 
Agreement. Permission issued on 
14 July 2020. Application for 
Judicial Review dismissed by 
Planning Court on 3 February 2021. 
Costs awarded to the Council. 

Page 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA

PLANNING APPLICATIONS AS AT 23RD FEBRUARY 2021

This report contains applications which either fall outside the existing scheme of 
delegated powers or which have been brought to the Committee at the request of a 
Member or Members in accordance with the agreed procedure (M10/TP 7.4.92/749).  
These applications are for determination by the Committee.

This report is divided into three sections.  The applications contained in Sections A & B 
will be individually introduced in accordance with the established practice.  Applications 
in Section C will be taken in order but will not be the subject of an Officer’s presentation 
unless requested by any Member.

The committee has authority to determine the recommendations contained within the 
following reports.Thje

Key to Ward Codes:

BWB  =  Byfleet and West Byfleet           C    =  Canalside
GP     =  Goldsworth Park HE  =  Heathlands
HO    =   Horsell HV  =  Hoe Valley
KNA  =   Knaphill MH  =  Mount Hermon
PY    =   Pyrford SJS =  St. Johns

The committee has the authority to determine the recommendations contained 
within the following reports.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6





Major Applications Index to Planning Committee
23 February 2021

ITEM LOCATION APP. NO. REC WARD

0006A Qaro, Pyrford Heath, Pyrford, Woking, PLAN/2020/0894 APRPRA PY
Surrey, GU22 8SR

0006B Part Of Five Acres And Land To South PLAN/2017/1307 LEGAL HE
Of Brookwood Lye Road, Woking, 
Surrey, GU24 0HD, 

0006C Fairfield, Sun Hill, Hook Heath, Woking, PLAN/2020/1037 PER HE
 Surrey, GU22 0QL

0006D Plot 2 G4S Industrial Building, PLAN/2020/1136 NRQPRA C
Monument Way West, Woking, Surrey, 
GU21 5EN, 

0006E 23 Oriental Road, Woking, Surrey, PLAN/2020/1095 PER MH
GU22 7AH

0006F Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, COND/2020/0137 PER C
Sheerwater, Woking, Surrey

0006G Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, COND/2020/0139 PER C
Sheerwater, Woking, Surrey

0006H Land At Bishop David Brown School, COND/2020/0169 PER C
Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking, 
Surrey, , 

0006I Land At Bishop David Brown School, COND/2019/0185 PER C
Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking, 
Surrey, , 

0006J Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, COND/2020/0136 PER C
Sheerwater, Woking, Surrey

0006K 41 Strathcona Gardens, Knaphill, TREE/2021/8012 PER KNA
Woking, Surrey, GU21 2AY

 
SECTION B - A - K

 
    PER- Grant Planning Permission

LEGAL - Grant Planning Permission Subject To Compliance Of A Legal Agreement
     NRQPRA – Prior Approval Not Required
     APRPRA – Prior Approval Approved

Page 9





SECTION A

APPLICATIONS ON WHICH

 PUBLIC ARE ELIGIBLE

 TO SPEAK

(Note:  Ordnance Survey Extracts appended to the reports are for locational 
purposes only and may not include all current developments either major or 

minor within the site or the area generally)

 

Page 11





SECTION B

APPLICATIONS WHICH WILL BE

THE SUBJECT OF A PRESENTATION

BY OFFICERS

(Note:  Ordnance Survey Extracts appended to the reports are for locational 
purposes only and may not include all current developments either major or 

minor within the site or area generally)

Page 13





Qaro, Pyrford Heath, 
Pyrford, Woking.

PLAN/2020/0894
Prior notification for enlargement of a dwellinghouse by construction of an additional storey, 

with proposed ridge height of 8.2m (amended description to include height)

Page 15

Agenda Item 6a





Comments

Woking Borough Council
Civic Offices
Gloucester Square
Woking, Surrey GU21 6YL

Not Set

Planning

2020/0894

Qaro, Pyrford Heath

0 10 20 30 405
Metres

±
SCALE 1:1,250

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100025452. This product is produced in part from PAF and multiple 
residence data which is owned by Royal Mail Group Limited and / or Royal Mail Group PLC.  All Rights Reserved, Licence no. 100025452.

Page 17





12 JANUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

 

 
6A PLAN/2020/0894       WARD: Pyrford 
 
LOCATION:  Qaro, Pyrford Heath,  Pyrford, Woking  GU22 8SR 
 
PROPOSAL: Prior notification for enlargement of a dwellinghouse by construction of an 
additional storey, with proposed ridge height of 8.2m (amended description to include height) 
 
APPLICANT: Mr O Alongi OFFICER:   Bronwen Chinien 
 

 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE  
 
The application was brought to Committee at the request of Councillor Graham Chrystie and discussed 
on 12 January 2021, during which a point of discussion arose which could not be resolved during the 
meeting. The application was deferred so that there could be clarification of the interpretation of 
legislation in relation to the application.  A review has since been conducted and this report has been 
duly updated. 
 
 
PLANNING STATUS 
 

 Urban Area 

 Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (TBH SPA) Zone B (400m-5km) 

 Pyrford Neighbourhood Area 

 Tree Preservation Order 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Prior approval is required and is given 
[Officer note: it is considered, following officer review, that the proposal DOES comply with all relevant 
aspects of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order (2015) (as 
amended). In particular, the additional storey is constructed on “the principal part of the dwellinghouse” 
(as defined), so criterion (i) does not prevent the proposal from being permitted development [Note: 
criterion (i) provides “any additional storey is constructed other than on the principal part of the 
dwellinghouse.”]] 
 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
Qaro is a bungalow with timber and stone clad elevations. Qaro is positioned within a staggered line of 
three bungalows (Summerley and Melissa on either side).  
[Officer note: the wider character of the area is not described because it is not relevant to this prior 
approval. The site is within an Area Tree Preservation Order, but this is also not relevant to the 
determination of the current application] 
 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 

Planning app. 
reference 

Description Decision Date 

16324 Detached dwelling and garage (outline) Permitted 1963 

16721 Bungalow Permitted 26.06.1963 

16975 Garage Permitted 18.07.1963 

PLAN/1989/1021 Erection of a detached bungalow with integral double 
garage 

Refused 15.12.1989 

PLAN/1998/1285 Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of new Permitted 05.03.1999 Page 19



12 JANUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

 

(not 
implemented) 

chalet style house  

PLAN/1999/0444 
(not 
implemented) 

Full planning application for the erection of an 
additional 1 no x pitched dormer window above the 
garage of the proposed dwelling (variation to planning 
permission 98/1285 for the erection of a detached 
dwelling following the demolition of the existing 
bungalow). 

Permitted 27.05.1999 

PLAN/1999/1204 
(not 
implemented) 

Details pursuant to condition 2 (Materials) of planning 
permission 99/0444. 

Permitted 25.11.1999 

PLAN/2002/0860 
(not 
implemented) 

Demolition of existing bungalow, and erection of a 
new detached bungalow with integral garage 

Permitted 11.09.2002 

PLAN/2002/0861 Demolition of existing bungalow, and erection of a 
new detached bungalow with integral garage. (A  
handed version of planning application 
Plan/2002/0860). 

Refused 11.09.2002 

PLAN/2020/0338 Insertion of front, side and rear dormers and 1No side 
rooflight. Increase in ridge and eaves height of front 
gable projection and ground floor infill extension.  
Alterations to external materials, replacement 
windows and demolition of existing garage. 

Withdrawn*  

PLAN/2020/0339 Proposed addition of first floor to existing bungalow to 
create two storey dwelling. Ground floor infill 
extension, associated internal alterations, alterations 
to fenestration and external materials and demolition 
of existing garage. 

Withdrawn*  

PLAN/2020/0894 Prior notification for enlargement of a dwellinghouse 
by construction of an additional storey, with maximum 
height of proposed house to be 8.2m (2.4m above the 
height of the roof of the existing house). 

Pending 
consideration 

 

Permitted development rights have not been withdrawn in the planning history of the site. 
 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
The proposal is a Prior Approval application for the enlargement of a dwellinghouse by construction of an 
additional storey, under Class AA(b), Part 1, Schedule 2 of The Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order (2015) (as amended). Prior approval is sought for the enlargement of a 
dwellinghouse by construction of an additional storey, with proposed overall height of 8.2m.  The 
application proposes to extend upwards by one storey, on the footprint of the existing house. Similar 
materials as seen on the existing house are proposed for the elevations. 
 
The proposal also includes alterations to the fenestration on the front and side elevations, by way of 
relocating the existing front from the side the front elevation and narrowing the existing front (living room) 
window.  
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
None required. 
 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 

1. The statutory requirement was to notify the properties of Summerley, Melissa and Hunters Moon 
as the adjoining owners/occupiers.  Due to the planning history, a larger number of neighbours 

Page 20



12 JANUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

 

were notified of the proposal.  The neighbours were re-consulted (16.11.2020) informing the 
maximum height of the proposed additional storey.  

 
2. 19 representations (all objections) were received from neighbouring properties and the wider 

community, outlining a variety of concerns. Given consideration of the proposed development 
against the criteria and conditions of the GDPO Class AA, many of these cannot be taken into 
account as they are concerning matters which are beyond the scope of this decision.  

 
3. A summary of neighbour representations and the planning officer’s opinion on these is set out 

below: 
 

Neighbour representation Within scope 
of Class AA? 

Planning officer 
comment 

Harm to the character of the street and setting of 
surrounding bungalows due to different height 
 

No Visual/character issues are 
limited to assessment of 
the impact on the external 
appearance of the 
dwellinghouse – see 
condition 3(a)(ii) 

Contrary to policies of Pyrford Neighbourhood Plan 
 

Partly Considered in condition 
3(a)(i) and (ii) 

Disproportionate use of timber boarding and copper 
slate external materials 
 

Yes Considered in condition 
3(a)(ii) 

Loss of light and outlook 
 

Yes Considered in condition 
3(a)(i) 

Overbearing impact 
 

Yes Considered in condition 
3(a)(i) 

Loss of privacy from overlooking (from rear 
windows at 1st floor level into neighbouring 
gardens) 

Yes Considered in condition 
3(a)(i) 

Approval would set a precedent for other 
bungalows to do the same 

No N/A 

Increased traffic from a large house 
 

No N/A 

Objection to approach taken by applicant 
(withdrawing previous application and submitting 
new / similar proposal via a different route) 
 

No The application must be 
determined on its own 
merits with regard to 
applicable legislation 

History and speculation over legal action in relation 
to a restrictive covenant on the property 

No This is separate from the 
planning system.  

Mixture of housing sizes is needed in the 
community and bungalows should be retained as 
such, for people with restricted mobility 

No N/A 

Parking issues: Lack of parking shown on plans, 
current parking arrangements at the site involve 
parking on the lawn 
  
 

No N/A 

Trees have been removed in the front garden and 
the area is within a Tree Preservation area 
 

No Beyond the scope of Class 
AA, although the applicant 
has referred to tree 
protection fencing in 
Construction Management 
Plan 

Various environmental issues and sustainability 
opportunities raised by Woking Environmental 
Action group  

No The determination of this 
application is based on 
relevant legislation and Page 21



12 JANUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

 

adopted policies.  The 
council will respond 
separately to this 
representation. 
 

  
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES 
 

1. The local planning authority must, when determining an application for prior approval, have regard 
to the National Planning Policy Framework, so far as relevant to the subject matter of the prior 
approval, as if the application were a planning application.   

 
2. As such, the following policies are relevant, but only so far as is relevant to the subject matter of 

the prior approval:  
 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) 
 
Woking Borough Core Strategy (2012): 

 CS21 – Design 
 
Pyrford Neighbourhood Plan: 

 BE1(a)   
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 

 Woking Design (2015) 

 Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and Daylight (2008) 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL): 
The proposed increase in floor area is 116m2 which exceeds 100m² and is consequently liable for 
CIL of £18,626.92 (this figure is subject to indexation). 

 
 
PLANNING ISSUES 
 

1. The proposal is a Prior Approval application for enlargement of a dwellinghouse by construction of 
an additional storey, under Class AA(b), Part 1, Schedule 2 of The Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order (2015) (as amended).  

 
2. The proposal has been assessed in accordance with Class AA  as set out below: 

 
Class AA - enlargement of a dwellinghouse by construction of additional storeys 

Permitted development 
  

AA.  The enlargement of a dwellinghouse consisting of the 
construction of—  
(a) up to two additional storeys, where the existing dwellinghouse 
consists of two or more storeys; or 
(b) one additional storey, where the existing dwellinghouse consists of 
one storey, immediately above the topmost storey of the 
dwellinghouse, together with any engineering operations reasonably 
necessary for the purpose of that construction.  

 

The application is to 
be considered under 
Class AA(b). 

 
 

Development not permitted 

AA.1.  Development is not permitted by Class AA if—  

  Criteria Comply / Fail? Page 22



12 JANUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

 

(a) 
permission to use the dwellinghouse as a dwellinghouse has been 
granted only by virtue of Class M, N, O, P, PA or Q of Part 3 of 
this Schedule (changes of use); 
 

Complies 

(b) 
the dwellinghouse is located on— 
(i)article 2(3) land; or 
(ii)a site of special scientific interest; 
 

Complies  
(not within 
Conservation Area or 
any other article 2(3) 
land or SSSI). 

(c) the dwellinghouse was constructed before 1st July 1948 or after 
28th October 2018 

Complies 
(dwelling constructed 
in 1960’s) 

(d) the existing dwellinghouse has been enlarged by the addition of 
one or more storeys above the original dwellinghouse, whether in 
reliance on the permission granted by Class AA or otherwise 

Complies  
(no previous 
enlargement) 

(e) following the development the height of the highest part of the roof 
of the dwellinghouse would exceed 18 metres; 

Complies  
(height would be 8.2m) 

(f) following the development the height of the highest part of the roof 
of the dwellinghouse would exceed the height of the highest part 
of the roof of the existing dwellinghouse by more than— 

(i)         3.5 metres, where the existing dwellinghouse consists 
of one storey; or 

(ii) 7 metres, where the existing dwellinghouse consists of 
more than one storey; 

 

Complies  
(increase would be  
2.4m) 

(g) the dwellinghouse is not detached and following the development 
the height of the highest part of its roof would exceed by more 
than 3.5 metres— 
(i)in the case of a semi-detached house, the height of the highest 
part of the roof of the building with which it shares a party wall (or, 
as the case may be, which has a main wall adjoining its main 
wall); or 
(ii)in the case of a terrace house, the height of the highest part of 
the roof of every other building in the row in which it is situated; 
 

Not applicable 
(dwellinghouse is 
detached) 

(h) the floor to ceiling height of any additional storey, measured 
internally, would exceed the lower of— 
(i)3 metres; or 
(ii)the floor to ceiling height, measured internally, of any storey of 
the principal part of the existing dwellinghouse; 
 

Complies  
(the existing ground 
floor to ceiling height is 
2.45m, the proposed 
floor to ceiling height 
would be 2.3m) 

(i) any additional storey is constructed other than on the principal 
part of the dwellinghouse; 

Complies 
(The house is L-
shaped with all areas 
being single storey 
with an equal eaves 
height and containing 
habitable 
accommodation. As 
such, this L-shaped 
footprint is considered 
to constitute the 
‘principal part of the 
dwellinghouse’ and the 
proposed additional 
storey would be built 
on this part of the 
building) Page 23



12 JANUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

 

(j) the development would include the provision of visible support 
structures on or attached to the exterior of the dwellinghouse upon 
completion of the development; or 

Complies 
(no visible structures 
proposed) 

(k) the development would include any engineering operations other 
than works within the curtilage of the dwellinghouse to strengthen 
its existing walls or existing foundations. 

Complies  
(Applicant’s 
Preliminary 
Construction 
Management Plan 
states that the 
demolition activities 
will be limited to the 
removal of the existing 
roof) 

 
 

Conditions 

AA.2.—(1) Development is permitted by Class AA subject to the conditions set out in sub-

paragraphs (2) and (3).  

(2) The conditions in this sub-paragraph are as follows—  

(a) the materials used in any exterior work must be of a similar 
appearance to those used in the construction of the exterior of the 
existing dwellinghouse; 

Complies  
(timber and stone 
cladding of a similar 
appearance to existing 
house are proposed) 

(b) the development must not include a window in any wall or roof 
slope forming a side elevation of the dwelling house; 

Complies 

(c) the roof pitch of the principal part of the dwellinghouse following 
the development must be the same as the roof pitch of the 
existing dwellinghouse; and 

Complies 

(d) following the development, the dwellinghouse must be used as a 
dwellinghouse within the meaning of Class C3 of the Schedule to 
the Use Classes Order and for no other purpose, except to the 
extent that the other purpose is ancillary to the primary use as a 
dwellinghouse. 

Complies 

 

  (3) The conditions in this sub-paragraph are as follows—  

(a) before beginning the development, the developer must apply to 
the local planning authority for prior approval as to— 
(i)impact on the amenity of any adjoining premises including 
overlooking, privacy and the loss of light; 
(ii)the external appearance of the dwellinghouse, including the 
design and architectural features of— 

(aa)the principal elevation of the dwellinghouse, and 
(bb)any side elevation of the dwellinghouse that fronts a 

highway; 
(iii)air traffic and defence asset impacts of the development; and 
(iv)whether, as a result of the siting of the dwellinghouse, the 
development will impact on a protected view identified in the 
Directions Relating to Protected Vistas dated 15th March 2012(1) 
issued by the Secretary of State; 
 

(i) Prior approval is 
given 

(ii)  Prior approval is 
given 

(iii)  
See assessment below 
in regard to amenity of 
adjoining premises and 
external appearance of 
the house 
 
(iii) Not applicable 
(iv)Not applicable  

(b) before beginning the development, the developer must provide 
the local planning authority with a report for the management of 
the construction of the development, which sets out the proposed 
development hours of operation and how any adverse impact of 
noise, dust, vibration and traffic on adjoining owners or occupiers 

Report provided 

Page 24

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/755/article/3/made#f00003


12 JANUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

 

will be mitigated; 

(c) the development must be completed within a period of 3 years 
starting with the date prior approval is granted; 

Condition attached 

(d) the developer must notify the local planning authority of the 
completion of the development as soon as reasonably practicable 
after completion; and 

Condition attached 

(e) that notification must be in writing and include— 
(i)the name of the developer; 
(ii)the address of the dwellinghouse; and 
(iii)the date of completion. 

Condition attached 

 

Condition 3(a) – further notes: 

 The council’s ‘Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and Daylight SPD (2008) sets out guidance on achieving 
suitable outlook, amenity, privacy and daylight in new residential development whilst 
safeguarding those attributes of adjoining residential areas. 

 The adjoining premises within the scope of this assessment are Summerley, Melissa and 
Hunter’s Moon. 

 The planning considerations within the scope of this assessment are overlooking/loss of privacy, 
loss of light and overbearing impact and the design and architectural features of the principal 
elevation.  

(i)Assessment of the 
impact on amenity of 
adjoining premises 
including 
overlooking, privacy 
and the loss of light: 
 

Complies, based on the following assessment: 
 
Summerley  
A bungalow located to the east of host dwelling, set forward of the front 
and rear elevations of Qaro.  

 Loss of privacy: no windows in Qaro would look towards the 
windows of Summerley. Views of Summerley’s garden from Qaro’s 
proposed 1st floor rear bedrooms would be of a conventional 
arrangement for a suburban layout. 

 Loss of light and overbearing impact: the additional storey would 
project beyond the rear elevation of Summerley by 5.5m. However 
due to the two properties having a gap of 4m between side 
elevations, this would not breach a 45 degree angle in either plan 
and/or elevation form with the nearest rear window of Summerley. 
Therefore the proposal complies with the SPD in respect of 
maintaining an acceptable level of interior natural light within this 
neighbouring dwelling. On a similar basis the additional first floor 
would not be overbearing; due to the 4m gap between the side 
elevations, whilst the flank wall will be clearly visible from the 
garden and rear elevation windows of Summerley, it would not fail 
the ‘45 degree’ test (which requires breaching in BOTH elevational 
and plan forms – SPD). 

Melissa 
A bungalow located to the west, set behind the front and rear elevations of 
Qaro.  

 Loss of privacy: no windows in Qaro would look towards the 
windows of Melissa and no loss of privacy to garden. 

 Loss of light and overbearing impact: the additional storey would not 
project beyond the rear elevation of Melissa and with regards to 
the front elevation, it would not breach a 45 degree angle in plan 
and elevation form with the front windows and therefore complies 
with the SPD and there would be no harmful loss of light of 
overbearing impact. 

 
Hunters Moon  
A bungalow located to the south west of Qaro. 

 Loss of privacy: The dwelling has a ground floor bedroom window 
19m from the closest proposed first floor window of Qaro Page 25



12 JANUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

 

(according to PLAN/2006/1173 for Hunters Moon). This window is 
not directly facing the rear elevation of Qaro meaning that the 
typical minimum separation distance of 20m (for 1st floor to ground 
floor windows) can be slightly relaxed due to the significant change 
of orientation (Figure 15 pg 16 of SPD). 

 Loss of light and overbearing impact: no impact due to distance 
away 

 
 

(ii)Assessment of 
the impact on the 
external appearance 
of the 
dwellinghouse, 
including the design 
and architectural 
features of— 
(aa)the principal 
elevation of the 
dwellinghouse, - 
(bb)any side 
elevation of the 
dwellinghouse that 
fronts a highway; - 
not applicable (side 
elevation does not 
front a highway) 
 

Complies, based on the following assessment: 
 
(aa) The principal elevation exhibits a suburban design approach, with 
acceptable proportions and fenestration layout.  
The principal elevation would be clad in timber on the section with the 
front door and with stone (having a ‘crazy paving’ appearance) on the 
projecting front gable section. This would replicate the existing materials. 
There is not considered to be any harm to the proposed appearance of the 
dwelling as a result of the use of these materials.  
[Note – there is no ability of the authority to assess the proposed 
development in relation to the character of the surrounding area – for 
example that it sits in a line of bungalows and would not respect the low 
ridgelines characteristic of this part of the streetscene]  
 
(bb) Not applicable - Neither side elevation fronts a highway. 
 

 
 
The proposal also includes alterations to the fenestration on the front and side elevations, by way of 
relocating the existing front door from the side to the front elevation and narrowing the existing front 
(living room) window. Although not within the scope of this prior notification (under Class AA(b), Part 1, 
Schedule 2 of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order (2015) (as 
amended)), these alterations would fall within Class A, Part 1, Schedule 2 of The Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order (2015) (as amended) which covers the enlargement, 
improvement or other alteration of a dwellinghouse.  
 
 

 
CONCLUSION 

 
1. The operation would consist of development within the curtilage of Qaro, Pyrford Heath. The 

proposed additional storey falls within the meaning of Class AA(b) of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of 
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as 
amended).   

 
2. A large number of representations have been received raising concerns in relation to variety of 

issues, some of which are not material considerations in relation to the scope of this 
application. 

  
3. All material considerations have been assessed in relation to relevant policies and SPD 

guidance, so far as is relevant to the subject matter of the prior approval. This assessment has 
found the application complies with the criteria of Class AA. This assessment has found the 
application to be acceptable subject to removing future permitted development tights under 
Class A of part 1 of the GPDO. As a result of enlarging by an additional storey, there would be 
no permitted development rights in relation to first floor or roof level development, afforded 
under Classes A, B and C of Part 1 of the GPDO. 

 
Page 26



12 JANUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Site visit photographs taken on 14.09.2020.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
It is recommended that Prior approval be GIVEN subject to the following conditions: 
 
 

01. The development must be completed within a period of 3 years starting with the date prior 
approval is given. 

 
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Class AA of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended).   

 
 

02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance the approved plans listed 
below:  

 AS001 Rev A - Proposed Site plan, uploaded by LPA 14/10/2020 

 A002 Rev A - Proposed Ground Floor and First floor plans, uploaded by LPA 14/10/2020 

 A001 Rev B - Proposed Elevations, uploaded by LPA 18/11/2020 
 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is completed in 
accordance with the approved plans.  

 
 

03. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with 
or without modification) no development permitted by Class A of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of that 
Order shall be erected on the application site without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority of an application made for that purpose. 

 
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the occupants of neighbouring properties. 

  
 

04. The developer must notify the local planning authority of the completion of the development as 
soon as reasonably practicable after completion; and that notification must be in writing and 
include— 
(i)the name of the developer; 
(ii)the address of the dwellinghouse; and 
(iii) the date of completion. 
 
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Class AA of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended).   

 
 

05. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the ‘Preliminary 
Construction Management Plan’ (uploaded by the LPA on 27.10.2020).  
 
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Class AA of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended).   

 
06. The materials used in any exterior work must be of a similar appearance to those used in the 

construction of the exterior of the existing dwellinghouse 
 
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Class AA of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended).   

Page 27



 

 

 
 

07. The development must not include a window in any wall or roof slope forming a side elevation of 
the dwelling house 
 
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Class AA of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended).   
 

 
Informatives 

 
01. The Council confirms that in assessing this application it has worked with the applicant in a 

positive and proactive way, in line with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019). 
 

  

Page 28



ITEM 6a – PLAN/2020/0894

Qaro, Pyrford Heath, Woking

Prior notification for enlargement of a dwellinghouse by 
construction of an additional storey, with proposed ridge height 

of 8.2m (amended description to include height)

Slide 2

P
age 29



Location Plan – PLAN/2020/0894
Slide 3

P
age 30



Block Plan – PLAN/2020/0894
Slide 4

P
age 31



Existing Elevations – PLAN/2020/0894
Slide 5 

P
age 32



Proposed Elevations – PLAN/2020/0894
Slide 6

P
age 33



Existing Floor Plans – PLAN/2020/0894
Slide 7

P
age 34



Proposed Floor Plans – PLAN/2020/0894
Slide 8

P
age 35



Photos – PLAN/2020/0894
Slide 9 

P
age 36



Photos – PLAN/2020/0894
Slide 10 

P
age 37



Photos – PLAN/2020/0894
Slide 11 

P
age 38



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

‘45 degree rule’ (Qaro and Summerley)
Slide 12

P
age 39





Part Of Five Acres and 
Land To South Of 
Brookwood Lye.

PLAN/2017/1307
Demolition of an existing one-storey dwelling and ancillary structures associated with the 
existing caravan park (SG) which provides 13 permanent and 2 temporary pitches at Five 

Acres, to construct a replacement two-storey dwelling and a replacement caravan park 
comprised of 19 permanent pitches with hard and soft landscaping and relocated access 

(Amended/additional information/plans received 20 January 2021)

Page 41

Agenda Item 6b





Page 43





23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

6b                     PLAN/2017/1307                                                                      WARD: HE 
 
LOCATION:  Part Of Five Acres And Land To South Of Brookwood Lye Road, 

Woking, Surrey, GU24 0HD 
 
PROPOSAL: Demolition of an existing one-storey dwelling and ancillary structures 

associated with the existing caravan park (SG) which provides 13 
permanent and 2 temporary pitches at Five Acres, to construct a 
replacement two-storey dwelling and a replacement caravan park 
comprised of 19 permanent pitches with hard and soft landscaping 
and relocated access  

 
APPLICANT:  Thameswey Development Ltd          OFFICER: Joanne Hollingdale

    
 

 

 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE  
 
The applicant is Thameswey Developments Ltd and under the Scheme of Delegation, such 
applications are required to be determined by the Planning Committee.   
 
SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

 
The application proposes the demolition of an existing one-storey dwelling and ancillary 
structures associated with the existing caravan park (SG) which provides 13 permanent and 
2 temporary pitches at Five Acres, to construct a replacement two-storey dwelling and a 
replacement caravan park comprised of 19no. permanent pitches with hard and soft 
landscaping and relocated access. 
*SG is a sui generis planning use.  
 
PLANNING STATUS  
 

 Green Belt 

 Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km) 

 Flood Zones 2 and 3 (front part of site) 

 Surface Water Flood Risk area (medium risk)  

 Tree Preservation Order (626/0251/1979) 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
GRANT planning permission subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 Legal 
Agreement and conditions. 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The application site is located on the southern side of Brookwood Lye Road (A324).The 
application site extends to some 0.68ha. Access into the site is directly off Brookwood Lye 
Road. To the east of the site is dense woodland, whilst the southern and western 
boundaries of the site form the boundaries with a much larger site, part of which was 
formerly a plant nursery site. To the south of the wider site is the South Western main 
railway line (Waterloo to Basingstoke). 
 
The site comprises a single storey bungalow, hard surfacing and various small buildings and 
is currently occupied by a number of caravans with no formal layout or delineation of plots. 

Page 45



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

The site has a moderate fall of 5 metres across the site from south to north, towards 
Brookwood Lye Road.  
 
The current usage and layout of the site does not benefit from any planning permission and 
the majority of the planning history for this site relates to both this site and part of the 
neighbouring site - which has been hoarded for a number of years and is currently vacant 
land. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The most relevant planning history for this area since 2000 (which includes the application 
site and part of the neighbouring site) is given below. In relation to the provision of 
gypsy/traveller pitches only the planning history granting planning permission (either by the 
LPA or at Appeal) for pitches is provided as this is considered to be most relevant to 
establishing the previously existing authorised position in relation to the number of 
authorised pitches across the site(s):  
 
The Bungalow 
PLAN/2016/0153 – Certificate of Proposed Lawful Development for the erection of front 
porch, single storey side extensions, single storey rear extension and garage building. 
Permitted 25.04.16 
 
Gypsy/Traveller plot history 
PLAN/2013/0878 – Erection of new building for office, storage and utility following 
demolition of existing building. Permitted 23.12.2013  
 
PLAN/2013/0062 – Proposed reconfiguration of existing site layout to provide two additional 
residential gypsy pitches including the addition of one ancillary dayroom, the division of the 
existing dayroom into two semi-detached dayrooms and hardstanding. Permitted 22.05.13 
(Temporary 2 year permission - expired)  
 
PLAN/2012/0653 – The use of land for the stationing of a mobile home type caravan for the 
applicants adult son in addition to those granted planning permission in decision 
2005/0883/COU and retaining the existing use of land as a residential gypsy caravan site. 
Permitted 22.11.12 (1no. pitch)  
 
PLAN/2010/0466 – Reconfiguration of existing site layout on land with existing permission 
for stationing of caravans on the south-western side of site for residential gypsy use to 
provide 3 No additional residential gypsy pitches with ancillary utility/dayrooms and 
hardstanding. Permitted 09.09.10 (3no. pitches) 
 
PLAN/2010/0327 – Change of use for the stationing of caravans with ancillary hard standing 
for 7No gypsy pitches with ancillary utility/dayrooms (Amendment to PLAN/2008/0935 dated 
13 May 2009). Permitted 29.06.10 (7no. pitches) 
 
PLAN/2010/0278 – Installation of 2 No mobile homes for family occupation. Permitted 
08.07.10 (2no. pitches)  
 
AMEND/2009/0136 – Minor Amendment for the repositioning of the post and rail fence 0.5m 
closer to the front of the application site. Permitted 06.11.09 
 
PLAN/2009/0590 – Reconfiguration of existing site layout on land with existing permission 
for stationing of caravans for residential gypsy use and change of use of adjacent land to 
provide 7No. additional residential gypsy pitches with ancillary utility/dayrooms and 
hardstanding. Refused 27.08.09  

Page 46



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
PLAN/2008/0935 – Change of use for the stationing of caravans with ancillary hard-standing 
for 7no. gypsy pitches with ancillary utility/dayrooms. Permitted subject to a Legal 
Agreement 13.05.09 
 
PLAN/2005/0883 – Change of use to a gypsy caravan site for three families with associated 
development. Refuse and Enforce 21.10.05. Appeal Allowed 08.12.06 
 
Adjacent site 
PLAN/2017/1306 – Demolition of 4no. existing residential units and ancillary structures 
associated with the existing caravan park (Use Class SG) at Five Acres and development of 
126no. residential units two-storey and three-storeys in height (37 no. 1-bed units, 71 no. 2-
bed units, 15 no. 3-bed units, 3 no. 4-bed units) with hard and soft landscaping and open 
space, with a new emergency road and pedestrian access point. Under Consideration  
 
PLAN/2017/0443 – Erection of temporary Hoarding to enclose potential development for a 
period of 48 months. Under Consideration  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
The application proposes the demolition of an existing one-storey dwelling and ancillary 
structures associated with the existing caravan park (SG) which provides 13 permanent and 
2 temporary pitches at Five Acres, to construct a replacement two-storey dwelling and a 
replacement caravan park comprised of 19 permanent pitches with hard and soft 
landscaping and relocated access. 
 
The development proposes to replace the existing single storey dwelling in a similar position 
with a two storey dwelling. The dwelling would measure 11.5 metres by 8.6 metres and 
would provide a 5 bedrooms with an eaves height of 5.2 metres and a ridge height of 9 
metres. The dwelling would have its own garden with 2no. parking spaces. It is stated that 
the dwelling is for the manager of the site.  
 
The road layout within the site would from a broadly rectangular shape around the site with 
each pitch being formally laid out on the outside or inside of the access road.  
 
Each pitch would have space for a mobile home, a touring caravan, a utility building, 2no. 
car parking spaces, a small amenity area, an external store, bin storage and LPG bottle 
storage. Some space will be available to provide landscaping/planting, and an area of open 
space would be provided adjacent to the northern boundary of the site along with a visitor 
parking space.  
 
In support of the application a Design and Access Statement, Planning Statement, Planning 
Clarifications Statement, Very Special Circumstances Statement, Flood Risk 
Assessment/Drainage Information, Transport Statement, Arboricultural Information and 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal and Bat Survey reports have all been submitted.  
 
CONSULTATIONS (most recent responses summarised below) 
 
County Highway Authority: Having assessed the application on safety, capacity and 
policy grounds, recommends conditions are imposed on any permission granted.  
 
County Archaeologist: A condition requiring the implementation of a programme of 
archaeological work in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation is recommended.  
 
SCC Lead Local Flood Authority: Defer to WBC Drainage Engineer. 

Page 47



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
Environment Agency (most recent response): The applicant has undertaken a fluvial 
modelling exercise to determine the flood risk of the development site which was approved 
by the Environment Agency in February 2019. The modelling study determined that the site 
is located in Flood Zone 1. The applicant has undertaken a precautionary approach to set 
the finished floor level of the built development above the 1% annual probability (1 in 100) 
flood level with an appropriate allowance for climate change. This will reduce the risk of 
flooding to people and property. In light of the above we are in a position to remove our 
objection subject to a planning condition (relating to finished floor levels) being imposed on 
any permission granted.  
 
Natural England: As long as the applicant is complying with the requirements of Woking’s 
Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy for the Thames Basin Heaths SPA (through legal 
agreement securing contributions to SANG and SAMM), Natural England has no objection 
to this application.  
 
Network Rail: No objections  
 
WBC Drainage and Flood Risk Engineer: Having reviewed the details they are in 
accordance with the NPPF and the Woking Core Strategy subject to conditions being 
included in any permission granted.  
 
WBC Environmental Health Officer: Reviewed the updated documents based on the 
informal submission in September last year and have no adverse comments to submit. 
Please apply conditions relating to services and amenities, site lighting, LPG storage and 
details of noise mitigation works for the mobile home pitches in accordance with the 
recommendations in the submitted acoustic report. An informative is also recommended 
 
WBC Arboricultural Officer: The Arboricultural information is acceptable. I am happy with 
the tree protection plan provided subject to a pre commencement meeting which should 
include the project Arboriculturalist, Project Manager and the LA tree Officer. 
 
WBC Contaminated Land Officer: Requests conditions are imposed on any permission 
granted.  
 
WBC Housing Services: Housing Services supports this planning application which seeks 
to provide a comprehensive solution for the future of the Brookwood Lye lands by providing 
a clearly defined area for the Travellers’ needs on the Five Acres land.  
 
It is considered that the proposal will help regularise the existing situation regarding the use 
of the Brookwood Lye Five Acres site by the Travellers community, which has seen a 
fluctuating number of unauthorised caravans on the land in the recent past. The proposal 
will therefore provide certainty regarding the number of allowable pitches (19) on the 
application site, and will provide clearly defined boundaries with the adjacent proposed 
housing site and the adjoining woodland.  
 
The proposal will help to meet the housing needs of the Travellers community in Woking 
which was identified in the Gypsy & Travellers Accommodation Survey as 19 additional 
pitches Borough-wide up to 2027 by providing a further 6 permanent pitches (the Five Acres 
site currently providing 13 permanent pitches). Furthermore, it is noted that the site is to be 
managed by the site owner who will have permanent accommodation at the front of the site, 
and that there will be only a single access into the site thereby assisting with the secure 
management of the site. 
 

Page 48



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

WBC Planning Policy: In summary draft Policy GB2, unmet need for traveller’s 
accommodation and the lack of a five year land supply for traveller’s accommodation could 
be considered to provide the very special circumstances necessary to justify inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt in this instance. This justification could also extend to the 
principle of providing a replacement dwelling to accommodate a site manager. Whether or 
not any case for very special circumstances is considered to outweigh the substantial weight 
to be given to the harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness and any other 
harm is a matter for the Development Management Officer in making any recommendation. 
Furthermore concern is raised that a transit site has not been proposed as this is a clear 
requirement of draft Policy GB2, which can be given substantive weight in determining this 
proposal.  
 
Joint Waste Solutions: Satisfied with the refuse and recycling arrangements on site and 
the swept path analysis.  
 
Surrey Wildlife Trust: The LPA should ascertain from the Surrey Wildlife Trust (SWT) that 
the proposed development does not include land in the ownership of SWT, particularly to 
the east of the proposed development [Officer note: The LPA does not oversee land 
ownership matters]. The development would result in new dwellings within 5km of the 
TBHSPA and this application should consider the application against their avoidance 
strategy. (Comments are made about the adjacent site PLAN/2017/1306). The submitted 
ecology report provides much useful information and should the LPA be minded to grant 
planning permission the applicant should be required to undertaken the recommended 
action in Section 6.0 and the planting and landscaping proposals. With regard to bats, the 
applicant’s Ecologist advises that further surveys are required and therefore in accordance 
with Circular 06/05, the LPA does not yet have sufficient information to fully assess the 
impact on these legally protected species. The required bat surveys should therefore be 
undertaken prior to determination to help establish the status of bat species and for the LPA 
to consider any required mitigation/compensation proposals. [Officer note: In response to 
the most recent information received from the applicant’s Ecologist in respect of bat surveys 
and the applicant’s comments with regard to access to the site, any further comments 
received from the SWT will be reported verbally].  
 
Thames Water: No objection on surface water or foul water sewerage grounds  
 
Surrey Fire and Rescue: Comments provided in respect to fire considerations  
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
1 letters of representation (support) has been received. A summary of the main points is 
given below:  

 The application will regularise the site and provide certainty regarding the physical 
size and number of pitches; 

 Replacing the bungalow with a modern family sized home for the site owner will help 
with ongoing management of the site; 

 Making provision for static homes will help with integrating the site into its immediate 
surroundings; and 

 Some concerns with regard to flooding around the A324 which will need to be 
addressed.   

 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
Planning Policy for Traveller Sites  

Page 49



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
South East Plan 2009 
Saved Policy NRM6 – Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area 
 
Woking Core Strategy 2012 
CS6 – Green Belt  
CS7 – Biodiversity and Nature Conservation  
CS9 – Flooding and water management  
CS14 – Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople 
CS18 – Transport and accessibility  
CS21 – Design 
CS22 – Sustainable Construction  
CS24 – Woking’s landscape and townscape 
CS25 – Presumption in favour of sustainable development  
 
Development Management Policies DPD 2016 
DM2 – Trees and Landscaping  
DM5 – Environmental Pollution  
DM7 – Noise and light pollution  
DM8 – Land contamination and hazards  
DM13 – Buildings in an adjacent to the Green Belt 
 
Draft Site Allocations DPD (Regulation 19) July 2019   
Policy SA1– Overall Policy Framework for land released from the Green Belt for 
development   
Policy GB2 – Land at Five Acres, Brookwood Lye Road, Brookwood  
 
SPD 
Parking Standards SPD 2018   
Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and Daylight SPD 2008 
Design SPD 2015 
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance Strategy 2010-2015 
Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2013 
 
Other Guidance   
Waste and recycling provisions for new residential developments  
 
PLANNING ISSUES 
 
1. The main issues to be considered in this case are: planning policy framework, including 

the principle of the development in the Green Belt, impact on the Green Belt and the 
assessment of very special circumstances, impact on character and appearance, impact 
on residential amenity, highway safety and parking, contamination, sustainable 
construction, ecology, drainage and flood risk, Thames Basin Heaths SPA, human 
rights, Public Sector Equality Act and local finance considerations.  

 
Background  
 
2. As can be noted from the planning history of the site planning permission has existed for 

a total number of 13no. pitches across a much larger site than the current application 
site. There was also planning permission for 2no. temporary pitches (PLAN/2013/0062) 
but this was for a temporary period and has now expired. These permissions essentially 
occurred in an ad hoc manner which resulted in an irregular site layout of plots across a 
large site area. It should also be noted that many of the planning permissions granted 

Page 50



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

were personal permissions to the applicant at the time (and their immediate 
family/dependents as specified in the relevant planning conditions).  
 

3. Over the last few years (and concurrently with the draft Site Allocations DPD process) 
the position of the caravans has been consolidated to a much smaller site area and the 
caravans/pitches now occupy a layout which is not authorised. In addition it is also likely 
the case that many of the previous permissions have fallen away because the persons 
those permissions were personal too are either no longer present on the site or are no 
longer present on the site in a way which was authorised by the relevant planning 
permission.   
 

4. At this point, it should also be noted that part of the application site comprises previously 
developed land, being occupied by a dwelling and its residential curtilage and also the 
western part of the site, having been previously part of some of the historic planning 
permissions for the gypsy/traveller pitches. However part of the site (south-eastern part) 
is not previously developed land as this part of the site falls outside of the residential 
curtilage of the existing single storey dwelling and also the site area of any previous 
planning permission for the gypsy/traveller pitches.  

 
Planning policy framework 
 
5. The application site lies within the designated Green Belt. Paragraphs 145 and 146 of 

the NPPF set out certain categories of development that are inappropriate within the 
Green Belt. Paragraph 145 states that the LPA should regard the construction of new 
buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt. Exceptions to this are the “replacement of a 
building, provided the new building is in the same use and not materially larger than the 
one it replaces.” Paragraph 146 states that “certain other forms of development area 
also not inappropriate in the Green Belt provided they preserve the openness and do not 
conflict with the purposes of including land within it. These are:  

 
e) material changes in the use of land (such as changes of use for outdoor sport or 
recreation, or for cemeteries and burial grounds);”   
 

6. It is considered that the use of the “such as” indicates that the changes of use 
mentioned are examples rather than a closed list of changes of use that can benefit from 
this exclusion. Nonetheless all changes of use must preserve openness and not conflict 
with the purposes of the Green Belt to benefit from this exception.  
 

7. In this particular case it is considered that the proposed development to construct a 
replacement two-storey dwelling which being two storey would be materially larger than 
the dwelling it replaced would be inappropriate development. A replacement caravan 
park comprised of 19no. permanent pitches (which is a change of use) with hard and 
soft landscaping and relocated access would not preserve the openness of the land, in 
comparison to the authorised use of the land, rather than its existing condition. On this 
basis the proposed development comprises inappropriate development in the Green 
Belt.  

 
8. Not all of the site included within the red line of this application is previously developed 

land or was included within any of the previous planning permissions for development 
on the site. Therefore there is a small part of the application site which is not previously 
developed land, notwithstanding the condition of the existing site. In this regard it is 
considered that there would be some harm to openness, albeit very limited harm.  

 

Page 51



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

9. With regard to the purposes of the Green Belt, it is not considered that the proposal 
would conflict with any of the purposes. The proposal would not result in the unrestricted 
sprawl of large built-up areas as part of the site is previously developed land and a 
strong edge to the eastern side of the site would result, with the woodland beyond the 
eastern boundary forming a strong physical boundary to the developed area. For a 
similar reason the proposal is not considered to result in neighbouring towns merging 
into one another, and the development would not result in the encroachment of the 
countryside. The proposal would also preserve the setting and character of historic 
towns. The proposal would also assist with urban regeneration as the draft Site 
Allocations DPD demonstrates that no new gypsy/traveller sites can be accommodated 
in the urban area so the proposal would not undermine or discourage the recycling of 
urban land. 

 
10. It should also be noted that the applicant’s supporting information also states that the 

proposal would be inappropriate development in the Green Belt. In addition as the 
development proposes that the caravans would be occupied by gypsy and travellers, the 
Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (PPTS) is also relevant. Policy E (Traveller sites in 
the Green Belt) states (Paragraph 16) that: 
 
Inappropriate development is harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved, 
except in very special circumstances. Traveller sites (temporary or permanent) in the 
Green Belt are inappropriate development. Subject to the best interests of the child, 
personal circumstances and unmet need are unlikely to clearly outweigh harm to the 
Green Belt and any other harm so as to establish very special circumstances. 
 

11. It is therefore clear that the PPTS considers that development of traveller sites in the 
Green Belt is inappropriate development.  
 

12. The proposed development would comprise inappropriate development within the Green 
Belt which results in harm by definition and with some harm to openness, albeit very 
limited harm to openness. As such the proposal is contrary to Policy CS6 of the Woking 
Core Strategy 2012, Policy DM13 of the DM Policies DPD 2016 and the NPPF.  

 
13. Paragraph 143 of the NPPF advises that inappropriate development is, by definition, 

harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special 
circumstances. Paragraph 144 states that “when considering any planning application, 
local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to 
the Green Belt. ‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to 
the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly 
outweighed by other considerations”. 

 
14. It is therefore necessary to consider whether any very special circumstances exist in this 

case which would clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by reason of 
inappropriateness and any other harm. In this particular case ‘other harm’ to the Green 
Belt has been identified as very limited harm to openness, but it also includes any ‘other 
harm’ which may be considered to result from the proposed development. In this respect 
all of the material planning considerations are relevant and these are dealt with in the 
paragraphs below. The conclusion – planning balance is provided at the end of this 
report. 

 
Very Special Circumstances  
 
15. Very special circumstances (VSC) to justify the granting of planning permission will not 

exist unless the harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness and any other 

Page 52



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

harm is clearly outweighed by other considerations. Very special circumstances can 
constitute one consideration or the combination of a number of considerations.  
 

16. In respect of the Green Belt the PPTS states that “subject to the best interests of the 
child, personal circumstances and unmet need are unlikely to clearly outweigh harm to 
the Green Belt and any other harm so as to establish very special circumstances.” 
Policy H (Determining planning applications for traveller sites) of the PPTS (Paragraph 
24) also states that: 
 
Local planning authorities should consider the following issues amongst other relevant 
matters when considering planning applications for traveller sites: 

a) the existing level of local provision and need for sites 
b) the availability (or lack) of alternative accommodation for the applicants  
c) other personal circumstances of the applicant 
d) that the locally specified criteria used to guide the allocation of sites in plans or 

which form the policy where there is no identified need for pitches/plots should be 
used to assess applications that may come forward on unallocated sites 

e) that they should determine applications for sites from any travellers and not just 
those with local connections 

 
However, as paragraph 16 makes clear, subject to the best interests of the child, 
personal circumstances and unmet need are unlikely to clearly outweigh harm to the 
Green Belt and any other harm so as to establish very special circumstances. 
 

17. The judgement in the case of R (Lee Valley Regional Park Authority) v Broxbourne 
Borough Council [2015] EWHC 185 (Admin) provides assistance in relation to the 
consideration of very special circumstances and states that:  
 
“Once the issue is whether or not inappropriate development should be permitted in the 
Green Belt, all factors which tell in favour of the grant go to making up very special 
circumstances, which may or may not suffice. It is not necessary to go through the 
process of considering whether a factor is not a very special circumstance but 
nonetheless falls to be taken into account in favour of the development as another 
relevant material consideration. See Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government v Redhill Aerodrome Ltd [2014 EWCA Civ 1386.” 
 

18. The applicant’s case for very special circumstances can be summarised under the 
following headings: 

 VSC1 – the development would contribute to pitch supply in the Borough; 

 VSC2 – the site is previously developed land; 

 VSC3 – Improving the visual appearance of the site; 

 VSC4 – Enhanced buffer planting creating a self-contained site; 

 VSC5 – Job construction; 

 VSC6 – proposals would increase local population and contribute to the vitality of 
Brookwood; and  

 VSC7 – Reduction in the amount of surface water runoff.  
 

19. Whilst these reasons have been put forward by the applicant in their case for very 
special circumstances, it is also important to assess the status and policy requirements 
within the draft Site Allocations DPD which is at an advanced stage in its preparation. In 
addition and allied to the applicant’s VSC1 it is also necessary to consider the current 
situation with regard to need for gypsy and traveller pitches in the Borough along with an 
assessment of the current land supply position.  
 

Page 53



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

20. Unlike many other planning applications for gypsy/traveller pitches no information is 
given with regard to the existing or proposed occupiers of the site. The LPA has 
previously requested information with regard to any particular personal circumstances of 
existing or proposed occupiers of the site so that these could be considered as part of 
the application but no information has been submitted. Nonetheless in general terms 
human rights and the Public Sector Equality Duty are considered as part of the 
assessment of this application. In addition if the application is considered to be 
acceptable as a Gypsy/Traveller site then it will be necessary to ensure that the pitches 
are made available to this sector of the population and thus a planning condition is 
considered reasonable and necessary to ensure the occupation of the pitches by 
persons who fall within the gypsy/traveller definition as set out in Annex 1 of the PPTS 
which states that:  

 
“For the purposes of this planning policy “gypsies and travellers” means: 
Persons of nomadic habit of life whatever their race or origin, including such persons 
who on grounds only of their own or their family’s or dependants’ educational or health 
needs or old age have ceased to travel temporarily, but excluding members of an 
organised group of travelling showpeople or circus people travelling together as such.” 
 

Draft Site Allocations DPD 
 
21. Policy CS14 of the Woking Core Strategy sets out that the Council will make provision 

for necessary additional pitches for Gypsy and Travellers and Travelling Show people in 
the Borough between 2017 and 2027 and that sites to meet the need will be identified in 
the Site Allocations DPD. It should also be noted that Policy CS14 also seeks to 
safeguard existing authorised sites for Gypsies and Travellers. Policy E of the PPTS 
further states (paragraph 17) that:  
 
Green Belt boundaries should be altered only in exceptional circumstances. If a local 
planning authority wishes to make an exceptional, limited alteration to the defined Green 
Belt boundary (which might be to accommodate a site inset within the Green Belt) to 
meet a specific, identified need for a traveller site, it should do so only through the plan-
making process and not in response to a planning application. If land is removed from 
the Green Belt in this way, it should be specifically allocated in the development plan fs 
a traveller site only.     
 

22. The Council’s emerging draft Site Allocations DPD, (which has been informed by a 
Green Belt boundary Review), is at an advanced stage in its preparation. Policy SA1 in 
the draft Site Allocations DPD provides a strategy to address the current unmet need in 
the Borough and to meet the need for Gypsy and Traveller pitches as evidenced by the 
Traveller Accommodation Assessment (TAA) over the plan period in accordance with 
Policy CS14 of the Core Strategy. It has been established that there are no sites within 
the urban area available to meet the needs of Gypsies and Travellers and therefore the 
policy strategy proposes to release land from the Green Belt for Gypsy and Traveller 
pitch provision.  

 
23. Policy SA1 of the draft Site Allocations DPD sets out the overall policy framework for the 

release of land from the Green Belt for development. Under the heading ‘Traveller Sites’ 
it states that “Land at Five Acres, Brookwood Lye Road, Brookwood (Proposal Site 
GB2) is released from the Green Belt and allocated for an additional 6 Travellers pitches 
and a plot for a Traveller transit site from the date of the adoption of the Site Allocations 
DPD.” It is further stated that the delivery of the site will be informed by the phasing 
arrangement set out in the reasoned justification for the policy and the Council will seek 
to ensure that the development of the pitches meets the necessary standards for 

Page 54



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

Travellers accommodation. The indicative delivery trajectory as set out in the reasoned 
justification in the draft Site Allocations DPD is as follows:  
 

Year Cumulative 
projected delivery 

Indicative phasing of sites 

2018/19 -8.3  

2019/20 -5.6 4 permanent pitches approved at 
land south of Murray’s Lane 

2020/21 0.1 6 pitches to be delivered at GB2. 
Planning application has been 
submitted to be determined. 
 
1 pitch to be delivered at Land to the 
South of Gabriel Cottage 

2021/2022 -0.2 1 pitch to be delivered at Stable 
Yard, Guildford Road 

2022/2023 13.5 15 pitches to be delivered at land 
surrounding West Hall (GB9A) 

 
24. The table above shows how the proposed release of site GB2 (Land at Five Acres, 

Brookwood Lye Road) from the Green Belt and its allocation for six net additional 
pitches (total of 19no. pitches) forms an integral and important part of the delivery 
strategy for additional Gypsy and Traveller pitches in the Borough. This site would 
deliver the second highest number of net additional pitches in the Borough and is also 
timetabled to be delivered in the year 2020/21 (although this timetable is slightly behind). 
This is also the only Gypsy and Traveller site to be released from the Green Belt on the 
adoption of the Site Allocations DPD.    
 

25. The allocation of the application site for Gypsy and Traveller pitches is therefore 
fundamental to the forward planning strategy for meeting the need for Gypsy and 
Traveller pitches in the plan period. The draft Site Allocations DPD is at an advanced 
stage, having been through Examination and having recently been the subject of 
consultation on the main modifications to the plan. Therefore as advised by the Planning 
Policy Officer, substantive weight can be given to the draft Site Allocations DPD when 
determining this proposal.   

 
26. In summary, the draft Site Allocations DPD, proposes the removal of this site from the 

Green Belt on adoption of the DPD, positively allocates the site to deliver the number of 
permanent Gypsy and Traveller pitches as proposed in the application and also sets out 
that this site should come forward immediately to provide these pitches to meet the 
needs as set out. In this regard the proposal is considered to comply with Policy CS14 of 
the Woking Core Strategy, the emerging Policy SA1 of the draft Site Allocations DPD 
and also Policy E (paragraph 17) of the PPTS.   
 

27. The detailed assessment of the proposal in relation to the criteria set out in Policies SA1 
and GB2 of the draft Site Allocations DPD and all other material considerations is 
provided in the relevant sections of this report below and this will include an assessment 
of the proposal with regard to the provision of a Transit plot on the site and also the 
consideration of the previously approved pitches across the wider adjacent land.  

 
VSC1 – the development would contribute to pitch supply in the Borough 

 

Page 55



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

28. In assessing this VSC put forward by the applicant, it is also necessary to consider the 
current status with regard to the five year supply of pitches and also the need for pitches 
in the Borough.  
 

29. As noted in the section above Policy CS14 of the Woking Core Strategy sets out the 
strategy for meeting the needs for Gypsy and Travellers in the Borough. In 2013 the 
Council published its Traveller Accommodation Assessment (TAA) which identifies a 
need for 19 additional gypsy/traveller pitches in Woking between 2012-2027. As at 
2019/20, there remains evidenced an unmet need for travellers’ accommodation in the 
borough. With regard to land supply, cumulative delivery relative to the TAA target is 
currently -5.6 pitches, taking into account accruing annual need of 1.3 pitches over the 
plan period. However if no permanent pitches are/were approved in the 2020/2021 
reporting period then the deficiency in the Gypsy and Traveller pitch provision in the 
Borough would be -6.9 pitches. 

 
30. It is therefore clear that there is currently an unmet need for Gypsy and Traveller pitches 

in the Borough. This is reinforced by a recent appeal decision in respect of Gypsy and 
Traveller pitches in the Borough (APP/A3655/W/19/3227697 Boyds Farm, Murrays 
Lane) where the Inspector concluded that “in the current context the Council accept that 
they are unable to demonstrate a five year supply of gypsy and traveller sites to meet 
the identified need.” This is a significant material consideration when assessing planning 
applications for new pitch provision as identified in paragraph 27 of the PPTS. In 
addition this site is specifically allocated to provide a significant part of the land supply to 
meet the identified need.    

 
VSC2 – the site is previously developed land; VSC3 – Improving the visual appearance of 
the site; and VSC4 – Enhanced buffer planting creating a self-contained site 

 
31. Whilst some of the application site is considered to fall within the definition of previously 

developed land, there is a section of the site (to the rear on the eastern side) which 
appears to be outside any of the red line planning application sites associated with any 
of the previous planning permission for development and/or gypsy and traveller pitches 
on this site. Therefore it cannot be concluded that all of the land is previously developed 
land.  
 

32. However undoubtedly a large part of the site would fall within the definition of previously 
developed land and except for the existing bungalow, part of the site has also been used 
for the provision of Gypsy and Traveller pitches (or part thereof). In respect of the 
current appearance of the site the applicant has advised that the site currently detracts 
from the visual amenity of the area as the caravan site has grown organically and does 
not make a positive contribution to the character or appearance of this Green Belt 
location. The applicant further advises that the formalised layout of the pitches combined 
with the landscape treatment would improve the visual amenity of the area.  

 
33. It is true to say that the current condition and appearance of the site, much of which is 

visible from Brookwood Lye Road, detracts from the street scene and this approach to 
Brookwood from the Woking direction. However planning permission should not be 
granted as a ‘reward’ for the current condition of the site as this would only serve to 
encourage potential applicants to degrade the condition and appearance of sites in the 
hope of being granted planning permission for an alternative development. 
Nevertheless, the provision of Gypsy and Traveller pitches across the wider site has 
grown organically or in an ad hoc manner over the years as a result of successive 

Page 56



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

planning permissions being granted and those permissions extended across a much 
wider part of the land on the southern side of Brookwood Lye Road.  

 
34. Therefore even if the authorised pitches were all still in place, they would extend across 

a much wider area, resulting in a more inefficient use of land, would still not form a 
properly planned and logical site arrangement and would still have a particular character 
and appearance with the ad hoc placement of caravans, buildings, structures and 
parking. In addition even if formal enforcement action were to be taken against any 
existing unauthorised development on the current site, it is still likely that the site would 
maintain its appearance with a bungalow and a number of pitches and their associated 
paraphernalia resulting from the historic relatively ‘unplanned’ nature of the authorised 
pitches.  

 
35. In contrast the proposal seeks to consolidate the pitches on the site proposed in line 

with the draft Site Allocations DPD and provide a properly planned arrangement around 
a rectangular shaped access road. The proposed site arrangement would also enable 
an increase in the number of pitches and as will be shown below, each pitch would be 
provided with the necessary requirements for Gypsy and Traveller pitches whilst 
allowing some limited areas for planting across the site. Wider opportunities for planting 
along the frontage of the site would also result. The proposed site layout also shows that 
there would be a landscaped buffer zone along the western boundary of the site and the 
woodland area which abuts the site on its eastern site would also be maintained. Small 
landscaped areas of various sizes would also be provided along parts of the access 
road within the site which would provide some small, but nonetheless important areas 
for ‘greening’ within the site.   

 
36. Therefore whilst weight in the decision making process is not being given to the current 

condition of the site (as this may only encourage landowners to degrade their sites in the 
hope of achieving development which would not otherwise be granted) its recognised in 
this case that there are benefits of the current proposal which include, making the 
efficient use of land, providing a properly planned, logical and landscaped site 
arrangement and also providing a site layout which is of an enhanced appearance in 
comparison to what has previously lawfully occurred on the site. The dense woodland 
which abuts the application site on its eastern site would from a strong physical 
boundary to the site and on the adoption of the Site Allocations DPD would also provide 
a similarly strong physical boundary to the urban area for this part of Brookwood.  

 
VSC5 – Job construction and VSC6 – proposals would increase local population and 
contribute to the vitality of Brookwood  

 
37. Although job construction (as in the generation of jobs during the development) is listed 

in the applicant’s VSC case, they recognise that this is not an exceptional circumstance 
as the redevelopment of any site would result in the requirement for labour and would 
contribute expenditure to the local/wider economy, albeit as this site is relatively small 
and all construction periods are temporary, in this case this is considered to be a limited 
benefit of the development.   
 

38. The applicant’s VSC case also includes reference to the proposal increasing local 
population which would increase the vitality of Brookwood, e.g. increased number of 
residents are likely to shop locally, may work locally and make use of local facilities e.g. 
schools. As for VSC5, the applicant also recognises that this is not an exceptional 
circumstance and any redevelopment resulting in additional residential units would result 

Page 57



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

in similar increase in population. This is considered to be a limited benefit of the 
development.  

 
39. However the application site is located on the edge of Brookwood where a range of local 

facilities are available for residents. The Basingstoke Canal (with its associated cycle 
route) and Brookwood Country Park are located opposite the site which provide access 
to recreation open space. Brookwood Primary School is located on Connaught Road 
along with some local shops and Sainsbury’s at Knaphill is located within a 10 minute 
walk from the site. Local bus routes are also available along Connaught Road and 
Bagshot Road. As it has been established above that all new Gypsy and Traveller 
pitches would need to be located within the Green Belt, it is considered that this site 
would be sustainable in terms of its location on the edge of Brookwood where future 
residents would be able to have easy access to a range of facilities in their local area 
without sole reliance on a vehicle to access some of those facilities. The sustainability 
benefits of the location of the site would also assist in fostering inclusion of new 
occupiers of the site into the local community. In addition although this site is currently 
located on the edge of Brookwood, it is also acknowledged that the adjacent site also 
subject to its own proposed allocation for redevelopment for residential development in 
Policy GB1 of the draft Site Allocations DPD. If this adjacent site does come forward for 
development then this site would further assist with the visual and physical integration of 
this site as part of Brookwood. The locational sustainability benefits of the site and its 
integration with the existing settlement are considered to be significant benefits of the 
proposal.  

 
VSC7 – Reduction in the amount of surface water runoff 
 
40. The applicant has advised that the proposed development would reduce the surface 

water run off leaving the site and that this is an exceptional circumstance. As the site 
has grown over the years as a result of many planning permissions, it is unlikely that 
surface water run-off is being adequately accommodated on the site. As this is a sloping 
site, any surface water run-off would flow towards the frontage of the site and onto 
Brookwood Lye Road. The frontage of the site is shown as being within the medium risk 
surface water drainage area. Whilst some of the development/positioning of the 
caravans on site is unauthorised, the surface water run-off would also result from the 
authorised development on the site.  
 

41. As part of the application drainage information has been submitted which will provide a 
new surface water drainage system for the whole site and will also control the discharge 
rate of water from the site. The drainage system will include a permeable road 
construction, permeable surfaces for pitches, underground storage crates and also a 
small swale/pond along part of the frontage of the site (outside the garden for the new 
dwelling). The proposed new drainage system would therefore result in a betterment to 
the existing authorised situation and be a positive benefit of the proposal.      
 

42. Whether or not these VSC are considered to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by 
reason of the inappropriateness of the development, harm to openness (albeit very 
limited harm) and any other harms will be considered in the conclusion-planning balance 
at the end of this report, once all other planning considerations have been assessed 
below. 

 
Suitability of the site in planning terms 
 
43. Policy CS14 sets out a number of criteria which are required to be taken into account in 

determining applications for Gypsy and Traveller proposals. Similarly Policies SA1 and 

Page 58



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

GB2 of the draft Site Allocations DPD include a number of criteria setting out the 
considerations for development on this site. 
 

44. In addition paragraphs 25 and 26 of the PPTS set out further matters to be taken into 
consideration when determining applications and advise that Local Planning Authorities 
“should ensure that sites in rural areas respect the scale of, and do not dominate, the 
nearest settled community, and avoid placing undue pressure on the local infrastructure” 
(paragraph 25).  
 

45. In broad terms and allied to the draft policy allocation for the use of the site for the 
provision of Gypsy and Traveller pitches the site is considered to be suitable for the 
proposed development. 
 

46. With regard to the number of pitches the site is expected to accommodate, Policy GB2 
of the draft Site Allocations DPD specifies that the site should yield 19no. permanent 
pitches and transit pitch. The proposed site layout plan identifies that 19no. pitches 
would be provided on the site in addition to a new dwelling (in replacement for the 
existing dwelling). The design guidance for the provision of Gypsy and Traveller 
sites/pitches was withdrawn by Government (CLG guidance - Designing Gypsy and 
Traveller Sites (May 2008)) and thus there is no national guidance as to the number of 
pitches one site should accommodate. In any event the same number of permanent 
pitches is proposed as stated in Policy GB2.  

 
47. The now withdrawn CLG guidance on Designing Gypsy and Traveller Sites (May 2008) 

advised that there was no one ideal size of site or number of pitches, although it was 
stated that managers and residents alike suggest that a maximum of 15no. pitches was 
conducive to providing a comfortable environment which was easy to manage. However 
as noted, this design guidance has been withdrawn and had not been replaced, thereby 
enabling greater flexibility in the size of gypsy and traveller sites. In this particular case 
Policy GB2 proposes that the site is allocated for a total of 19no. pitches and the current 
application is in accordance with this requirement. As noted previously, this number of 
pitches takes the 13no. authorised pitches from across the wider land (including the 
adjacent site) and consolidates these with 6no. additional pitches on the application site 
to provide the 19no. pitches. However it is considered necessary to ensure that any of 
the pitches on the adjacent site cannot be ‘resurrected’ from any of the historic planning 
permissions which exist as this would result in a larger number gypsy and traveller 
pitches in this area and undermine the policy allocation in the draft Site Allocations DPD, 
the policy allocation for the adjacent site and result in a number of planning harms e.g. 
visual amenity (spread of pitches across a much wider area) and also the attempts by 
the applicant to create a new planning chapter for the provision of a properly planned 
permanent gypsy and traveller site in this location.  
 

48. It is understood that the applicant also owns the adjacent land and thus it is considered 
reasonable and necessary for the S106 Legal Agreement to include planning obligations 
which prevent the re-establishment of any of the lawful gypsy and traveller pitches on 
the application site and the adjacent site on the implementation of this planning 
permission.  

 
49. The proposed site layout and the requirements to accommodate specific facilities on 

each permanent pitch and meet the required separation distances for fire regulations 
etc. has meant that the proposals do not include a pitch for a transit site as envisaged by 
Policy GB2. However the application has been under consideration for a number of 
years now and a large amount of that time has been spent on the site layout through 
multiple revisions to ensure that the access road can accommodate the refuse collection 

Page 59



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

vehicle, that each plot can accommodate the facilities that would normally be expected 
to be provided on the site and that the separation distances between units can be 
achieved (for fire safety purposes) and as required by the criteria in Policies SA1 and 
GB2 of the draft Site Allocations DPD. The combination of all of these factors has meant 
that it is not physically possible to provide a transit pitch on the site in addition to the 
19no. permanent pitches and the replacement dwelling. A transit pitch is normally 
expected to have all of the requirements of a permanent pitch, although such a pitch 
would not be permanently occupied by the same people.  

 
50. However, notwithstanding the inclusion of a transit pitch within Policy GB2 of the draft 

Site Allocations DPD, the TAA from 2013 did not identify a need for a transit pitch within 
the Borough. Therefore whilst it may be considered desirable to have a transit pitch 
within the Borough, the TAA did not specifically identify a need for a transit pitch. In 
addition whilst it is noted that there have been a number of unauthorised Gypsy and 
Traveller incursions on sites within the Borough over a number of years, where these 
have occurred on Council owned land, they have been remedied swiftly through the use 
of other legislation. In addition there is no other evidence to suggest that these 
incursions have been by one caravan, which only 1no. transit pitch would be able to be 
accommodate in any event. Therefore the provision of 1no. transit pitch on this site 
would have only made a small contribution to the provision of transit pitches in the 
Borough. It is also considered that it would be difficult to sustain an objection to this 
application on the grounds of the lack of provision of a transit pitch given that there is no 
evidence of an overriding need for a transit pitch on this site. Nonetheless as no transit 
pitch is provided it is considered that harm would result, albeit this harm is considered to 
be very limited, in the absence of evidence relating to need for a transit pitch. This harm 
would be added to the Green Belt harm and will be weighed against the benefits of the 
proposal in the planning balance at the end of this report.  
 

51. With regard to the dwelling, a two storey dwelling is proposed in replacement for the 
existing single storey dwelling. Had a replacement dwelling not been proposed, harm 
would have resulted from the proposal from the loss of an existing dwelling. The new 
dwelling would have 5no. bedrooms and would be used as the site manager’s 
accommodation. Policy GB2 is silent in respect of the existing dwelling and any 
proposed dwelling but it is considered beneficial for there to be accommodation for the 
site manager, who can actively manage the site and respond to any issues as they 
arise. The occupation of the dwelling can be controlled by planning condition. The 
positioning of the new dwelling on the site would be similar to that of the existing 
dwelling and would offer natural surveillance of the access into the site.  

 
Site layout and Impact on visual amenity 
 
52. One of the core principles of planning as identified in the NPPF is securing high quality 

design. Policy CS21 of the Core Strategy states that “proposals for new development 
should…respect and make a positive contribution to the street scene and character of 
the area in which they are situated.” Policy CS24 also seeks to maintain the landscape 
character of the area. Policy CS14 also states that the site should not have 
unacceptable adverse impacts on the visual amenity and character of the area. PPTS 
also states that LPAs should attach weight to sites being well planned or soft 
landscaped in such a way as to positively enhance the environment and increase its 
openness. 
 

53. The PPTS further advises that weight should also be attached to the following matters 
(paragraph 26):    
 

Page 60



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

a) effective use of previously developed (brownfield), untidy or derelict land; 
b) sites being well planned or soft landscaped In such a way as to positively 

enhance the environment and increase its openness; 
c) promoting opportunities for healthy lifestyles, such as ensuring adequate 

landscaping and play areas for children; and  
d) not enclosing a site with so much hard landscaping, high walls or fences, 

that the impression may be given that the site and its occupants are 
deliberately isolated from the rest of the community.   

 
54. The application site is rectangular in shape and the proposed new dwelling would be 

sited in a similar position to the existing dwelling. The dwelling would have its own 
garden and parking area with at least two car parking spaces. The dwelling would be 
two storey with a conventional dual pitched roof. The dwelling would be located with its 
gable end facing Brookwood Lye Road, but this would have two first floor windows to 
provide some visual interest. The front elevation would face the site access providing 
natural surveillance and the rear elevation would face the private garden. The dwelling 
would be faced in brick under a red plain tiled roof. The proposed dwelling is well 
designed in terms of its proportions and appearance and would appear as a 
conventional domestic dwelling within the street scene. Given the position of the 
dwelling on the site, its relationship with the remainder of the site and for drainage 
reasons it is considered reasonable and necessary to withdraw ‘permitted development’ 
rights for any enlargement of the dwelling, the construction of any detached outbuildings 
in the rear garden and for the provision of any additional hard surfacing within the plot.  

 
55. The internal access road would form a rectangular shape around the site, enabling 9no. 

pitches to be arranged along the eastern and southern boundaries of the site with an 
‘island’ of 10no. pitches within the centre of the site. Each pitch would have space for a 
mobile home, a touring caravan, a utility building, 2no. car parking spaces, a small 
amenity area, an external store, refuse/bin storage and LPG bottle storage. Around the 
access road would be small areas for landscaping, with a wider buffer zone of 
landscaping provided along the western boundary of the site. Along the northern 
boundary of the access would be re-positioned, a new 2m wide footway along the 
frontage of the site provided along with landscaping. Within the site a small area of open 
space and a space for visitor parking would also be provided.  

 
56. Given the size of the site and the number of pitches the site is required to accommodate 

in accordance with Policies SA1 and GB2 of the draft Site Allocations DPD, the 
proposed arrangement is considered to meet all of the required separation distances 
between caravans/mobile homes (as required for fire separation) whilst also providing a 
well-planned, logical and visually acceptable arrangement to accommodating the 
development. Each pitch would be well defined and interspersed along the access road 
would be small areas of landscaping which would contribute to the ‘greening’ of the site 
to relieve the uniformity of the hard surfaced access road. The Council’s Environmental 
Health Officer has reviewed the revised site layout plan and has not made any adverse 
comments, although recommends conditions relating to services and amenities, site 
lighting and LPG storage, which have been included in the recommended conditions.    

 
57. There are some trees within the site which will require removal to accommodate the 

proposed development. The application is supported by Arboricultural Information and a 
tree protection plan. The proposed development would result in the removal of 5 no. 
individual trees within the site, all of which are either category C (trees of low quality and 
value) or U (trees in such condition which would be lost in 10 years and should be 
removed) trees. There are also 4no. hedges within the site which are proposed to be 
removed. All of the hedges are identified as being category C hedges. The removal of 
the proposed trees and hedges is not considered to have a significant impact in terms of 

Page 61



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

the appearance of the site. The proposed site plan, provides a 2 metre buffer zone for 
planting along the western boundary of the site, provides planting to the front boundary 
of the site (which would be behind the visibility splay for the access) and would provide 
small areas for landscaping/planting within the site. Subject to condition the proposed 
landscaping would enhance the overall layout of the proposed development.    

 
58. There are also a number of trees outside the application site, adjacent to the eastern 

boundary of the site which could be affected by the proposed development. These trees 
have also been subject to assessment. These trees will be protected by fencing and 
ground protection during construction and it is stated that any works within close 
proximity to these trees will be undertaken in an arboriculturally sensitive manner, the 
details of which will be subject to a planning condition. Subject to conditions relating to 
trees and landscaping, the Council’s Arboricultural Officer has advised that the details 
are acceptable.  
 

59. Subject to conditions relating to site layout, the provision of facilities on each pitch, 
external materials, landscaping provision, means of enclosure to plots, removal of 
permitted development for further means of enclosure on the site and in relation to the 
dwelling the proposal is considered to result in a visually acceptable development which 
would significantly improve the character and quality of this site and its appearance 
within the street scene. Subject to the conditions the proposal is considered to comply 
with Policies CS14, CS21 and CS24 of the Woking Core Strategy, Policy DM2 of the DM 
Policies DPD, Policies SA1 and GB2 of the draft Site Allocations DPD, the relevant 
requirements of paragraph 26 of the PPTS and the NPPF.  

 
Impact on neighbouring amenity and amenity of future occupiers 
 
60. Policy CS21 of the Core Strategy advises that proposals for new development should 

achieve a satisfactory relationship to adjoining properties avoiding significant harmful 
impact in terms of loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight, or an overbearing effect due to 
bulk, proximity or outlook. Further detail is provided in the SPD Outlook, Amenity, 
Privacy and Daylight.  

 
61. The proposed development would not result in any adverse impacts to the amenity of 

any residential occupiers outside of the site as there are currently no residential 
properties adjoining the application site. The adjacent larger site is the subject of a 
planning application for new residential development but the considerations for that 
application will include the impact on the amenities of any future occupiers of this 
development, in the event that permission is granted for this proposal.  

 
62. With regard to the impact on amenities of occupiers within the site, the proposed 

dwelling would have an internal floor area of around 164sqm (excluding the covered 
porch) which exceeds the minimum internal floorspace within the CLG Housing 
Technical Standards for a 5 bedroom dwelling. The new dwelling would also have a 
private rear garden of around 165sqm (including the area covered by the detached 
outbuilding). In this regard the proposed rear amenity space is considered to be suitable 
and commensurate with the size and scale of the dwelling. There would also be no first 
floor window in the southern elevation of the dwelling facing the adjacent pitch and as 
‘permitted development’ rights are recommended to be removed from the dwelling, 
planning permission would be required for any new window in this elevation.  

 
63. Policy SA1 of the Site Allocations DPD states that sites should ensure a degree of 

privacy for individual households without inhibiting the important sense of community.  
With regard to the provision of the pitches, it is acknowledged that the site is relatively 
tight in terms of its layout, but the site layout and the positioning of the amenity buildings 

Page 62



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

would provide some separation between the static mobile home positions. Boundary 
treatments would also be provided to define each plot and would provide some further 
privacy. It is however recognised that on a sloping site such as this with the static mobile 
homes being raised (as they all sit elevated above ground level), there will be some 
degree of views between plots. The closest static mobile home positions are between 
plots 6 and 8 and plots 3 and 5 where the separation is just over 6 metres. For plots 3 
and 5 the separation is across part of the access road and for plots 6 and 8 an amenity 
building is positioned between the mobile home positions and some garden/green area 
would exist for planting if additional privacy was required. The size of mobile 
homes/caravans including their height is also limited by the Caravan Sites Act 1968. 
Overall it is considered that the proposed site layout provides an acceptable 
arrangement of plots and would not result in any significant adverse amenity impacts 
between future occupiers, by reason of overbearing, privacy or daylight impacts.   
 

64. The site lies between Brookwood Lye Road and the main South Western railway line. A 
Noise Assessment report has been submitted with the application. For the proposed 
new dwelling, building fabric, glazing and trickle ventilator specifications are provided for 
the specified elevations to ensure that acceptable internal noise levels can be achieved 
within the dwelling. With regard to the mobile homes the noise assessment identifies the 
likely noise levels at each pitch, which is dependent on the proximity to the noise source 
e.g. either the road or railway line. Predictions are made with regard to the nominal 
sound reduction provided by a partially open window. The predicted internal noise levels 
on the pitches would be higher than the WHO noise guidelines and those noise levels 
generally sought by Policy DM7 of the DM Policies DPD. Policy DM7 states that 
proposals for noise sensitive uses in areas of significant or neighbourhood noise will 
only be supported where the need for development outweighs impacts on amenity of 
future occupiers and where a robust scheme of mitigation is provided. Policy GB2 of the 
draft Site Allocations DPD also requires noise to be considered for the site.  

 
65. However it is noted that part of the site has planning permission for gypsy and traveller 

pitches, which were located slightly closer to Brookwood Lye Road than they would be 
as a result of this scheme. In addition the authorised pitches on the adjacent site were 
located immediately adjacent to the southern boundary adjacent to the railway line. The 
pitches on the application site would be located further away from the railway line than 
the previously authorised pitches. Whilst it is acknowledged that the site is affected by 
noise, having regard to the current use of the site, the previously authorised pitches, the 
proposed site allocation and the need for Gypsy and Traveller pitches it is considered 
that the site is appropriate for the proposed use and that the need for the development 
would outweigh any potential noise impacts on future occupiers. In addition a condition 
is included in the recommendation to ensure that the development is undertaken in 
accordance with the requirements set out in the noise report to meet or better the 
internal noise levels as set out, in accordance with the comments from the Council’s 
Environmental Health Officer.  

 
66. In light of the above comments and subject to conditions relating to noise, the proposed 

development is not considered to result in any significant adverse amenity impacts to 
the future occupiers of the site. The proposal therefore complies with Policy CS21 of the 
Woking Core Strategy 2012, Policy DM7 of the DM Policies DPD, Policies SA1 and GB2 
of the draft Site Allocations DPD, the SPD Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and Daylight and 
the NPPF.  

 
Highways, access and parking provision  
 
67. A Transport Statement has been submitted with the application. In terms of traffic 

generation it is noted that the wider land holding has historically had planning 

Page 63



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

permission for 13no. pitches. It is also noted that the existing site has been subject to a 
number of caravans in recent years. The application proposes 19no. permanent pitches 
and a replacement dwelling and in traffic generation terms, whilst there may be a slightly 
larger volume of vehicular trips in comparison to the authorised number of pitches, the 
applicant’s Transport Statement advises that without undertaking any detailed trip 
analysis the addition traffic generated will be insignificant and will not have a material 
impact on the operation of the local highway network. The County Highway Authority 
has not raised any concerns to the application in this regard.  
 

68. The proposed access into the site would be located slightly further west than the existing 
access and would allow for two-way entry and egress. The access road around the site 
would be a circular road of varied width which would be operated on a one way system 
and would enable access for larger vehicles, including the refuse collection vehicle. A 
swept path plan has been provided with the application to show that a refuse vehicle can 
manoeuvre around the site. The access road would be treated as a shared surface 
allowing pedestrians priority over vehicles. 
 

69. Policy GB2 of the draft Site Allocations DPD, specifically states that the development 
should contribute to the provision of essential transport infrastructure to mitigate the 
impacts of the development and in addition to normal access, parking and servicing 
requirements it seeks to secure the extension of the footway on the south side of 
Brookwood Lye Road. In this regard a 2 metre wide footway would also be provided to 
the front of the site to promote pedestrian access to the site, along with an uncontrolled 
crossing point on Brookwood Lye Road. Such facilities will provide an important linkage 
from the site to Brookwood for residents to access local services by means other than a 
private car. In addition when the adjacent site is developed the proposed footway would 
extend to the Brookwood crossroads on this side of the road also. 

 
70. The Parking Standards SPD sets maximum parking standards for non-residential uses 

and there is no standard for gypsy/traveller pitches. However each pitch would have 
parking space for a touring caravan and 2no. car parking spaces. This provision is 
considered to be sufficient for each pitch. A storage shed is also shown for each pitch 
and this would be able to accommodate any cycle storage requirements for each pitch. 
Furthermore a visitor space is shown inside the front boundary of the site. The proposed 
new dwelling would have space for 2no. car parking spaces, although it is noted from 
the plan that 3no. spaces could be accommodated in the area shown for parking. This 
provision is in accordance with the Parking Standards SPD for a 5 bedroom dwelling. An 
outbuilding and sufficient space would exist within the site for the dwelling to 
accommodate any cycle parking.  

 
71. The County Highway Authority has reviewed the application and recommended a 

number of planning conditions, including securing the provision of the 2 metre wide 
footway along the front of the site and also the uncontrolled crossing point on 
Brookwood Lye Road. Subject to the imposition of the conditions the proposed 
development is therefore considered to comply with Policy CS18 of the Woking Core 
Strategy 2012, Policies SA1 and GB2 of the draft Site Allocations DPD, the Parking 
Standards SPD and the NPPF.  

 
Drainage and Flood Risk  
 
72. The application site is shown on the Flood Risk Maps as being located within Flood 

Zones 2 (medium probability) and 3 (high probability). As part of the application, the 
applicant has undertaken a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) including a fluvial modelling 
exercise (hydraulic modelling) to determine the flood risk of the development site. The 
hydraulic modelling has been reviewed and was subsequently approved by the 

Page 64



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

Environment Agency in February 2019. The modelling determined that the site is located 
in Flood Zone 1. The applicant has undertaken a precautionary approach and set the 
finished floor level of the built development above the 1% annual probability (1 in 100) 
flood level with an appropriate allowance for climate change. This will reduce the risk of 
flooding to people and property.  
 

73. On the basis of the modelling undertaken the Environment Agency has been able to 
remove their objection to the application subject to a condition requiring the 
development to be carried out in accordance with the FRA and the mitigation measures 
that the finished floor level of the proposed replacement dwelling and outbuilding are set 
no lower than 38.508 AOD (they are both shown on the site layout plan to be 38.600 
AOD) and the finished floor level of the static mobile homes on each pitch are set no 
lover than 38.806 AOD. Although the finished floor levels of the static mobile homes are 
not shown on the proposed site layout plan it is considered that these finished floor 
levels would be achievable given that mobile homes have by their nature a raised floor 
level, the site levels and the sloping nature of the site.  
 

74. As part of the application surface water drainage information has been submitted which 
will provide a new surface water drainage system for the whole site and will also control 
the discharge rate of water from the site. The drainage system will include a permeable 
road construction, permeable paving for the pitches, underground storage crates and 
also a small swale/pond along part of the frontage of the site (outside the garden for the 
new dwelling). The proposed new drainage system would therefore result in a 
betterment to the existing authorised situation. The Council’s Drainage and Flood Risk 
Engineer has reviewed the submitted drainage details and has raised no objection 
subject to the imposition of planning conditions.   

 
75. Subject to the imposition of the recommended conditions the proposal is considered to 

comply with Policy CS9 of the Woking Core Strategy, Policy GB2 of the draft Site 
Allocations DPD and the NPPF.  

 
Contamination  
 
76. Paragraphs 120 and 121 of the NPPF relate to contamination and advise that the effects 

of pollution should be taken into account and that the responsibility for securing a safe 
development rests with the developer and/or landowner. Policy DM5 of the DM Policies 
DPD relates to environmental pollution and Policy DM8 relates to land contamination. 
Draft Policy GB2 of the draft Site Allocations DPD seeks to ensure that any development 
on this site makes provision for investigation and remediation. As the site is currently 
occupied it makes site investigation difficult and thus the Council’s Contaminated Land 
Officer has recommended the standard contamination conditions be imposed on any 
permission granted to ensure that any contamination is remediated as required. Subject 
to these conditions the proposal is considered to comply with Policies DM5 and DM8 of 
the DM Policies DPD 2016, Policy GB2 of the draft Site Allocations DPD and the NPPF.  

 
Sustainable construction  
 
77. Planning policies relating to sustainable construction have been updated following the 

Government’s withdrawal of the Code for Sustainable Homes. Therefore in applying 
Policy CS22 of the Core Strategy, the approach has been amended and at present all 
new residential development (dwellings) is required to be constructed to achieve a water 
consumption standard of no more than 110 litres per person per day water consumption 
and not less than a 19% CO2 improvement over the 2013 Building Regulations TER 
Baseline (Domestic). Subject to conditions for the proposed new dwelling the proposal is 

Page 65



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

considered to be acceptable and would comply with Policy CS22 of the Core Strategy 
and the NPPF.  
 

Ecology  
 
78. Policy CS7 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and Policy GB2 of the Site Allocations 

DPD require development to contribute to the protection and enhancement of 
biodiversity and nature conservation. A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) had 
been submitted with the application along with a Bat Survey Report.   
 

79. The PEA report advises that although the Brookwood Lye and West Hill Golf Course 
SINCs and the Basingstoke Canal SSSI are in close proximity to the site, there are 
roads and a railway line intervening and providing measures are taken to avoid light 
spill, the potential for indirect effects on these non-statutory ecological sites, is 
considered to be low.  

 
80. The site is covered with a significant amount of hard surfacing which limits the ecological 

value of the site. However there are a number of existing buildings on the site which 
would be demolished as part of the proposals. A Bat Survey report has also been 
provided although this survey relates to the application site and the adjacent site. 
Buildings B12-B20 lie within the application site. It is noted in the report that these 
buildings were not subject to any surveys during 2019 due to lack of access. A single 
Common Pipistrelle was recorded emerging from Building 19 during the emergence 
survey on 1 August 2019. It was also noted that Building B20 (the existing dwelling) is 
thought to provide low bat roosting potential based on previous 2017 surveys. The Bat 
Survey report further recommends that internal and external surveys are undertaken 
once the buildings are vacated and access is available.  

 
81. It is well established planning guidance that ecological surveys should occur prior to the 

grant of any planning permission to ensure that all material planning considerations are 
taken into account. This approach is in accordance with national planning guidance in 
Circular 06/05 which states that “the need to ensure ecological surveys are carried out 
should therefore only be left to coverage under planning conditions in exceptional 
circumstances." In this regard the applicant has advised that the site is not within their 
control and access to the buildings has not been granted to the applicant team or their 
ecological experts. It is advised that the applicant has been in contact with the occupier 
on several occasions to seek access but this has not been granted and thus the 
applicant is in the position of being willing and able to undertake the bat surveys but is 
unable to do so. The applicant therefore requests, with reference to the guidance, that 
an exception be made in this particular case and a pre-commencement planning 
condition is imposed on any permission granted which would require the surveys to take 
place prior to any demolition. In further support of this approach the applicant has 
provided a letter from the Ecologist which confirms the need to undertake the surveys, 
the process to be adopted and the potential mitigation and enhancements that can be 
provided in the event that a bat roost is recorded on the site. It is also noted that if a bat 
roost is recorded it will be necessary to obtain a licence from Natural England prior to 
demolition. 
 

82. The original comments of the Surrey Wildlife Trust on the application and with regard to 
the requirement for further bat surveys are noted. In nearly all cases bat surveys would 
be undertaken prior to the determination of the application. In this case it is 
acknowledged that the approach suggested by the applicant is unusual, however it is 
further acknowledged that the application has been under consideration by the LPA for 
just over 3 years and whilst many seasons have passed where these surveys could 
have been undertaken, to date the surveys have still not been carried out. Following the 

Page 66



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

receipt of the Bat Survey report in February 2020 the LPA reiterated to the applicant the 
requirement for the surveys to be undertaken. Nonetheless the applicant has advised 
that access is still not possible to the site/buildings. It is further acknowledged that the 
site is occupied, part of the use of the site remains unauthorised and given the impact of 
the coronavirus pandemic over the past year and the ongoing situation requiring contact 
between persons to be limited it is considered that there are sufficient exceptional 
circumstances relating to this case such that a pre-commencement condition requiring 
the bat survey(s) to be undertaken prior to the commencement of any works on the site 
would be justified. A condition is therefore included in the recommendation to ensure 
that impacts on bats are mitigated/compensated as may be required.        

 
83. In respect of other ecological matters, the original PEA report noted the presence of a 

single Japanese knotweed plant and a small immature false acacia tree on the 
application site, both of which are listed as invasive plants on Schedule 9 of the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). The PEA report therefore recommends an 
eradication programme in advance of site clearance works and a condition is thus 
included in the recommendation. A condition relating to vegetation removal is also 
included.   

 
84. Subject to conditions the proposal is considered to comply with Policy CS7 of the 

Woking Core Strategy, Policy GB2 of the draft Site Allocations DPD, the guidance in 
Circular 06/05 and the NPPF.  
 

Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (TBH SPA) 
 
85. The SPA’s in this area are internationally-important and designated for their interest as 

habitats for ground-nesting and other birds. The site lies in an area between 400m and 
5km from the SPA. Policy CS8 of the Core Strategy states that any proposal (including 
the permanent stationing of gypsy and traveller caravans or mobile homes) with 
potential significant impacts (alone or in combination with other relevant developments) 
on the Thames Basin Heaths SPA will be subject to Habitats Regulations Assessment to 
determine the need for Appropriate Assessment.   
 

86. Following recent European Court of Justice rulings, a full and precise analysis of the 
measures capable of avoiding or reducing any significant effects on European sites 
must be carried out at an ‘Appropriate Assessment’ stage rather than taken into 
consideration at screening stage, for the purposes the Habitats Directive (as interpreted 
into English law by the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (the 
“Habitat Regulations 2017”)). As this site is proposed to be allocated in the draft Site 
Allocations DPD yielding an additional 6no. pitches, this site has already been included 
in the Appropriate Assessment prepared for the draft Site Allocations DPD which 
concluded no likely significant effect.  

 
87. Policy CS8 of Woking Core Strategy (2012) requires new residential development 

beyond a 400m threshold, but within 5 kilometres of the TBH SPA boundary to make an 
appropriate contribution towards the provision of Suitable Alternative Natural 
Greenspace (SANG) and Strategic Access Management and Monitoring (SAMM), to 
avoid impacts of such development on the SPA.  The SANG and Landowner Payment 
elements of the SPA tariff are encompassed within the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL), however the SAMM element of the SPA tariff is required to be addressed outside 
of CIL. Gypsy and Traveller caravans/mobile homes do not constitute ‘chargeable 
development’ for the purposes of the CIL Regulations 2010. However the SANG charge 
within the CIL Schedule for ‘chargeable development’, has been set at a level which is 
high enough to mitigate the harm arising from ‘non-chargeable development’ such as 
affordable housing, residential conversions and gypsy/traveller caravans. However the 

Page 67



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

proposed replacement dwelling is CIL liable development. An updated Appropriate 
Assessment has also been undertaken and for the avoidance of doubt, sufficient SANG 
at Brookwood Country Park has been identified to mitigate the impacts of the 
development proposal. 

 
88. The SAMM (Strategic Access Management and Monitoring) component of the SPA 

mitigation payment is a monitoring contribution and SAMM payments are not included 
within the CIL Charging Schedule and therefore have to be secured outside of CIL. The 
current proposal would, in combination with other residential developments, adversely 
affect the integrity of the SPA in relation to urbanisation and recreational pressure 
pathways in the event that a SAMM financial contribution was not secured.  

 
89. The proposal seeks to increase the number of authorised pitches from 13no. to 19no. 

Given the nature of caravans which can be replaced on an authorised pitch providing 
they fall within the size limits for a caravan, it is considered reasonable to consider that 
the caravans would likely be 3 bedroom caravans. On this basis the applicant has 
agreed to make a relevant SAMM contribution of £5,658 in line with the Thames Basin 
Heaths SPA Avoidance Strategy tariff. This would need to be secured through a S106 
Legal Agreement. The new dwelling would replace the existing dwelling and thus there 
is no net increase in the number of dwellings in this regard.  
 

90. Subject to securing the provision of the SAMM tariff and in line with the conclusions of 
the Appropriate Assessment, the Local Planning Authority is able to determine that the 
development will not affect the integrity of the TBH SPA either alone or in combination 
with other plans and projects in relation to urbanisation and recreational pressure 
effects. The development therefore accords with Policy NRM6 of the South East Plan 
2009, Policy CS8 of Woking Core Strategy 2012, the measures set out in the Thames 
Basin Heaths SPA Avoidance Strategy, the requirements of the Habitat Regulations 
2017 and Policy GB2 of the draft Site Allocations DPD.   

 
Human Rights 
 
91. Article 8(1) of the European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) provides that 

everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his 
correspondence. If Article 8(1) is engaged, a balancing exercise by Article 8(2) of the 
ECHR is also required to be carried out. Article 8(2) allows interference with the right to 
respect (for his private and family life, his home and his correspondence) where the 
interference accords with the law and is necessary in a democratic society for the wider 
public interest, in terms of national security, public safety or the economic well-being of 
the country for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals 
or for the protection of rights and freedoms of others.  
 

92. However Article 8 does not give a right to be provided with a home, nor does it go so far 
as to allow an individual’s preferences for their place of residence to override the 
general interest and the right is thus not absolute. Interference with that right can be 
justified by the state if the interference is for a legitimate aim, in accordance with the law 
and necessary in the public interest.  

 
93. This case is particularly unusual in that no information relating to existing or potential 

future occupiers is given. Nonetheless if the current application was to be refused, given 
the unauthorised nature of the current development on the site it would be necessary to 
consider whether enforcement action would be in the public interest and it would also 
give rise to uncertainty with regard to the occupation of the site by current occupiers. 
This would result in an interference with their human rights with regard to Article 8 of the 
European Convention on Human Rights, which encompasses respect for family life and 

Page 68



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

the home. Whether the interference is necessary is dependent upon whether it is 
proportionate to the legitimate aims pursued by the state. To remedy a breach of 
planning control where harm to planning results is ordinarily considered proportionate 
and in the public interest.  

 
94. However that is not to say that all, or even any of the current occupiers fall within the 

gypsy/traveller definition and thus it is not clear whether any of the current occupiers 
would be able to stay on the site, either by reason of their status as gypsies/travellers or 
would be able to be physically accommodated on the site (it is not clear how many 
caravans on the site are being occupied) or would even wish to stay on the site in the 
event that planning permission is granted and then subsequently implemented. 

 
95. Nonetheless, despite the lack of information regarding current occupiers of the site, if 

planning permission were to be refused, it would likely lead to uncertainty with regard to 
the likelihood of enforcement action. Contrary in the event that any planning permission 
is granted and subsequently implemented, the granting of planning permission would 
lead to a degree of certainty with regard to the planning status of the site which would be 
of significant benefit to any potential future occupier of the site (whether an existing 
occupier or not). In addition to providing certainly with regard to the planning status of 
the site, it would also be significantly beneficial in terms of the layout, visual character 
and the amenity of the site which would contribute to the provision of settled, authorised 
gypsy/traveller pitches for future occupiers and their families.      

 
96. It is not clear whether there are any children on the site but it is likely that there may be 

children residing on the site. It is consistent with relevant case law that the best interests 
of any children should be a primary consideration in the planning decision, although not 
necessarily the determining factor. If planning permission were to be refused for the 
proposed development then this is likely to result in undesirable impacts for any children 
on the site, including potentially resulting in a more unsettled environment and 
consequent impacts on access to education and healthcare. It is likely that the 
prolonged absence of a settled site would lead to serious disruption to access to 
education, health and other services for any children. The granting of planning 
permission would enable certainty of a settled site. 

 
97. If planning permission is granted and implemented for the development of the site it is 

inevitable that this will result in some disruption to the occupiers of the site and it may be 
that some will wish to leave the site temporarily or permanently. In addition there is 
always the possibility that some of the current occupiers may not comply with the gypsy 
and traveller definition in the PPTS. Nonetheless, if the Council were to seek to take 
enforcement action to remedy the unauthorised use of part of the site, it is highly likely 
that this would also result in similar disruption to the occupation of the site (until which 
time that planning permission had been granted) and would likely result in a reduction in 
the number of pitches on the site, in the interim. Furthermore in order to mitigate the 
impacts of this development, conditions relating to archaeology, drainage and 
contamination are required and these works are likely to result in a significant amount of 
ground works which will be required on the site. These works are likely to prevent some, 
if not all, occupation on the site whilst the works are occurring. However this situation 
would be temporary and once the works completed the site would provide 19no. 
permanent pitches for occupation by Gypsies and Travellers. 

 
Public Sector Equality Duty  
 
98. The Public Sector Equality Duty is also engaged by the application. The legislation 

provides that: 
 

Page 69



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

“(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need 
to – 
 

(a)  Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by or under this Act; 
(b)  Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
(c)  Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it.” 

 
99. Over the course of the VSC balancing exercise, due regard must be given to these 

issues. The protected characteristic relevant to this case would be any existing and 
proposed occupiers’ Gypsy and Traveller status. 
 

100. With regard to the proposed residents’ Gypsy/Traveller status, particular consideration 
should be given to provision 3b of the Public Sector Equality Duty which specifies that: 
 
“having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves 
having due regard, in particular to the need to…take steps to meet the needs of persons 
who share a relevant protected characteristic that are different from the needs of 
persons who do not share it.” 
 

101. The need in question is for Gypsy and Traveller pitches, which has been established 
as being unmet in the Borough. Furthermore the proposed draft Site Allocation DPD 
specifically identifies this site to provide additional gypsy/traveller pitches to partially 
meet the need identified in the Borough and proposes to allocate this site to meet this 
need. The granting of planning permission for this development will therefore make a 
significant contribution to meeting the need for gypsy/traveller pitches in the Borough 
and would significantly contribute to parts (b) and (c) of the PSED by providing an 
increased number of pitches specifically for gypsy/travellers in a sustainable location 
and would result in an authorised and well laid out gypsy/traveller site which has the 
potential to integrate with the settled community and foster good relations.  

 
Local Finance Considerations 
 
102. The Council implemented the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on 1st April 2015. 

The proposed development relating to Gypsy and Traveller pitches is rated nil in the 
charging schedule. With regard to the proposed replacement dwelling this would result 
in an internal floor area increase of 81.4sqm and is thus CIL liable development. An 
estimate of the liability is £13,082.14.  

  
CONCLUSION – THE PLANNING BALANCE  
 
103. In addition to the harm through inappropriateness the development would result in 

some, albeit, very limited harm to openness. Some very limited harm would also result 
from the lack of the provision of a transit pitch on this site, albeit it is acknowledged there 
is no evidence for the requirement for this. In accordance with Paragraph 144 of the 
NPPF (2018) substantial weight should be afforded to the harm to the Green Belt. 
 

104. In favour of granting planning permission for the site are a number of factors. The draft 
Site Allocations DPD specifically allocates this site for 19no. permanent pitches and 
states that these should be delivered in the year 2020/2021 i.e. immediately to meet the 
assessed need for gypsy and traveller pitches in the Borough. Although the Site 
Allocations DPD is yet to be adopted, as it is at the minor modification stage, following 

Page 70



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

examination, it can be afforded substantive weight for the purposes of development 
management. This factor weighs heavily towards the grant of permanent planning 
permission. 

 
105. Additionally, the current unmet need within the Borough for gypsy and traveller pitches 

and absence of a 5 year supply of deliverable sites, also weigh heavily in favour of the 
grant of planning permission and thus can be afforded substantial weight. There are 
other matters which, taken together, also carry significant weight in favour of the grant of 
planning permission, including the sustainable location of this site enabling access to a 
range of local facilities including education and other local services, the location of the 
site in close proximity/on the edge of the existing settlement of Brookwood offering the 
potential for the site and residents to integrate with the settled community and foster 
good relations and the lack of alternative sites (i.e. this site is intended to provide gypsy 
and traveller pitches to meet the need in the absence of other available sites to meet 
that need). Further benefits of the proposal include the provision of a new drainage 
system on the site and the footway across the front of the site. It should also be noted 
that there would be some effects on human rights if the application fails (and the 
likelihood of enforcement action to resolve the unauthorised elements of the site). If 
however planning permission is granted it would lead to certainty and the provision of a 
settled permanent site for Gypsies and Travellers including any children.  

 
106. Having regard to the above and to all other matters raised, it is considered that the 

harm to the Green Belt and the other identified harm which would result from this 
development would be clearly outweighed by other considerations such that in this case 
it is considered that there are very special circumstances which would justify the 
granting of planning permission subject to appropriate conditions and the prior 
completion of a S106 Legal Agreement.   

 
107. In considering this application the Council has had regard to the provisions of the 

development plan, so far as material to the application and to any other material 
considerations. It is therefore recommended that planning permission be granted subject 
to the prior completion of the S106 Legal Agreement and the conditions as set out 
below. 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Planning File PLAN/2017/1307  
 
PLANNING OBLIGATIONS 
 

  Obligation Reason for Agreeing Obligation 

1. £5,658 SAMM (TBH SPA) 
contribution 

To accord with the Habitat 

Regulations, Policy CS8 of the 

Woking Core Strategy (2012) and 

The Thames Basin Heaths Special 

Protection Area (SPA) Avoidance 

Strategy. 

2. Prevent the re-establishment of any 
previous Gypsy and Traveller pitch 
provision on the site and adjacent 
site on the implementation of this 
permission  

To accord with Policy CS14 of the 

Woking Core Strategy 2012 

 

Page 71



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that temporary planning permission be GRANTED subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. The development for which permission is hereby granted must be commenced not later 

than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004). 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans and documents:   
 
Site Location Plan (BLR-WBR-SITE-ZZ-DR-Z-W(80)18) (scale 1:1250) received 
20.11.2017 
Site Location Plan (BLR-WBR-SITE-ZZ-DR-Z-W(80)18) (scale 1:1200) received 
20.11.2017 
Topographical Survey plan received 07.02.2020 
Proposed Site Plan (BLR-WBR-00-XX-DR-A-13301 Rev P12) received on 20.01.2021 
Revised Tree Protection Plan received on 20.01.2021 
Cross Sections of site (BLR-WBR-ZZ-XX-DR-A-14403 Rev P06) received on 
20.01.2021 
House type EE Elevations (BLR-WBR-EE-XX-DR-A-22112 Rev P03) received on 
20.01.2021 
House type EE Floor plans (BLR-WBR-EE-ZZ-DR-A-22102 Rev P02) received on 
20.01.2021 
Proposed Garden Shed plans and elevations (BLR-WBR-HH-ZZ-DR-A-10100 Rev P02) 
received on 20.01.2021 
Type UA Utility Block A plans and elevations (BLR-WBR-UA-ZZ-DR-A-10100 Rev P02) 
received on 20.01.2021 
Type UB Utility Block B plans and elevations (BLR-WBR-UB-ZZ-DR-A-10100 Rev P02) 
received on 20.01.2021 
Type UB Utility Block C plans and elevations (BLR-WBR-UC-ZZ-DR-A-10100 Rev P02) 
received on 20.01.2021 
Swept path analysis – Large refuse vehicle (A18147-04 Rev P02) received on 
20.01.2021 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is completed in 
accordance with the approved plans. 
 

3. The occupation of the two storey dwelling hereby permitted shall be limited to a 
person(s) who is/are solely or mainly employed/appointed as the site manager of this 
Gypsy and Traveller site and any resident dependants of such persons.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the dwelling is occupied only by a person employed/appointed 
as the site manager.  
 

4. The mobile homes/caravans on the site shall not be occupied by any persons other than 
gypsies and travellers as defined by Annex 1 of the Planning Policy for Traveller Sites 
published in August 2015 or its equivalent in replacement national policy and not as a 
transit site or as a temporary stopping place. 
 

Page 72



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

Reason: To ensure that sufficient provision is made for Gypsy and Travellers within the 
Borough and in light of the very special circumstances in this case which justify the grant 
of planning permission and to comply with Policy CS14 of the Woking Core Strategy 
2012 and the NPPF.  
 

5. No more than one static mobile home and one touring caravan, as defined in the 
Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 and the Caravan Sites Act 1968 as 
amended shall be stationed on each of the 19no. pitches hereby approved at any time. 
The mobile homes and touring caravans shall be located/sited in the positions shown on 
the approved site plan BLR-WBR-00-XX-DR-A-13301 Rev P12 received by the Local 
Planning Authority on 20.01.2021 at all times. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, the amenity of residents on the site and to 
ensure a satisfactory form of development and to comply with Policies CS9, CS14 and 
CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF.   
 

6. No commercial activities shall take place on the land, including the storage of materials 
and no more than one commercial vehicle per pitch, which shall be kept on the land for 
the use by the occupiers of the land hereby permitted and this vehicle(s) shall not 
exceed 3.5 tonnes in weight. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, the amenity of residents on the site and to 
ensure a satisfactory form of development and to comply with Policies CS9, CS14 and 
CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF.   

 
7. Prior to first occupation of each pitch, the facilities shown on the approved site plan for 

that pitch shall be constructed and made available for use by the occupiers of that pitch 
and full size/design details of the proposed sheds, refuse stores and LPG bottle stores 
(to accommodate a maximum of 4 x 47kg cylinders) shall first be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to their construction/installation 
on each pitch. The development shall be implemented and retained thereafter in 
accordance with the approved details with the facilities retained for use by the occupiers 
of each pitch.  
 
Reason: To ensure sufficient amenities are provided for the occupiers of each pitch and 
to comply with Policy CS14 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF.  

 
8. Prior to the commencement of any works, except for works associated with the 

demolition of existing buildings, contamination investigation and archaeology, full details 
of the services to be provided within each utility building, including water, sanitation, 
heating and electrical outlets shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development must then be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details and the services installed and made available prior to the occupation of 
each pitch.  
 
Reason: To ensure sufficient amenities are provided for the occupiers of each pitch and 
to comply with Policy CS14 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF. 
 

9. The dwelling hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the details 
specified in the submitted Planning Noise Assessment report, including the information 
in Table 5 of that report and Appendix D, to achieve the specified noise levels in the 
internal areas/rooms as stated within the report, unless otherwise first approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The required specifications shall be carried out 
concurrently with the development, implemented in full before the dwelling is occupied 
and shall be retained thereafter.  

Page 73



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
Reason: To protect the occupants of the new development from noise disturbance and 
to comply with Policy CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF.  

 
10. Prior to the installation of any mobile home/static caravan on the site, full details of a 

scheme for protecting the occupiers of each pitch from noise shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to meet or better the internal noise 
levels for the mobile homes/static caravan as stated in the submitted Planning Noise 
Assessment report. Any mobile home/static caravan on the site shall comply with the 
approved details upon first occupation of the land and shall thereafter be retained in 
accordance with these details.  
 
Reason: To protect the occupants of the new development from noise disturbance and 
to comply with Policy CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF.  
 

11. The utility/amenity building hereby permitted upon each pitch shall only be used for 
purposes ancillary and incidental to the residential occupation of the mobile home upon 
the relevant pitch. 
 
Reason: To prevent an inappropriate intensification of occupation of the site and to 
protect the character and appearance of the area in accordance with Policies CS6, 
CS14, CS21 and CS24 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF. 
 

12. Prior to the commencement of development a comprehensive, written environmental 
desktop study report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority (including any additional requirements that it may specify). The report to be 
submitted shall identify and evaluate possible on and off-site sources, pathways and 
receptors of contamination and enable the presentation of all plausible pollutant linkages 
in a preliminary conceptual site model. The study shall include relevant regulatory 
consultations and shall be prepared in accordance with the Environment Agency’s 
Model Procedures for the Management of Contaminated Land (CLR 11) and British 
Standard BS 10175.  
 
Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory strategy is put in place for addressing 
contaminated land, making the land suitable for the development hereby approved 
without resulting in risk to construction workers, future users of the land, occupiers of 
nearby land and the environment. This condition is required to be addressed prior to 
commencement in order that the ability to discharge its requirement is not prejudiced by 
the carrying out of building works or other operations on the site.   
 

13. Prior to the commencement of development and any contaminated land site 
investigations on site and in follow-up to the environmental desktop study report a 
contaminated land site investigation proposal shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority (including any additional requirements that it may 
specify). This proposal shall provide details of the extent and methodologies of 
sampling, analyses and proposed assessment criteria required to enable the 
characterisation of the plausible pollutant linkages identified in the preliminary 
conceptual model. Following approval, the Local Planning Authority shall be given a 
minimum of two weeks written prior notice of the commencement of site investigation 
works on site. The site investigation works shall then be undertaken in accordance with 
the approved details.  
 
Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory strategy is put in place for addressing 
contaminated land, making the land suitable for the development hereby approved 

Page 74



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

without resulting in risk to construction workers, future users of the land, occupiers of 
nearby land and the environment. This condition is required to be addressed prior to 
commencement in order that the ability to discharge its requirement is not prejudiced by 
the carrying out of building works or other operations on the site.   
 

14. Prior to the commencement of the development a contaminated land site investigation 
and risk assessment, undertaken in accordance with the approved site investigation 
proposal, that determines the extent and nature of contamination on site and reported in 
accordance with the standards of DEFRA’s and the Environment Agency’s Model 
Procedures for the Management of Contaminated Land (CLR 11) and British Standard 
BS 10175, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
(including any additional requirements that it may specify). If applicable, ground gas risk 
assessments should be completed in line with CIRIA C665 guidance. 
 
Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory strategy is put in place for addressing 
contaminated land, making the land suitable for the development hereby approved 
without resulting in risk to construction workers, future users of the land, occupiers of 
nearby land and the environment. This condition is required to be addressed prior to 
commencement in order that the ability to discharge its requirement is not prejudiced by 
the carrying out of building works or other operations on the site.   
 

15. Prior to the commencement of the development a detailed remediation method 
statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
(including any additional requirements that it may specify). The remediation method 
statement shall detail the extent and method(s) by which the site is to be remediated, to 
ensure that unacceptable risks are not posed to identified receptors at the site and shall 
detail the information to be included in a validation report. The remediation method 
statement shall also provide information on a suitable discovery strategy to be utilised 
on site should contamination manifest itself during site works that was not anticipated. 
The Local Planning Authority shall be given a minimum of two weeks written prior notice 
of the commencement of the remediation works on site. The development shall then be 
undertaken in accordance with the approved details.  
 
Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory strategy is put in place for addressing 
contaminated land, making the land suitable for the development hereby approved 
without resulting in risk to construction workers, future users of the land, occupiers of 
nearby land and the environment. This condition is required to be addressed prior to 
commencement in order that the ability to discharge its requirement is not prejudiced by 
the carrying out of building works or other operations on the site.  
  

16. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, a remediation 
validation report for the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The report shall detail evidence of the remediation, the effectiveness 
of the remediation carried out and the results of post remediation works, in accordance 
with the approved remediation method statement and any addenda thereto, so as to 
enable future interested parties, including regulators, to have a single record of the 
remediation undertaken at the site.  Should specific ground gas mitigation measures be 
required to be incorporated into a development the testing and verification of such 
systems shall have regard to CIRIA C735 guidance document entitled ‘Good practice on 
the testing and verification of protection systems for buildings against hazardous ground 
gases’ and British Standard BS 8285 Code of practice for the design of protective 
measures for methane and carbon dioxide ground gases for new buildings. 

 
Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory strategy is put in place for addressing 
contaminated land, making the land suitable for the development hereby approved 

Page 75



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

without resulting in risk to construction workers, future users of the land, occupiers of 
nearby land and the environment. 
 

17. Contamination not previously identified by the site investigation, but subsequently found 
to be present at the site shall be reported to the Local Planning Authority as soon as is 
practicable. If deemed necessary development shall cease on site until an addendum to 
the remediation method statement, detailing how the unsuspected contamination is to 
be dealt with, has been submitted to and approved in writing to the Local Planning 
Authority (including any additional requirements that it may specify). The development 
shall then be undertaken in accordance with the approved details. Should no further 
contamination be identified then a brief comment to this effect shall be required to be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first 
occupation of the development hereby approved.  
 
Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory strategy is put in place for addressing 
contaminated land, making the land suitable for the development hereby approved 
without resulting in risk to construction workers, future users of the land, occupiers of 
nearby land and the environment. 
 

18. No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a 
programme of archaeological work in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation 
which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall then be undertaken in accordance with the approved 
details.  
 
Reason: To allow the site to be investigated for archaeological purposes and to comply 
with Policy CS20 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF. This condition is 
required to be addressed prior to commencement in order that the ability to discharge its 
requirement is not prejudiced by the carrying out of building works or other operations 
on the site.   
  

19. Prior to the commencement of any development hereby approved bat activity surveys 
including internal and external building inspections, roost emergence and re-entry 
surveys (if required) and tree inspections (if required) (in accordance with the details in 
the submitted Bat Survey Report by Ecology Solutions (ref: 8419.BatReport.dv3 dated 
November 2019 received on 07.02.2020 and the letter from Ecology Solutions (ref: 
8419/001.let.et dated 12.01.2021) received on 20.01.2021 shall be undertaken on site. 
All survey results and full details of any recommendations, mitigation measures and 
biodiversity enhancements shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Once approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. Any 
biodiversity enhancements shall, once installed, be retained and maintained on site in 
accordance with the approved details.   
 
Reason: In accordance with the terms of the application and to ensure the provision of 
suitable ecological mitigation as specified in the application and to comply with Policy 
CS7 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012, Circular 06/05 Biodiversity and Geological 
Conservation and the NPPF. This condition is required to be addressed prior to 
commencement in order that the ability to discharge its requirement is not prejudiced by 
the carrying out of building works or other operations on the site.   
 

20. Prior to the commencement of any site clearance works a removal/eradication 
programme shall be implemented to remove the stand of Japanese knotweed and the 
false acacia tree from the site in accordance with details including a method statement, 
measures to prevent the spread of Japanese knotweed and timescales which shall have 

Page 76



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: In accordance with the terms of the application, enhance the biodiversity on the 
site and to comply with Policy CS7 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012, Circular 06/05 
Biodiversity and Geological Conservation and the policies in the NPPF. This condition is 
required to be addressed prior to commencement in order that the ability to discharge its 
requirement is not prejudiced by the carrying out of building works or other operations 
on the site.   
 

21. The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in 
accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) reference: Brookwood Lye Flood 
Risk Assessment dated December 2019 undertaken by SLR and the following mitigation 
measures detailed within the FRA:  
 

1. Finished floor levels of the proposed replacement dwelling and garden 
outbuilding are set no lower than 38.508 metres above Ordnance Datum 

2. Finished floor levels of the static mobile homes on each pitch should be set 
no lower than 38.806 metres above Ordnance Datum.  

   
Reason: to reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future 
occupants and to comply with Policy CS9 of the Woking Core Strategy and the NPPF.  
 

22. No development shall commence, except for demolition and above ground site 
clearance works, until construction drawings of the approved surface water drainage 
network in accordance with the Drainage Strategy response details and all plans 
contained therein, by SLR dated 14.05.2020 ref: 407.06583.00008 received by the LPA 
on 20.01.2021, associated sustainable drainage components, flow control mechanisms 
and a detailed construction method statement have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall then be constructed in 
accordance with the approved drawings, method statement and Micro drainage 
calculations prior to the first use of the development hereby approved. No alteration to 
the approved drainage scheme shall occur without prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability and 
to comply with Policies CS9 and CS16 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the 
policies in the NPPF. 
 

23. Prior to first use of the development hereby approved details of the maintenance and 
management of the sustainable drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage scheme shall be implemented 
and thereafter managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details in 
perpetuity. The Local Planning Authority shall be granted access to inspect the 
sustainable drainage scheme for the lifetime of the development.  The details of the 
scheme to be submitted for approval shall include: 
 

I.             a timetable for its implementation, 
II.         details of SuDS features and connecting drainage structures and maintenance 
requirement for each aspect 
III.           a table to allow the recording of each inspection and maintenance activity, as 
well as allowing any faults to be recorded and actions taken to rectify issues; and  
IV.          a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development 
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public body or statutory 

Page 77



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

undertaker, or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the sustainable 
drainage scheme throughout its lifetime.  

 
Reason: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability 
continues to be maintained as agreed for the lifetime of the development and to comply 
with Policies CS9 and CS16 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and policies in the 
NPPF. 
 

24. Prior to first use of the development hereby approved a verification report, (appended 
with substantiating evidence demonstrating the approved construction details and 
specifications have been implemented in accordance with the surface water drainage 
scheme), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The verification report shall include photographs of excavations and soil 
profiles/horizons, any installation of any surface water structure and Control mechanism. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability and 
to comply with Policies CS9 and CS16 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the 
policies in the NPPF. 
 

25. Any existing hard surface (and its associated sub-base) within any area of the site to be 
utilised as gardens, landscaping, open space or as a permeable surface/construction 
shall be demolished and all debris removed from the site concurrently with the 
implementation of the development hereby permitted. A verification report for this, 
appended with substantiating evidence shall be will need to be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority within 3 months of the first occupation of the development hereby by 
approved.  
 
Reason: These areas are intended to be free-draining and to ensure the drainage 
strategy set out in the application is adhered to in order to reduce flood risk. 
 

26. Protective measures shall be carried out in strict accordance with the Arboricultural 
Information provided by David Archer Associates (DAA AIR AMS 02 March 2017 
(except for the enclosed Tree Protection Plan) received on 20.11.2017, the Additional 
Arboricultural Information received by email on 17.04.2020 and the revised Tree 
Protection Plan, including ground protection received on 20.01.2021 including the 
convening of a pre-commencement meeting and arboricultural supervision as indicated. 
No works or demolition shall take place until the tree protection measures have been 
implemented. Any deviation from the works prescribed or methods agreed in the report 
will require prior written approval from the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To ensure reasonable measures are taken to safeguard trees in the interest of 
local amenity and the enhancement of the development itself.  
 

27. Any works within the root protection areas of any retained trees within or adjacent to the 
site shall be undertaken under full arboricultural supervision. The construction of any 
hard surfaces within root protection areas shall be undertaken using no-dig techniques, 
the full details of which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development hereby permitted shall only take place in 
accordance with the approved details.  
 
Reason: To ensure the retention and protection of trees to be retained on the site in the 
interests of the visual amenities of the locality and the appearance of the development 
and ecology and to comply with Policies CS7 and CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 
2012 and the NPPF. 
 

Page 78



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

28. Any scrub, hedgerow and tree clearance must be undertaken outside the bird breeding 
season (March to August inclusive) unless the applicant has first carried out a survey of 
such vegetation which shows that there are no nesting species within relevant parts of 
the application site and any such survey results have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To prevent birds being injured or killed during site clearance works and to 
comply Policy CS7 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012, Circular 06/05 Biodiversity and 
Geological Conservation and the NPPF. 

 
29. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until the 

proposed vehicular access to Brookwood Lye Road has been constructed and provided 
with visibility zones in accordance with the approved plans and thereafter the visibility 
zones shall be kept permanently clear of any obstruction measured from 0.6 metres 
above the road surface.  
 
Reason: In order that the development does not prejudice highway safety nor cause 
inconvenience to other highway users and to comply with Policy CS18 of the Woking 
Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF.    
 

30. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until the 
existing access from the site to Brookwood Lye Road has been permanently closed and 
any kerbs, verge, footway, fully reinstated.  
 
Reason: In order that the development does not prejudice highway safety nor cause 
inconvenience to other highway users and to comply with Policy CS18 of the Woking 
Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF.    
 

31. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until space has 
been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans for vehicles to be 
parked and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave the site in forward gear. 
Thereafter the parking and turning areas shall be retained and maintained for their 
designated purposes.  
 
Reason: In order that the development does not prejudice highway safety nor cause 
inconvenience to other highway users and to comply with Policy CS18 of the Woking 
Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF.    
 

32. No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management Plan, to 
include details of:  
(a) Parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors; 
(b) Loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
(c) Storage of plant and materials;  
(d) Measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway;  
(e) On-site turning for construction vehicles 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the 
approved details shall be implemented during the construction of the development.  
 
Reason: In order that the development does not prejudice highway safety nor cause 
inconvenience to other highway users and to comply with Policy CS18 of the Woking 
Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF. This condition is required to be addressed prior to 
commencement in order that the ability to discharge its requirement is not prejudiced by 
the carrying out of building works or other operations on the site.    
  

Page 79



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

33. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until the 
following facilities have been provided in accordance with details which shall have first 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for:  
(a) Providing an uncontrolled crossing point with dropped kerbs and tactile paving on 

Brookwood Lye Road; 
(b) Providing a new 2 metre wide footway along the frontage of the site 
and thereafter the said approved facilities shall be provided, retained and maintained in 
accordance with the approved details.  
 
Reason: To promote sustainable travel choices and to provide pedestrian linkages to 
Brookwood and to comply with Policy CS18 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the 
NPPF.   
 

34. No above ground development associated with the development hereby permitted shall 
commence until details and/or samples and a written specification of the materials to be 
used in the external elevations of the buildings (dwelling, outbuilding, sheds and utility 
buildings) hereby permitted and hard surfaced areas have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried 
out and thereafter retained in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the local planning authority 
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and in accordance with 
Policy CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF. 
 

35. Soft landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season (November - March) 
following the substantial completion of the development or prior to the first occupation of 
the site (whichever is the sooner) in accordance with a landscaping scheme which 
specifies species, planting sizes, spaces and numbers of trees/ shrubs and hedges to 
be planted which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and include the area of open space. Following planting, the 
landscaping shall be maintained thereafter and any retained or newly planted trees, 
shrubs or hedges which die, become seriously damaged or diseased or are removed or 
destroyed within a period of 5 years from the date of planting shall be replaced during 
the next planting season with specimens of the same size and species unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The area annotated as open space on 
the approved plans shall thereafter be made available for use by the occupiers of the 
site for the lifetime of the development.  
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and biodiversity and to preserve and enhance the 
character and appearance of the locality.  
 

36. No external lighting shall be installed on the land until details of any external lighting in 
accordance with the recommendations of the Bat Conservation Trusts' document 
entitled "Bats and Lighting in the UK - Bats and the Built Environment Series" (and also 
ensuring compliance with the recommendations of the Institute of Lighting Engineers 
'Guidance Notes for Reduction of Light Pollution' and the provisions of BS 5489 Part 9) 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any 
lighting on the site shall thereafter be installed and maintained in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
Reason: To preserve the character and appearance of the surrounding area and the 
residential amenities of neighbouring properties in accordance with Policies CS6, CS21 
and CS24 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012. 
 

Page 80



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

37. No plant and equipment associated with air moving equipment, compressors, 
generators or plant or similar equipment shall be sited on the land until details of such 
equipment, including acoustic specifications, have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such equipment shall thereafter be installed and 
maintained in accordance with the agreed details. 
 
Reason: To preserve the character and appearance of the surrounding area and the 
residential amenities of neighbouring properties in accordance with Policies CS6, CS21 
and CS24 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012. 
 

38. Prior to the first occupation of the dwelling and each pitch, a means of enclosure to each 
pitch, to the boundaries to the rear and sides of the dwelling and the boundaries of the 
site shall be installed in accordance with full design details which shall have first been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the 
means of enclosure shall be retained and maintained in accordance with the approved 
details.   
 
Reason: To preserve the character and appearance of the area in accordance with 
Policies CS14, CS21 and CS24 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012. 
 

39. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3, Schedule 2, Part 2, Class A of The Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as 
amended), (or any order(s) amending or re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification(s)) no further means of enclosure (including walls, fencing and gates) shall 
be erected, installed or otherwise placed on the land other than those means of 
enclosure as approved by the Local Planning Authority under Condition 38 without 
planning permission being first obtained from the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the area and to ensure a satisfactory form of 
development in accordance with Policies CS6, CS14, CS21 and CS24 of the Woking 
Core Strategy 2012. 

 
40. The finished floor levels of the two storey dwelling and the utility buildings for each pitch 

hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the proposed finished floor 
levels as shown on the approved plans unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity and drainage and flood risk and to comply 
with Policies CS9, CS14 and CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy and the NPPF.  
 

41. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied until all existing means of 
enclosure including any gates, walls and fences along the frontage of the site, adjacent 
to Brookwood Lye Road have been permanently removed from the site.  
 
Reason: To preserve the character and appearance of the area in accordance with 
Policies CS14, CS21 and CS24 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012. 
 

42. Prior to the commencement any above ground works in connection with the two storey 
dwelling hereby permitted, written evidence shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA) demonstrating that the development will: 

a. Achieve a minimum of a 19% improvement in the dwelling emission rate over the 
target emission rate, as defined in the Building Regulations for England Approved 
Document L1A: Conservation of Fuel and Power in New Dwellings (2013 edition). 
Such evidence shall be in the form of a Design Stage Standard Assessment 
Procedure (SAP) Assessment, produced by an accredited energy assessor; and, 

Page 81



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

b. Achieve a maximum water use of no more than 110 litres per person per day as 
defined in paragraph 36(2b) of the Building Regulations 2010 (as amended), 
measured in accordance with the methodology set out in Approved Document G 
(2015 edition).  Such evidence shall be in the form of a Design Stage water efficiency 
calculator.  
 

Development shall be carried out wholly in accordance with the agreed details and 
maintained as such in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability and 
makes efficient use of resources and to comply with policy CS22 of the Woking Core 
Strategy 2012.  
 

43. The two storey dwelling hereby permitted shall not be occupied until written 
documentary evidence has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority demonstrating that the development has: 

a. Achieved a minimum of a 19% improvement in the dwelling emission rate over the 
target emission rate, as defined in the Building Regulations for England Approved 
Document L1A: Conservation of Fuel and Power in New Dwellings (2013 edition).  
Such evidence shall be in the form of an As Built Standard Assessment Procedure 
(SAP) Assessment, produced by an accredited energy assessor; and 
b. Achieved a maximum water use of 110 litres per person per day as defined in 
paragraph 36(2b) of the Building Regulations 2010 (as amended).  Such evidence 
shall be in the form of the notice given under Regulation 37 of the Building 
Regulations. 

 
Development shall be carried out wholly in accordance with the agreed details and 
maintained as such in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability and 
makes efficient use of resources and to comply with policy CS22 of the Woking Core 
Strategy 2012. 
 

44. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification) no development falling within Classes 
A, AA, B, E, and F of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of that Order shall occur within the residential 
curtilage of the dwelling hereby approved without the prior written permission of the 
Local Planning Authority following an application made for that purpose. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the occupants of neighbouring properties, 
in the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that any matters relating to flood risk and 
drainage are adequately considered and to comply with Policies CS9 and CS21 of the 
Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF.   
 

45. The residential curtilage for the two storey dwelling hereby permitted shall be formed by 
the red line showing the plot boundary as shown on the approved site plan (BLR-WBR-
00-XX-DR-A-13301 Rev P12) received on 20.01.2021 and shall not be altered in any 
way without the prior express permission of the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the occupants of neighbouring properties, 
in the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that any matters relating to flood risk and 
drainage are adequately considered and to comply with Policies CS9 and CS21 of the 
Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF.   
 

Page 82



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

Informatives 
 

1. The applicant is advised that this permission is subject to a S106 Legal Agreement.  
 

2. Where land is used as a caravan site, the owner must hold a caravan site licence which 
is subject to site licence conditions in accordance with The Caravan Sites and Control of 
Development Act 1960. An application for a caravan site licence can be made online at 
www.woking.gov.uk prior to the occupation of the site. Any enquiries or for further 
information, please contact Environmental Health 01483 743840. 
 

3. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried from the 
site and deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned wheels or badly loaded 
vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek, wherever possible, to recover any expenses 
incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing highway surfaces and prosecutes persistent 
offenders (Highways Act 1980 Sections 131,148 and 149).  

 
4. The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out any 

works on the highway. The applicant is advised that prior approval must be obtained 
from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath, 
carriageway or verge to form a vehicle crossover to install dropped kerbs. Please see 
www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/vehicle-
crossovers-or-dropped-kerbs. 

 
5. When a temporary access is approved or an access is to be closed as a condition of 

planning permission and agreement with, or licence issued by, the Highway Authority 
Local Highways Service will require that the redundant dropped kerb be raised and any 
verge or footway crossing be reinstated to conform with the existing adjoining surfaces 
at the developers expense.  

 
6. The developer is advised that as part of the detailed design of the highway works 

required by the above conditions, the County Highway Authority may require necessary 
accommodation works to street lights, road signs, surface edge restraints and any other 
street furniture/equipment.  

 
7. The Contaminated Land Officer would like to draw the applicants/agents/consultants 

attention to the specifics of the contaminated land conditional wording such as ‘prior to 
commencement’,  ‘prior to occupation’ and ‘provide a minimum of two weeks notice’.   
The submission of information not in accordance with the specifics of the planning 
conditional wording can lead to delays in discharging conditions, potentially result in 
conditions being unable to be discharged or even enforcement action should the 
required level of evidence/information be unable to be supplied.  All relevant information 
should be formally submitted to the Local Planning Authority and not direct to the 
Contaminated Land Officer. 

 
8. There are public sewers crossing or close to your development. If you're planning 

significant work near our sewers, it's important that you minimize the risk of damage. 
We’ll need to check that your development doesn’t reduce capacity, limit repair or 
maintenance activities, or inhibit the services we provide in any other way. The applicant 
is advised to read our guide working near or diverting our pipes. 
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-your-
development/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes 

 

Page 83

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/vehicle-crossovers-or-dropped-kerbs
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/vehicle-crossovers-or-dropped-kerbs
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-your-development/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-your-development/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes


23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

9. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from 
Thames Water Developer Services will be required. Should you require further 
information please refer to our website.  
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-for-
services/Wastewater-services 

 
10. A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be required for 

discharging groundwater into a public sewer. Any discharge made without a permit is 
deemed illegal and may result in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry 
Act 1991. We would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures he will 
undertake to minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer.  Permit enquiries 
should be directed to Thames Water’s Risk Management Team by telephoning 
02035779483 or by emailing wwqriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk. Application 
forms should be completed on line via www.thameswater.co.uk/wastewaterquality   

 
11. The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has worked with the 

applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the requirements of the NPPF.  
 
12. You are advised that Council officers may undertake inspections without prior warning to 

check compliance with approved plans and to establish that all planning conditions are 
being complied with in full. Inspections may be undertaken both during and after 
construction. 

 
13. The applicant is advised that the elevations of the proposed dwelling are labelled 

incorrectly, except for the front elevation, but the floorplans show which is the respective 
elevation. 

 
14. The applicant is advised that there is no implied approval for any development shown 

outside of this application site as may be shown on the plans submitted with this 
application.  

 

Page 84

https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-for-services/Wastewater-services
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-for-services/Wastewater-services
http://www.thameswater.co.uk/wastewaterquality


ITEM 6b – PLAN/2017/1307

Part Of 5 Acres And Land To South Of 
Brookwood Lye Road, Woking.

Demolition of an existing one-storey dwelling and ancillary 
structures associated with the existing caravan park (SG) which 
provides 13 permanent and 2 temporary pitches at Five Acres, 

to construct a replacement two-storey dwelling and a 
replacement caravan park comprised of 19 permanent pitches 

with hard and soft landscaping and relocated access 
(Amended/additional information/plans received 20 January 

2021)

Slide 13  

P
age 85



Site Location Plan – PLAN/2017/1307
Slide 14 

P
age 86



Existing Dwelling – PLAN/2017/1307
Slide 15 

P
age 87



Proposed Site Plan – PLAN/2017/1307
Slide 16

Extract Showing pitches 

2 and 4

P
age 88



Cross Sections – PLAN/2017/1307
Slide 17 

Section facing East – Dwelling outlined and Pitches 19-14 

Section facing East – Dwelling and Pitches 1-11

P
age 89



Cross Sections  – PLAN/2017/1307
Slide18  

Section 

facing 

North 

(through 

centre of 

site)

Section along Southern boundary of site facing North

Section facing West from internal access road 

P
age 90



Utility Buildings – PLAN/2017/1307
Slide 19 

P
age 91



Proposed Dwelling Elevations –

PLAN/2017/1307

Slide 20 

P
age 92



Proposed Dwelling Floor Plans –

PLAN/2017/1307

Slide 21 

P
age 93



Aerial Photograph of site – PLAN/2017/1307

Slide 22

P
age 94



Aerial Photograph of site – PLAN/2017/1307

Slide 23

P
age 95



Aerial Photograph of site – PLAN/2017/1307

Slide 24

P
age 96



Street View of site – PLAN/2017/1307

Slide 25

P
age 97





Fairfield, Sun Hill, Hook 
Heath, Woking.

PLAN/2020/1037

Erection of first floor extension to existing bungalow to form two storey dwelling, and 
associated remodelling to dwelling and existing detached garage.

Page 99

Agenda Item 6c





Page 101





23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

6c PLAN/2020/1037     WARD: Heathlands 
 
 
LOCATION:  Fairfield, Sun Hill, Hook Heath, Woking, Surrey, GU22 0QL 
 
 
PROPOSAL: Erection of first floor extension to existing bungalow to form two 

storey dwelling, and associated remodelling to dwelling and 
existing detached garage. 

 
 
APPLICANT:  Elizabeth Slater   OFFICER: James Kidger 
 
 

 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
 
The application is brought before the Committee at the request of Councillor Ashall. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

 
Planning permission is sought to remove the pitched roofs to the dwelling and garage, add an 
additional storey to the dwelling, and to remodel both in a contemporary style. 
 
PLANNING STATUS 
 

 Conservation Area 

 Escarpment 

 Hook Heath Neighbourhood Area 

 Green Belt 

 Tree Preservation Order 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Grant planning permission subject to conditions. 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The property is a single storey detached dwelling at the south end of Sun Hill. The land is part 
of an escarpment and slopes steeply up to the north, away from the site toward Hook Heath 
Road. The dwelling itself is partially set into the base of the hill and the remainder of the 
curtilage is on a plateau. The site lies wholly within the Green Belt, is covered by a tree 
preservation order (TPO), and is part of the Fishers Hill Conservation Area. A number of 
nearby dwellings are locally listed. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 

 

 77/718 – detached bungalow and garage – approved August 1977. 

 PLAN/1987/0846 – hipped roof to garage – approved 8th October 1987. 

 PLAN/2011/0723 – loft conversion – approved 4th October 2011. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 

 Arboriculture – No objection subject to compliance with submitted arboricultural report. 

Page 103



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 

 Heritage Consultant – No objection (quoted in detail below). 
 

 Hook Heath Neighbourhood Forum – Objection as the application does not comply 
with the Hook Heath Neighbourhood Plan. 

 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Four (4) representations have been received objecting to the proposed development, for the 
following reasons: 
 

 The development would detract from views of the escarpment; 

 The development would be out of keeping with the Conservation Area; 

 The development would be out of keeping with the Arcadian character of the 
Conservation Area and Hook Heath as a whole; 

 The design, form and materials used would not be in harmony with the neighbouring 
locally listed buildings; 

 The development would result in a materially larger building which may be 
inappropriate within the Green Belt; 

 The extension would be disproportionate and no very special circumstances have 
been advanced; 

 The development would neither preserve nor enhance the Conservation Area; 

 The development would detract from the character of the area; 

 The additional storey would overlook Hook Hill Cottage; 

 Breach of covenant; and 

 Difficulty of construction traffic accessing the site. 
 
Officer note: covenants and construction matters are not material planning considerations. 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY 

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019): 
Section 2 – Achieving sustainable development 
Section 9 – Promoting sustainable transport 
Section 12 – Achieving well-designed places 
Section 13 – Protecting Green Belt land 
Section 15 – Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
Section 16 – Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
 
Development Management Policies DPD (2016): 
DM2 – Trees and landscaping 
DM13 – Buildings in and adjacent to the Green Belt 
DM20 – Heritage Assets and their Settings 
 
Woking Core Strategy (2012): 
CS6 – Green Belt 
CS18 – Transport and accessibility  
CS20 – Heritage and conservation 
CS21 – Design 
CS24 – Woking’s landscape and townscape 
CS25 – Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
 
Hook Heath Neighbourhood Plan (2015): 
BE1 – Design of New Developments 

Page 104



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

BE2 – Off-road Parking 
OS1 – Amenity Value 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs): 
Parking Standards (2018) 
Woking Design (2015) 
Climate Change (2013) 
Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and Daylight (2008) 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPGs): 
Heritage of Woking (2000) 
 
 
PLANNING ISSUES 

 
1. The main planning considerations material to this application are the impact on the 

Green Belt, the design and appearance of the proposed development and its impact 
on heritage assets and the escarpment, and the impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 
Green Belt 
 
2. The proposed development would result in an approximate 29% increase in volume 

over that of the original dwelling. This is within the 20-40% guideline set out in policy 
DM13. The extension is also considered proportionate in practical terms given the 
limited increase in height set out above. There would be no conflict with paragraph 145 
of the NPPF, and no unduly detrimental impact to the openness of the Green Belt. 

 
Character and heritage assets 
 
3. The Fishers Hill Conservation Area was designated in 1992. It comprises a relatively 

narrow strip of land mostly situated on the south side of Hook Heath Road. It was 
mainly developed between 1895 and 1914 with large country houses designed by 
prominent architects, including Lutyens. The existing bungalow, however, is a post-
war infill development of no architectural merit. 

 
4. The existing structure does not contribute positively toward the Conservation Area. 

However, the design aesthetic of the proposed development would differ considerably. 
The Council’s heritage consultant has commented as follows: 

 
“The current bungalow is set in a large plot in a form of back-land position which is not 
prominent in the conservation area. I consider the very contemporary approach to 
design to be acceptable, The NPPF advises that design principles "should not stifle 
innovation", I consider this simple crisp design to not harm the appearance of this 
mixed character conservation area. Due to the flat roof the height only marginally 
increases the volume of the new building. I have no adverse comments.” 

 
5. Policy BE1 of the Hook Heath Neighbourhood Plan calls for development which 

“closely reflect[s] the existing rhythm, proportion, materials, height, scale, bulk, 
massing and storey heights of nearby buildings.” In this case however the property is 
not part of a contiguous street scene; rather, as described above, it is well contained 
within its large plot and has no close spatial relationship with any of the nearby 
dwellings. 

 

Page 105



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

6. Each of the four nearby dwellings are very different in terms of design. There is no real 
common aesthetic across the Conservation Area, except perhaps the use of pitched 
roofs (in a variety of forms). In this context it is worth noting that the existing dwelling 
is the least harmonious of all, and – hipped roof aside – bears almost no resemblance 
to the others. Its replacement would exchange one unique dwelling for another, which, 
within the confines of the large well landscaped plot would largely define its own 
character. 

 
7. Policies CS20 and DM20 of the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 

respectively largely echo Section 16 of the NPPF in calling for new development to 
“respect and enhance the character and appearance of the area” (CS20) and “preserve 
and/or enhance the heritage asset and/or its setting” (DM20). In this case and as 
described above, the proposal would exchange one unique dwelling for another. The 
resulting structure, as an example of a more modern design approach, is considered 
to have greater architectural interest than the existing and would thus make a more 
positive contribution to the Conservation Area. 

 
8. Neighbouring properties ‘South Hill’ and ‘Hook Hill Cottage’ are locally listed. The 

proposed development is not considered harmful to the setting of these buildings for 
the reasons set out above. Further, as the site is on lower ground and is well screened 
from the north the practical impact would be limited. 

 
9. It is considered that the proposed development would preserve the character and 

appearance of the heritage assets in line with local and national policy. 
 
Escarpment 
 
10. Policy OS1 of the Hook Heath Neighbourhood Plan states that development should 

“not significantly detract” from “Views from south of Hook Heath Road up the 
escarpment”. 

 
11. Due to the flat roof the proposed additional storey would only be around 1.2m higher 

than the existing roofline. The impact to longer views of the escarpment would be minor 
given that the dwelling is partially set into the base of the hill, and is not considered to 
be significantly harmful. 

 
Neighbouring amenity 
 
12. The proposed development would involve no increase in the footprint of the existing 

buildings, which are set well away from the neighbouring properties. No harmful 
overbearing impact would be facilitated. 

 
13. The dwelling is sited on ground lower than that of the neighbouring properties and the 

site is well screened with trees and hedgerows. The proposed first floor windows would 
not therefore facilitate any significantly harmful overlooking of neighbouring plots. 

 
Trees 
 
14. Trees on the site are protected by virtue of its conservation area status and also by an 

area TPO made in 1987. An arboricultural report has been submitted and is considered 
acceptable by the Council’s arborist. The content of the report will be secured by 
condition in order to prevent harm to protected trees. 

 
 
 

Page 106



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

Local Finance Considerations 
 
15. The proposed new build residential floor space would not exceed 100m² and thus 

would not be liable for a financial contribution under the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL). 

 
CONCLUSION 

 
The proposed development is not considered harmful to the character of the area and would 
preserve the heritage assets and their settings. There would be no significant impact on views 
of the escarpment or to neighbouring amenity. It is considered proportionate to the original 
dwelling and would not adversely impact the openness of the Green Belt. The application is 
therefore recommended for approval subject to conditions. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Site Photographs dated 18th December 2020. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development for which permission is hereby granted shall be commenced 
not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this 
permission. 

 
Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed below: 
 

2010-FFSH-004 Rev A – Proposed Elevations – received 17th November 2020 
2010-FFSH-005 Rev A – Proposed Elevations – received 17th November 2020 
2010-FFSH-008 Rev A – Proposed Ground Floor Plan – received 17th 
November 2020 
2010-FFSH-009 Rev A – Proposed First Floor Plan – received 17th November 
2020 
2010-FFSH-010 Rev A – Proposed Roof Plan – received 17th November 2020 
2010-FFSH-011 Rev A – Proposed Sections – received 17th November 2020 

 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is 
completed in accordance with the approved plans. 

 
3. No above ground development, aside from the removal of the existing roofs, 

shall commence until details and samples of the materials to be used in the 
external elevations have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and thereafter 
retained in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority. 

 
Reason: To protect the character and appearance of the site and the visual 
amenities of the area. 

 

Page 107



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

4. Protective measures shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
arboricultural report provided by Bucks Plant Care Ltd and received on 18th 
November 2020, including the convening of a pre-commencement meeting and 
arboricultural supervision as indicated. No works or demolition shall take place 
until the tree protection measures have been implemented. Any deviation from 
the works prescribed or methods agreed will require prior written approval from 
the Local Planning Authority.  

 
Reason: To ensure reasonable measures are taken to safeguard trees in the 
interest of local amenity and the enhancement of the development itself. 

 
Informatives: 

 
1. The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has worked 

with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the requirements 
of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. 

 
2. The applicant is advised that Council Officers may undertake inspections 

without prior warning to check compliance with approved plans and to establish 
that all planning conditions are being complied with in full. Inspections may be 
undertaken both during and after construction. 

 
3. The applicant is advised that under the Control of Pollution Act 1974, works 

which will be audible at the site boundary will be restricted to the following 
hours: 8.00 a.m. - 6.00 p.m. Monday to Friday; 8.00 a.m. - 1.00 p.m. Saturday; 
and not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 

Page 108



ITEM 6c – PLAN/2020/1037

Fairfield, Sun Hill, Hook Heath

Woking.

Erection of first floor extension to existing bungalow to form two storey 
dwelling, and associated remodelling to dwelling and existing detached 

garage.

Slide 26 

P
age 109



Location Plan – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 27

P
age 110



Aerial Photograph – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 28 

P
age 111



South Elevations – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 29 

P
age 112



North Elevations – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 30 

P
age 113



West Elevations – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 31 

P
age 114



East Elevations – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 32 

P
age 115



Visualisations – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 33 

P
age 116



Access looking south – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 34 

P
age 117



Hook Hill Cottage – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 35 

P
age 118



Access looking north – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 36 

P
age 119



Forecourt – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 37 

P
age 120



Rear – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 38 

P
age 121



Rear – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 39 

P
age 122



From public footpath – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 40

P
age 123



Google Earth image – PLAN/2020/1037

Slide 41

P
age 124



G4S Industrial Building, 
Monument Way West, 

Woking.

PLAN/2020/1136

Demolition of existing G4S building complete to slab level.  All existing perimeter 
fencing will remain except for the inner fence which creates a lobby at the site 

entrance.

Page 125

Agenda Item 6d





Page 127





8 DECEMBER 2020 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
6d PLAN/2020/1136         WARD: Canalside 
 
LOCATION: Plot 2 G4S Industrial Building, Monument Way West, Woking, GU21 5EN 
 
PROPOSAL: Prior Approval for the demolition of G4S building complete to slab level.  All 
existing perimeter fencing will remain except for the inner fence which creates a lobby at the 
site entrance. 
 
APPLICANT: Woking Borough Council    OFFICER: Bronwen Chinien 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE: 
 
Woking Borough Council is the applicant. The application therefore falls outside of the 
scheme of delegated powers.  
 
 
SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
The application seeks Prior Approval for the demolition of the building previously occupied 
by G4S at Plot 2 of Monument Way West Industrial Estate, under the provisions of, Class B 
(demolition of buildings) Part 11, Article 3, Schedule 2 of The Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended). 
 

The application was received on 10.12.2020 and the Local Planning Authority (LPA) has 28 
days in which to make a decision as to whether the Prior Approval of the authority will be 
required as to the method of demolition and any proposed restoration of the site. In this 
instance, the applicant has agreed to an extension of time to allow the application to be 
determined.   
 
 
PLANNING STATUS 
 

 Urban Area 

 Employment Area 

 High Pressure Gas Main 

 Maybury and Sheerwater ‘Priority Place’ 

 Thames Basin Heaths SPA ZoneB (400m-5km) 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Prior Approval not required. 
 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The proposal relates to Plot 2 G4S Industrial Building, Monument Way West, on the 
‘Wintonlea Industrial Estate’.  
 
Plot 2 G4S Industrial Building is a part single part two storey commercial use building.  The 
building is understood to be a former money exchange depot which is no longer in use.  

Page 129



8 DECEMBER 2020 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
The site is generally rectangular with an indentation at the north, where there is a 
telecommunications mast which is not part of the application. 
 
The building dates from is finished in facing bricks with two juxtaposed mono-pitched roofs. 
There is hardstanding surrounding the main building, providing on-site parking. The site 
boundary has a high security perimeter metal fence structure, consisting of an inner and 
outer fence.  
 
The site is bounded by the Basingstoke canal to the north, Monument Way West to the 
south and commercial units to the east and west.   
 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The site has an extensive planning history. A summary of the most significant is set out 
below: 
 
PLAN/2001/0791 - The installation of 9 cross polar antennae and 2 transmission dishes at 
21m high on the existing lattice mast. An equipment Cabin, measuring 3.7m x 2.5m x 2.8m, 
will also be installed adjacent to the mast, and boundary fence at ground level. 
Permitted (Prior approval) – 10.09.2001 
 
PLAN/2001/0627 - Installation of 4 equipment cabins and 4 dishes with ancillary equipment 
at existing orange telecommunications site. 
Permitted (Prior approval) - 26.06.2001 
 
PLAN/2020/0847 - Proposed alterations to glazing/doorway to entrance lobby on front 
elevation of the building and installation of a new non-illuminated fascia sign to replace 
existing.  
Permitted  - 02.10.2000 
 
PLAN/2000/0493 - Erection of a 3m high palisade fence to the front of the site. (Amendment 
to 2000/0131). 
Permitted - 05.07.2000 
 
PLAN/2000/0131 - Erection of a 2400mm high palisade fence to the front of the site. 
Permitted – 03.04.2000 
 
PLAN/1993/0626 - Replacement of existing 100ft radio communications free standing lattice 
tower with a new tower located 10m to the east of the current location 
Permitted – 01.10.1993 
 
85/0803 –  Erection 20 factory units together with area at west end of site and associated 
access roads and offices  
Permitted 
 
85/0494 – Erection of 2810 sq m of light industrial premises and 411 sq m of offices 
together with associated car parking and access.  
Permitted 
 
 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 

Page 130



8 DECEMBER 2020 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

No consultations are required for this type of application. However, in order to be thorough 
the following consultations were made in any case: 
 
County Highway Authority (SCC): The application site is accessed via Monument Way 
West, which is a private road and does not form part of the public highway, therefore it falls 
outside The County Highway Authority's jurisdiction. The County Highway Authority has 
considered the wider impact of the proposed development and considers that it would not 
have a material impact on the safety and operation of the adjoining public highway. 
 
Environmental Health: Response received; no objection raised 
 
Surrey Wildlife Trust: No response received at the time of writing. The Committee will be 
updated verbally with any future response. 

 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
The LPA is not required to notify neighbours as part of this type of application. However, it 
does require the developer to display a site notice for a minimum period of 21 days of the 28 
days beginning with the date on which the application was submitted to the LPA. 
 
PLANNING ISSUES 
 
1. Under the provisions of Class B (demolition of buildings), Part 11, Article 3, Schedule 

2 of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) 
Order 2015 (as amended), the LPA has 28 days to determine whether Prior Approval 
will be required for (1) the method of demolition and (2) any proposed restoration 
of the site. Under Class B these are the only two matters which can be 
considered. No other planning considerations such as the principle of demolition or 
impact on parking provision can be undertaken. The applicant is only required to 
submit a written description of the proposed demolition works and confirmation that a 
notice has been displayed at the site. There is no requirement for the LPA to 
undertake any public consultation. The agent has submitted photographic evidence 
confirming that a site notice has been displayed and this has been confirmed during 
the officer’s site visit.  
 

2. A description of the development (demolition) has been given in the application form, 
stating that the method of demolition will involve asbestos removal and air testing 
(informed by an Asbestos survey, as submitted) and a subsequent soft strip of the 
building, followed by the dismantling of the building including existing ground floor 
concrete vaults, using mechanical equipment.  The restoration of the site would 
involve the retention of the existing floor slab and all external service yard slabs.  Spoil 
will be removed off site by the Demolition Contractors for recycling or to a licensed tip. 

 
3. It is noted that the submitted information is high level and is not prescriptive about the 

exact methodology for demolition. However, as the site is located within an existing 
industrial area, not in close proximity to residential dwellings or public highway and is 
not a heritage asset, it is considered that the submission of further details is not 
required. Prior Approval of full details is not therefore considered to be required.  

 
OTHER MATTERS 

 
4. The impact of noise emission, dust emission and working hours would be covered by 

Environmental Health legislation. Asbestos has been identified within the building and 
its removal will be covered by the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012. 

Page 131



8 DECEMBER 2020 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
5. An Ecological Survey and Assessment has been submitted with the application which 

concludes there to be negligible potential for badgers, bats, bird species or reptiles to 
be present on the site itself. The site is in close proximity to the Basingstoke Canal 
SSSI and recommendations are contained in the ecology report in regards to the 
prevention of pollution and avoidance of disturbance to adjoining habitats.  

 
6. No objections are raised and the Prior Approval of further details is not required in this 

instance. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Prior Approval not required. 
 
Informatives 
 
01. The documents considered as part of this application are listed below: 

 

 Site Location Plan received by the LPA on 10/12/2020 

 Application Form received by the LPA on 10/12/2020 

 Asbestos Survey received by the LPA on 10/12/2020 

 Ecological Survey and Assessment dated December 2020 received by the 
LPA on 10/12/2020 

 Copy (Photo) of the agent’s Site Notice received by the LPA on 15/12/2020 
 

02. The applicant's attention is drawn to Sections 60 and 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 
1974 and the associated British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984 "Noise 
Control on Construction and Open Sites" (with respect to the statutory provision 
relating to the control of noise on construction and demolition sites). If work is to be 
carried out outside normal working hours, (i.e. 8 am to 6 p.m. Monday to Friday, 8 am 
to 1 p.m. Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays) prior consent should 
be obtained from the Council's Environmental Health Service prior to commencement 
of works. 

 
03. The applicant is advised that adequate control precautions should be taken in order to 

control noise emissions from any fixed plant, including generators, on site during 
demolition activities. This may require the use of quiet plant or ensuring that the plant 
is sited appropriately and / or adequately attenuated. Exhaust emissions from such 
plant should be vented to atmosphere such that fumes do not ingress into any 
property. Due to the proximity of residential accommodation there should be no 
burning of waste material on site. During demolition phases, adequate control 
precautions should be taken in order to control the spread of dust on the site, so as to 
prevent a nuisance to residents within the locality. This may involve the use of dust 
screens and/ or utilising water supply to wet areas of the site to inhibit dust. 

 
04. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried from 

the site and deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned wheels or badly 
loaded vehicles.  The Highway Authority will seek, wherever possible, to recover any 
expenses incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing highway surfaces and prosecutes 
persistent offenders.  (Highways Act 1980 Sections 131, 148, 149).  

 

Page 132



8 DECEMBER 2020 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

05. The application site is located in the vicinity of an underground High Pressure Gas 
Main. Prior to commencing works, the applicant is advised to liaise with relevant 
parties to ensure the works can be undertaken satisfactorily.  

 

 
 

Page 133





ITEM 6d – PLAN/2020/1136

Plot 2 G4S Industrial Building, 
Monument Way West, Woking.

Demolition of existing G4S building complete to slab level.  All 
existing perimeter fencing will remain except for the inner fence 

which creates a lobby at the site entrance.

Slide 42 

P
age 135



– PLAN/2020/1136

Slide 43 

Basingstoke Canal

Industrial Estate Access via  Boundary Rd, Maybury

P
age 136



– PLAN/2020/1136

Slide 44 

Building to be 

demolished to slab 

level

Perimeter fence to 

remain

(Mast beyond site 

boundary)

P
age 137



– PLAN/2020/1136

Slide 45 

Perimeter fence to 

remain

P
age 138



– PLAN/2020/1136

Slide 46 

P
age 139



– PLAN/2020/1136

Slide 47 

 No objections or representations 

received

 Method of demolition and proposed 

restoration of the site – acceptable

 Prior approval of further details is 

therefore NOT required

P
age 140



23 Oriental Road, 
Woking.

PLAN/2020/1095

Erection of a part two storey, part single storey side extension with 2x side rooflights 
following demolition of detached garage to form an attached annex supplementary to 
the main dwelling (amended description).

Page 141

Agenda Item 6e





Page 143





23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
6e PLAN/2020/1095      WARD: Mount Hermon 
 
LOCATION: 23 Oriental Close, Woking, Surrey, GU22 7AH 
 
PROPOSAL: Erection of a part two storey, part single storey side extension with 2x side 
rooflights following demolition of detached garage to form an attached annex supplementary 
to the main dwelling (amended description). 
 
APPLICANT: Mrs L Pereira     OFFICER: Emily Fitzpatrick 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE: 
 
The applicant is a member of staff at Woking Borough Council. 
 
SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
The proposal is for a part single-storey, part two-storey side extension following demolition 
of a detached garage to accommodate an internal annexe.  
 
PLANNING STATUS 
 

 Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km) 

 Urban Areas 

 Woking Town Centre 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
GRANT planning permission subject to conditions. 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The application site comprises one of a uniform pair of semi-detached dwellings along 
Oriental Road. The dwelling is designed in white render with a modest two-storey gable 
feature across both dwellings which is subordinate to the overall roof ridge. The dwelling 
has a hipped roof. A single-storey rear extension serves the rear elevation. The application 
site has a detached garage to the right-hand side when viewed from the front elevation 
(subject to the application). Hardstanding is in-situ to the front to accommodate parking 
provision.  
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 

 DC 79/1459 Erection single storey extension (permitted) 
 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
None 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
None received.  
 

Page 145



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2019): 
Section 2– Achieving Sustainable Development 
Section 4- Decision making 
Section 12- Achieving well-designed places 
 
Woking Core Strategy (2012): 
CS21- Design 
CS25- Presumption in favour of sustainable development  
 
Woking Development Management Policies Development Plan Document (2016): 
DM9- Flats above shops and ancillary accommodation 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs): 
Parking Standards SPD (2018) 
Woking Design (2015) 
Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and Daylight (2008) 
 
PLANNING ISSUES 
 
Impact on Character of the Area 
 
1. Woking’s Design SPD says the additional mass should respect the existing building 

proportions, symmetry and balance. Side extensions are often the most convenient 
extension but can have significant impact on the character of streets. Proposals must 
maintain rhythm and visual separation. Extensions should not result in unbalanced or 
disproportionate frontages.  

 
2. The proposed extensions would replace the existing detached garage. The proposed 

part single-storey side extension would be at maximum approximately 3.4m in length 
serving the front elevation and 3m in length serving the rear. The proposed depth would 
be approximately 11m. The proposed height of the ground floor side extension would 
be approximately 3.6m measured to the roof ridge. The proposed part two-storey side 
extension would be at maximum approximately 2.6m in length serving the front 
elevation and 2.1m serving the rear elevation. The proposed length would be 
approximately 7.8m.  The proposed height would match the overall ridge height of the 
host dwelling.  

 
3. The proposed roof form would see an extension to the host dwelling. The proposed 

materials would be render to match the host dwelling. Two roof lights are proposed to 
the first floor side elevation (east). The proposed part ground floor side extension would 
have a flat roof when viewed from the rear elevation and a pitched roof serving the front 
elevation. 

 
4. The proposed two-storey side extension would be set back approximately 0.5m from 

the gable feature serving the front elevation. The proposed part first floor side extension 
would be set in from the part ground floor side extension. Whilst the proposal would not 
be subordinate to the host dwelling by virtue of height, the proposed design would be 
sympathetic to the host dwelling. The proposed materials would be in keeping with the 
host and the setting in of the part first floor omits any terracing effect. It is 
acknowledged that there are various dwelling types and design along Oriental Close. 
Therefore, the proposal would not harm the character of area or cause adverse impact 

Page 146



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

to the street scene. The proposal would be considered acceptable on the character and 
appearance of the area. 

 
Annexe Accommodation 
 
5. Policy DM9 says ancillary residential extensions, including ‘granny annexes’ and staff 

accommodation, designed in accordance with Core Strategy policy CS21 and the 
Council’s Design SPD, will be permitted provided they share a common access with the 
main dwelling and are physically incorporated within it, and are designed in such a way 
that renders them incapable of being occupied seperately from the main dwelling. 

 
6. The proposal would see the part single-storey, part two-storey side extensions 

accommodate an annexe following the demolition of garage. The proposal would 
include a lounge, shower room serving the ground floor, an independent staircase 
serving the ground and first floor. The proposed first floor would accommodate a 
dressing room and bedroom. Access into the annexe would be via the host dwelling. 
The annexe would have internal links with the host dwelling and would rely upon the 
kitchen serving the host dwelling. The annexe would have access to the shared amenity 
space from the rear. Vehicular access would be shared with the host dwelling.  

 
7. Furthermore the proposed annexe would not have separate access and would require 

dependency on the host dwelling. Supporting information has been submitted setting 
out that the intended occupier would be an elderly relative. The proposed layout would 
provide them with some independence. At present the intended occupier can use the 
stairs, however the proposed lounge space given the generous size could 
accommodate a bed in the future. The proposal would be designed in such a way that 
would render the annexe incapable of being occupied separately from the main 
dwelling. A condition would be imposed to ensure the annex cannot be occupied 
separately. The proposal would be considered acceptable with regards to Policy DM9. 

 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
8. The proposed rear flank wall serving the ground floor side extension would be 

approximately 9.7m from the rear boundary to the north. The boundary screening 
comprises of dense vegetation and would be acceptable. The proposed ground floor 
side extension would be approximately 0.1m from the shared boundary with No.25 
(east). No openings are proposed along this elevation. Boundary screening comprises 
of timber fencing. The proposal would conflict with the recommended minimum 
separation distance of achieving privacy of 1m. Fortunately a semi-detached garage 
serves the adjacent side elevation. A ground floor window serves the side elevation of 
No.25, of what appears to serve a utility room taking a pragmatic approach as an 
identical dwelling to the application site. The proposed part ground-floor side extension 
would fail the 25° splayline test on both plan and elevation regarding daylight to this 
window. However the application site as existing would fail this window which serves a 
utility and so the proposal would not exacerbate existing levels of daylight. The 
proposed part first-floor side extension would pass the 25° splayline test on plan and 
fail on elevation. The proposal would be considered acceptable regarding this window. 
 

9. The proposed flank wall serving the part first floor side extension would be 
approximately 1m from the shared boundary to the east. No openings are proposed 
along this elevation. Two windows serve the first floor side elevation to No.25. The 
proposal would fail the 25° splayline test on plan and elevation form regarding both side 
windows serving No.25. However, these windows accommodate a bathroom and 
landing. Officers acknowledge the proposal would cause an impact to daylight serving 

Page 147



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

these windows, however given both windows do not accommodate habitable rooms the 
proposal would not be considered to cause an adverse impact to the detriment of 
existing or future occupiers regarding daylight or amenity and would be acceptable. The 
proposal would be approximately 3m from the front elevation (south), given the 
proposal would not project forwards of the existing elevation the proposal would not 
exacerbate existing outlook and would be acceptable.   

 
Impact on Car Parking Provision & the Highway 
 
10. The proposal would see the provision of an additional bedroom, with four in total and 

the loss of a semi-detached garage. However, in accordance with the Parking 
Standards SPD (2018) the garage as existing would fall short of the recommended 
minimum standards and would not count towards parking provision. Three parking 
spaces are required for a 4+ bedroom property. Parking provision as existing comprises 
of hardstanding for one car and a dropped kerb behind, with space for two subject to 
alterations. The proposal would fall short of provision for 1x car. However given the 
application site is approximately 0.6m from Woking Town Centre with alternative modes 
of transport, the location is sustainable and would not require dependency on full 
parking provision. For these reasons it is considered that the proposal would have an 
acceptable impact on car parking provision and highway safety. 

 
Local Finance Considerations 
 
11. The Council introduced the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on 1 April 2015. As the 

proposed development would not result in new build gross floor space of more than 100 
sqm it is not liable for a financial contribution to CIL. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
12. Overall, it is considered that the proposal would have an acceptable impact on 

character and the host dwelling, it has been demonstrated that the proposed annexe 
would be designed in such a way that would render it incapable of being occupied 
separately from the main dwelling. The proposal would have an acceptable impact on 
neighbouring amenity, car parking provision and highway safety. The proposal therefore 
accords with Policies CS21 and CS25 of the Woking Core Strategy (2012), Policies 
DM9 of the Woking Development Management Policies Development Plan Document 
(2016), Supplementary Planning Documents Woking Design (2015), Outlook, Amenity, 
Privacy and Daylight (2008), Parking Standards (2018) and the National Planning 
Policy Framework (2019) and is recommended for approval. In considering this 
application the Council has given regard to the provisions of the development plan, so 
far as material to the application and to any other material considerations.  In making 
the recommendation to grant planning permission it is considered that the application is 
in accordance with the development plan of the area 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
1. Site visit photographs taken 27.01.2021 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
PERMIT subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development for which permission is hereby granted must be commenced not 

later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission. 

Page 148



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004). 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed below: 
 

DWG No: 23OR-P.01 Existing Plans & Elevations received 3 December 2020 
DWG No: 23OR-P.01 Proposed Plans & Elevations received 3 December 2020 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is completed 
in accordance with the approved plans. 

 
3. The external finishes of the development hereby permitted shall match those used in 

the existing building in material, colour, style, bonding and texture unless otherwise 
indicated on the approved plans. 

 
Reason: To protect the character and appearance of the building and the visual 
amenities of the area. 

 
4. The development hereby permitted shall be occupied only as accommodation 

ancillary and incidental to the residential use of the dwelling currently known as 23 
Oriental Road and shall not be used as an independent residential unit(s).  

 
Reason: To ensure the dwelling remains in single family occupation and the use of the 
premises is compatible with the surrounding area in accordance with Policy CS21 of 
the Woking Core Strategy (2012), Policy DM9 of the Development Management 
Policies DPD (2016) and the provisions of the NPPF. 

 
Informatives 
 
1. The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has worked with the 

applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the requirements of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2019). 
 

2. The applicant is advised that Council Officers may undertake inspections without prior 
warning to check compliance with approved plans and to establish that all planning 
conditions are being complied with in full. Inspections may be undertaken both during 
and after construction. 

Page 149





ITEM 6e – PLAN/2020/1095

23 Oriental Road, Woking.

Erection of a part two storey, part single storey side extension 
with 2x side rooflights following demolition of detached garage 
to form an attached annex supplementary to the main dwelling 

(amended description).

Slide 48 

P
age 151



Location Plan – PLAN/2020/1095

Slide 49 

P
age 152



Block Plan – PLAN/2020/1095

Slide 50 

P
age 153



Existing Elevations – PLAN/2020/1095

Slide 51 

P
age 154



Proposed Elevations – PLAN/2020/1095

Slide 52 

P
age 155



Existing Floor & Roof Plans – PLAN/2020/1095

Slide 53 

P
age 156



Proposed Floor & Roof Plans – PLAN/2020/1095

Slide 54 

P
age 157



Photos – PLAN/2020/1095

Slide 55 

P
age 158



Photos – PLAN/2020/1095

Slide 56 

P
age 159





Sheerwater Estate,
Albert Drive, Sheerwater, 

Woking

COND/2020/0137

Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 16 (CEMP) for Phase Red only of planning 
permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater Regeneration

Page 161

Agenda Item 6f





Page 163





23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

6f                      COND/2020/0137                                                                      WARD: C 
 
LOCATION:   Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking 
 
PROPOSAL:  Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 16 (Construction and 

Environmental Management Plan (CEMP)) for Phase Red only of 
planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater 
Regeneration. 

 
APPLICANT:  Gilbert Ash                                              OFFICER: Joanne Hollingdale

    

 

 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE  
 
Although the applicant is the contractor for phase Red of the Sheerwater Regeneration, 
legal advice is that this conditions application falls outside the Scheme of Delegation and 
thus such applications are required to be determined by the Planning Committee.   
 
SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

 
This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Condition 16 of planning 
permission PLAN/2018/0337 relating to the Construction and Environmental Management 
Plan (CEMP).  
 
PLANNING STATUS  
 

 Urban Area 

 Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km) 

 Priority Place  

 Flood Zone 1 and 2 (some areas) 

 Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area & SSSI 

 Urban Open Space 

 Local Centre  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE details submitted. 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
This conditions application relates to the second phase of the development for the 
Sheerwater Regeneration. The second phase, known as phase Red, comprises the 
specialist accommodation, the energy centre, ground floor non-residential uses, apartments, 
mews dwellings and maisonettes and is due commence early next year. This phase is 
located diagonally opposite Asda and lies between Albert Drive, Dartmouth Avenue and 
includes part of Dartmouth Green.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The most relevant planning history for this application is as follows:  
 
PLAN/2018/0337 - Hybrid planning application (part outline, part full planning application) for the 

demolition of 573 residential units and existing non-residential buildings and redevelopment of the 
site to be implemented in phases to provide a mixed-use development comprising of 869 residents 

Page 165



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

units (Class C3), 134 specialist residential units (Class C3/C2), 904 sqm community centre (Class 
D1), 929 sqm nursery/children's centre (Class D1), 312 sqm health centre (Class D1), 290 sqm 
additional classrooms (Class D1), 1,728 sqm of retail (flexible use within Class A1 and/or A2 and/or 
A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sqm management office (flexible use within Class A1 and/or A2 and/or 
A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or B1a and/or SG), and 132 sqm dentist (flexible use within Class A1 
and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or class D1), a new energy centre, formation of a new 
car park for Broadmere Primary school, formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown 
School and the Leisure Centre, including a bus/coach drop off area, formation of a new community 
car park to serve community hub, hard and soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use 
games area (MUGA) and a skate park, reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and 
works to the public highway and associated works; including full planning application for the detailed 
phases comprising of: demolition of 412 residential units and 7,609 sqm existing non-residential 
buildings, and construction of 695 residential units (7 no. studios, 68 no. 1-bedroom specialist 
accommodation, 160 no. 1-bed units, 227 no. 2-bed units, 160 no. 3-bed units, 71 no.4-bed units, 
and 2 no. 5-bed units,), 904 sqm Community Centre (Class D1), 1,728 sqm of retail (flexible use 
within Class A1 and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sqm management office (flexible use 
within Class A1 and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or B1a and/or SG) and 132 sqm 
dentist (flexible use within Class A1 and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/ or class D1), 929 
sqm of nursery/children’s centre (Class D1), 312 sqm health centre (Class D1), an energy centre, 
formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown School and the Leisure Centre, including a 
bus/coach drop of area, formation of a new community car park to serve community hub, hard and 
soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use games area (MUGA) and a skate park 
reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and works to the public highway and 
associated works. Permitted 18.04.2019 subject to a S106 Legal Agreement and Executive 
Obligations.  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This conditions application seeks the approval of details pursuant to Condition 16 of 
planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 relating to the Construction and Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) for phase Red only.  
 
Submitted with the application is a Construction and Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP) which also includes demolition and covers matters such as site logistics and set up, 
construction sequence, access arrangements, hours of work and delivery times, dust 
management, measures to control noise and vibration, measures to prevent ground and 
water pollutions, storage of fuels/chemicals etc., temporary lighting, ecology, site hoarding, 
community liaison and complaints procedure.  
 
A Dust Management Plan (DMP) has also been submitted as this also forms part of the 
CEMP and assesses the potential for dust from construction activities and sets out 
mitigation measures to minimise to reduce dust emission impacts e.g. soft strip of buildings, 
water suppression, avoid techniques likely to create dust, use covers for topsoil, ensue 
storage of materials e.g. sand and cement is appropriate to e.g. store in containers, wheel 
washing, use coverings on vehicles, road cleaning and use of dust suppressants. Dust 
monitoring will also be undertaken e.g. visual inspection/assessment of dust generation 
during the day and automatic dust monitoring. Reports of dust monitoring will be available 
on request and will include monitoring results (against level specified in DMP) and details of 
complaints received.  
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
SCC County Highway Authority: The reference to permissions for temporary closures has 
been corrected to state these are for the consideration of SCC. The hoarding plan has not 
been revised however this will be considered in full during the hoarding licence application 
(required from SCC) and thus does not warrant further adjustment. On this basis, no further 
requests for adjustment.   

Page 166



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
Natural England: No comments as the CEMP identifies measures to avoid the killing or 
injury of bats during demolition. Demolition must be undertaken in accordance with the 
conditions of the European Protected Species Licence issued by Natural England. 
 
WBC Contaminated Land Officer: No further comments [Officer note: Following earlier 
alterations to the text of the CEMP]. 
 
WBC Environmental Health Officer: Comments/queries were made on the first version of 
the CEMP. These comments were addressed by the second version of the CEMP except for 
comments relating to hours of working. The third version of the CEMP altered the wording 
for the hours of work to which the EHO commented - It now states that no noisy working will 
take place after 18.00 Mon-Fri and after 13.00hrs Saturdays which, whilst it does not cover 
any early morning noisy starts, at least goes some way to address the matter. In the event 
that noisy working did start one hour earlier than the standard hours without good cause, 
and which resulted in noise complaint, action is possible under Control of Pollution Act 1974 
if necessary. 
 
WBC Drainage and Flood Risk Engineer: No objections to the information submitted in 
relation to this condition however the specified drainage details will not be sufficient for 
those details required by Condition 20 (surface water drainage) which will require a 
construction method statement to be submitted to comply with that condition. [Officer note: 
Details pursuant to condition 20 are currently under consideration under application 
COND/2020/0177] 
 
WBC Arboricultural Officer: No comments to make. 
 
Surrey Wildlife Trust: Phase Red is located away from the Basingstoke Canal SSSI and 
therefore concerns relating to environmental and ecological impacts on this nationally 
protected site is significantly reduced due to distance buffering. The reference to the 
presence of bat roosts in buildings scheduled for demolition is noted and it is re-iterated that 
on site works should only proceed in strict accordance with the EPS licence which must be 
obtained from Natural England prior to the commencement of works. The Council has 
sufficient information to discharge the condition for phase Red. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
As this application seeks approval of details pursuant to a condition on a planning 
permission, there is no statutory requirement for neighbour notification.  
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES 
 
Woking Core Strategy 2012 
CS7 – Biodiversity and Nature Conservation  
CS9 – Flooding and Water Management 
CS21 – Design   
 
PLANNING ISSUES 
 
1. The only issue to consider is whether the details submitted are considered acceptable to 

comply with the requirements of Condition 17.  
 
2. The main points of the CEMP include:  

Page 167



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 Site arrangement – including position of site hoarding and welfare units (double 
storey) sited outside tree protection areas and away from nearby residential 
dwellings; 

 Details of demolition and construction works; 

 Woking hours - standard working hours specified with no deliveries during peak 
school drop off and pick up and out of hours working (except emergencies) subject 
to prior agreement; 

 Measures to minimise noise and vibration and the keeping of such documentation 
records; 

 Measures to prevent ground and surface water pollution e.g. prevent erosion and 
run-off, cover drainage, use non-toxic paints and solvents where possible, no 
burning of materials on site; 

 Measures to minimise/avoid impacts on ecology e.g. need for a EPS licence in 
respect of bats; 

 Appropriate use of temporary lighting – providing a uniform lux level of 5lux and 
use of a programmable timer to negate inconvenience to local residents and 
ecology; 

 Details measures for reducing and storing of waste etc.; and 

 Details community liaison e.g. communication with local residents e.g. newsletter 
and sets out a complaints procedure. 

 
3. The CEMP is considered to contain all of the information to address the requirements of 

the condition and the information is appropriate to this type of development. The 
proposed site hoarding will follow the phase boundary, except for the early part of the 
construction, where the eastern boundary will be inset from the phase boundary line to 
enable parking to occur in Dartmouth Green. Only for the later part of the construction 
will the site hoarding be moved to the phase boundary to enable the construction of the 
access and parking for this part of the phase. This is considered to offer a pragmatic and 
balanced approach to allowing continued access to Dartmouth Green during the early 
part of the construction period.  

 
4. In respect of the DMP submitted, this document contains all of the information required 

for a DMP for a development of this type. It should also be noted that a similar CEMP 
and DMP were utilised for the demolition and construction of phase Purple.  

 
CONCLUSION 
 
5. In light of the above information and the consultee responses, the details submitted are 

considered acceptable and would meet the requirements of Condition 16. The submitted 
details would also comply with Policies CS7, CS9 and CS21 of the Woking Core 
Strategy 2012. The details submitted are therefore recommended for approval as noted 
in the recommendation below.  

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
File - COND/2020/0137  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that details submitted are APPROVED as follows: 
 
Details approved are: 

-  Revised Construction and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) by Gilbert Ash, 
received on 04.02.2021, except for text in the 4th paragraph on page 16 (see note 

Page 168



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

below) and the site hoarding position as shown on any Gilbert Ash Plan (the site 
hoarding position is as shown on the Link Engineering plans); 

- Red Phase Site Hoarding Line plans: Week 1-30 (SHE-LE-HAD-XX-DR-CE-SK07 Rev 
B); Week 30-80 (SHE-LE-HAD-XX-DR-CE-SK07 Rev B) and Week 80-96 (SHE-LE-
HAD-XX-DR-CE-SK07 Rev B); received on 04.02.2021; and  

- Dust Management Plan by MLM (779185-MLM-ZZ-XX-RP-J-0001 Revision C01) 
received on 30.10.2020 (and also appended to the CEMP).  

 
Notes to Applicant:  
 
The applicant is advised that the permission of any neighbouring landowner is required 
before any site hoarding can be installed on land owned by others.  
 
The applicant is advised that the text in the 4th paragraph on page 16 is not approved as this 
text is erroneous and does not match the text elsewhere in the document or the approved 
CTMP and no contractor parking is permitted in the community centre car park.    
 
The applicant is advised that in relation to works within Tree Root Protection Areas (RPAs) 
and in relation to protected species, the approval given by the LPA pursuant to conditions 
39, 40, 41, 54 and 57 must also be adhered to.  
 
The applicant is advised that the approved details relate to phase Red only and details 
pursuant to this condition require LPA approval for all other phases of the development in 
accordance with the requirements of the condition.  

 

  

Page 169





ITEM 6f – COND/2020/0137

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, 
Woking.

Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 16 (CEMP) for 
Phase Red only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the 

Sheerwater Regeneration

Slide 57 

P
age 171





Sheerwater Estate,
Albert Drive, Sheerwater, 

Woking

COND/2020/0139

Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 17 (Construction Transport Management 
Plan (CTMP)) for Phase Red only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the 

Sheerwater Regeneration.

Page 173

Agenda Item 6g





Page 175





23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

6g                    COND/2020/0139                                                                      WARD: C 
 
LOCATION:   Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking 
 
PROPOSAL: Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 17 (Construction 

Transport Management Plan (CTMP)) for Phase Red only of planning 
permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater Regeneration. 

 
APPLICANT:  Gilbert Ash                                              OFFICER: Joanne Hollingdale

    

 

 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE  
 
Although the applicant is the contractor for phase Red of the Sheerwater Regeneration, 
legal advice is that this conditions application falls outside the Scheme of Delegation and 
thus such applications are required to be determined by the Planning Committee.   
 
SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

 
This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Condition 17 of planning 
permission PLAN/2018/0337 relating to the Construction Transport Management Plan 
(CTMP).  
 
PLANNING STATUS  
 

 Urban Area 

 Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km) 

 Priority Place  

 Flood Zone 1 and 2 (some areas) 

 Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area & SSSI 

 Urban Open Space 

 Local Centre  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE details submitted. 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
This conditions application relates to the second phase of the development for the 
Sheerwater Regeneration. The second phase, known as phase Red, comprises the 
specialist accommodation, the energy centre, ground floor non-residential uses, apartments, 
mews dwellings and maisonettes and is due commence early next year. This phase is 
located diagonally opposite Asda and lies between Albert Drive, Dartmouth Avenue and 
includes part of Dartmouth Green.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The most relevant planning history for this application is as follows:  
 
PLAN/2018/0337 - Hybrid planning application (part outline, part full planning application) for the 

demolition of 573 residential units and existing non-residential buildings and redevelopment of the 
site to be implemented in phases to provide a mixed-use development comprising of 869 residents 
units (Class C3), 134 specialist residential units (Class C3/C2), 904 sqm community centre (Class 
D1), 929 sqm nursery/children's centre (Class D1), 312 sqm health centre (Class D1), 290 sqm 

Page 177



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

additional classrooms (Class D1), 1,728 sqm of retail (flexible use within Class A1 and/or A2 and/or 
A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sqm management office (flexible use within Class A1 and/or A2 and/or 
A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or B1a and/or SG), and 132 sqm dentist (flexible use within Class A1 
and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or class D1), a new energy centre, formation of a new 
car park for Broadmere Primary school, formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown 
School and the Leisure Centre, including a bus/coach drop off area, formation of a new community 
car park to serve community hub, hard and soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use 
games area (MUGA) and a skate park, reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and 
works to the public highway and associated works; including full planning application for the detailed 
phases comprising of: demolition of 412 residential units and 7,609 sqm existing non-residential 
buildings, and construction of 695 residential units (7 no. studios, 68 no. 1-bedroom specialist 
accommodation, 160 no. 1-bed units, 227 no. 2-bed units, 160 no. 3-bed units, 71 no.4-bed units, 
and 2 no. 5-bed units,), 904 sqm Community Centre (Class D1), 1,728 sqm of retail (flexible use 
within Class A1 and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sqm management office (flexible use 
within Class A1 and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or B1a and/or SG) and 132 sqm 
dentist (flexible use within Class A1 and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/ or class D1), 929 
sqm of nursery/children’s centre (Class D1), 312 sqm health centre (Class D1), an energy centre, 
formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown School and the Leisure Centre, including a 
bus/coach drop of area, formation of a new community car park to serve community hub, hard and 
soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use games area (MUGA) and a skate park 
reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and works to the public highway and 
associated works. Permitted 18.04.2019 subject to a S106 Legal Agreement and Executive 
Obligations.  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This conditions application seeks the approval of details pursuant to Condition 17 
(Construction Transport Management Plan (CTMP)) of planning permission 
PLAN/2018/0337 for phase Red only.  
 
Submitted with the application is a Construction Transport Management Plan (CTMP). It 
covers matters including site set up, hours of work/deliveries, site access, contactor parking, 
wheel washing/road cleaning and use of Banksman. Following comments on an earlier 
version of the CTMP a revised CTMP has been received. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
SCC County Highway Authority: Have reviewed the revised CTMP and confirm that it has 
been accepted. Any further traffic management requirements will be addressed as part of 
the hoarding application (Officer note: As part of the hoarding extends onto the public 
highway the applicant/contractor is required obtain consent from SCC Highways, separately 
to any LPA approval which may be granted).  
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
As this application seeks approval of details pursuant to a condition on a planning 
permission, there is no statutory requirement for neighbour notification.  
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES 
 
Woking Core Strategy 2012 
CS18 – Transport and Accessibility  
 
PLANNING ISSUES 
 
1. The only issue to consider is whether the details submitted are considered acceptable to 

comply with the requirements of Condition 17.  

Page 178



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
2. The main points of the CTMP include:  

 Specified Routeing of Construction Traffic – approach from the west of Sheerwater 
via Monument Road and Albert Drive, turning left into Devonshire Avenue and 
right into Dartmouth Avenue (and no use of other residential routes e.g. Bunyard 
Drive or Albert Drive past the school); 

 Use of Spencer Close (road to the rear of the row of garages between Dartmouth 
Avenue and Devonshire Avenue) for contractor parking which would be hoarded to 
enclose the contractor parking, to control access and enabling traffic marshalls to 
check surrounding road for contractor parking in undesignated locations; 

 Woking hours - standard working hours specified with no deliveries during peak 
school drop off and pick up and out of hours working (except emergencies) subject 
to prior agreement; 

 Site access – being controlled by 2no. traffic marshalls at all times to control 
access and the manoeuvring of vehicles into and out of the site; 

 Deliveries – subject to booking system; 

 Condition survey of surrounding highways has been undertaken; 

 Speed limit of 5mph for all deliveries, use of Banksman for HGV movements into 
and out of the site, use of wheel washing/road cleaning and local community 
communication to inform them of up-coming activities, site progress and to deal 
with queries etc.  

 
CONCLUSION 
 
3. In light of the above information and the comments from the County Highway Authority, 

the details submitted are considered acceptable and would meet the requirements of 
Condition 17. The submitted details would also comply with Policy CS18 of the Woking 
Core Strategy 2012. The details submitted are therefore recommended for approval as 
noted in the recommendation below.  

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
File - COND/2020/0139  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that details submitted are APPROVED as follows: 
 
Details approved are: 

-  Revised Construction Transport Management Plan (CTMP) by Gilbert Ash, received 
on 04.02.2021;  

- Construction Access Route (Swept path) (SHE-LE-HAD-XX-DR-CE-SK08) received 
on 30.10.2020; 

- Construction Egress Route (Swept path) (SHE-LE-HAD-XX-DR-CE-SK08) received 
on 30.10.2020; 

- Red Phase Route to Site plan by Gilbert Ash received on 30.10.2020; 
- Site Access and Egress Plan (SHE-LE-HAD-XX-DR-CE-SK09) received on 

30.10.2020; and 
- Red Phase Site Hoarding Line plans: Week 1-30 (SHE-LE-HAD-XX-DR-CE-SK07 Rev 

B); Week 30-80 (SHE-LE-HAD-XX-DR-CE-SK07 Rev B) and Week 80-96 (SHE-LE-
HAD-XX-DR-CE-SK07 Rev B); received on 04.02.2021  
 

Notes to applicant: The applicant is advised that the permission of any neighbouring 
landowner is required before any site hoarding can be installed on land owned by others. 

Page 179



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
The applicant is advised that the approved details relate to phase Red only and details 
pursuant to this condition require LPA approval for all other phases of the development in 
accordance with the requirements of the condition.  

 

Page 180



ITEM 6g – COND/2020/0139

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, 
Woking.

Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 17 
(Construction Transport Management Plan (CTMP)) for Phase 

Red only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the 
Sheerwater Regeneration

Slide 58  

P
age 181





Sheerwater Estate,
Albert Drive, Sheerwater, 

Woking

COND/2020/0169

Approval of details pursuant to Conditions 29 (Contamination Verification), 67 (Drainage 
Management and Maintenance Plan), 84 (Cycle storage for Leisure Centre), 85 (Travel Plan 

for Leisure Centre) and 86 (Refuse Storage details for Leisure Centre) of planning 
permission PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater Regeneration relating to the Leisure Centre 

only.

Page 183

Agenda Item 6h





Page 185





23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

6h                    COND/2020/0169                                                                      WARD: C 
 
LOCATION:   Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking 
 
PROPOSAL: Approval of details pursuant to Conditions 29 (Contamination 

Verification), 67 (Drainage Management and Maintenance Plan), 84 
(Cycle storage for Leisure Centre), 85 (Travel Plan for Leisure Centre) 
and 86 (Refuse Storage details for Leisure Centre) of planning 
permission PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater Regeneration relating 
to the Leisure Centre only. 

 
APPLICANT:  Pellikaan Construction                           OFFICER: Joanne Hollingdale

    

 

 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE  
 
Although the applicant is the contractor for the Leisure Centre phase of the Sheerwater 
Regeneration, legal advice is that this conditions application falls outside the Scheme of 
Delegation and thus such applications are required to be determined by the Planning 
Committee.     
 
SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

 
This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Conditions 29 
(Contamination Verification), 67 (Drainage Management and Maintenance Plan), 84 (Cycle 
storage for Leisure Centre), 85 (Travel Plan for Leisure Centre) and 86 (Refuse Storage 
details for Leisure Centre) of planning permission PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater 
Regeneration relating to the Leisure Centre only. 
 
PLANNING STATUS  
 

 Urban Area 

 Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km) 

 Priority Place  

 Flood Zone 1 and 2 (some areas) 

 Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area & SSSI 

 Urban Open Space 

 Local Centre  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE details submitted in respect of Conditions 29, 84, 85 and 86.  
 
In respect of Condition 67 it is recommended that the Planning Committee authorises the 
Development Manager to approve any details submitted pursuant to this condition once the 
Council’s Drainage and Flood Risk Engineer is satisfied with the submitted 
details/documents and raises no objection. Those submitted details/documents will then 
form part of the approved details for this condition.  
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
This conditions application relates to the Leisure Centre phase of the Sheerwater 
Regeneration. This phase relates to the Leisure Centre which is almost complete and is 
located within the grounds of Bishop David Brown School.  

Page 187



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The most relevant planning history for this application is as follows:  
 
PLAN/2018/0374 - Section 73 application to remove Condition 26 (bund), to vary Condition 4 

(approved plans insofar as they relate to the Leisure Centre and sports pitches), Condition 23 (phase 
1b playing fields timeline), to submit details to satisfy Condition 21 (on/off-site drainage works), 
Condition 27 (drainage details for phase 1a(i)), Condition 28 (drainage details for phase 1a(ii)), 
Condition 29 (drainage details for phase 1a(iii)), Condition 30 (drainage details for phase 1b), 
Condition 52 (external materials for Leisure Centre), Condition 53 (details of finished floor levels for 
Leisure Centre), Condition 54 (sustainability - substitution of combined heat and power plant with a 
ground source heat pump) and amendments to wording of Condition 36 (phase 1c details of front 
boundary enclosures), Condition 38 (phase 1c biodiversity enhancement measures), Condition 43 
(phase 1c external materials), Condition 45 (phase 1c details of bin storage areas), Condition 46 
(phase 1c details of photovoltaic panels), Condition 47 (phase 1c sustainability measures), Condition 
49 (protection of residential properties from noise), Condition 51 (phase 1c details of play area/trim 
trail delivery) to alter the timing for the submission of details for approval, of planning permission 
PLAN/2015/1260 for the redevelopment of the Sheerwater Estate. Permitted 18.04.2019 subject to a 
S106 Legal Agreement and Executive Obligations.  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Conditions 29 
(Contamination Verification), 67 (Drainage Management and Maintenance Plan), 84 (Cycle 
storage for Leisure Centre), 85 (Travel Plan for Leisure Centre) and 86 (Refuse Storage 
details for Leisure Centre) of planning permission PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater 
Regeneration relating to the Leisure Centre only. 
 
Condition 29 – (contamination verification) 
An earthworks completion statement from the Earthworks Contactor has been submitted 
with the application which states that a watching brief was undertaken during their 
groundworks and no contaminated soils were found.   
 
Condition 67 – (drainage management and maintenance plan)   
A drainage systems Management and Maintenance Plan has been submitted with the 
application along with a Maintenance Schedule. Sports Pitch Maintenance details have also 
been submitted which include details for the drainage infrastructure (which is under the 
pitches) for the natural turf pitches. Maintenance guidelines for the artificial grass pitch have 
also been submitted. 
 
Condition 84 – (cycle storage for Leisure Centre) 
Two cycle shelters would be provided to the front of the Leisure Centre building. Each cycle 
shelter would have 6no. Sheffield cycle hoops providing storage for 12no cycles (24no. 
cycles in total). The cycle shelter frame would be finished with a matt black finish.  
 
Condition 85 – (Travel Plan for Leisure Centre)  
A Travel Plan for the Leisure Centre has been submitted with the application. 
 
Condition 86 – (refuse storage for Leisure Centre)  
A plan showing the position of the refuse storage area, which would accommodate both 
refuse and recycling bins has been provided. The refuse store would be located to the front 
(left) side of the building adjacent to the substation. A means of enclosure would surround 
the refuse store which would have a height of 2.5 metres and would be faced with metal 
cladding in the colour to match the cladding on the Leisure Centre building itself.  
 

Page 188



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

CONSULTATIONS 
 
County Highway Authority: The revised Travel Plan is acceptable and the condition can 
be discharged. With regard to the cycle shelter the Highway Authority is satisfied and this 
condition can be discharged. 
 
WBC Contaminated Land Officer: The submitted Hague Earthworks Completion 
Statement confirms the information required by the validation plan. A watching brief was 
maintained and no contamination was detected. Condition 29 for phases 1a and 1b can be 
discharged.  
 
WBC Drainage and Flood Risk Engineer: The information submitted is not sufficient and 
further details are given as to what the document should contain so that it is useable by any 
future maintainer of the system [Officer note: The comments have been forwarded to the 
applicant and further information is awaited].  
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
As this application seeks approval of details pursuant to a condition on a planning 
permission, there is no statutory requirement for neighbour notification.   
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES 
 
Woking Core Strategy 2012 
CS9 – Flooding and Water Management  
CS18 – Transport and Accessibility 
CS21 – Design 
 
DM Policies DPD 
DM5 – Environmental Pollution  
DM8 – Land Contamination and Hazards 
 
PLANNING ISSUES 
 
1. The only issue to consider is whether the details submitted are considered acceptable to 

comply with the requirements of Conditions 29, 67, 84, 85 and 86.  
 
Condition 29 – (contamination verification) 
 
2. Given the submitted earthworks completion statement from the contractor and the 

comments of the Council’s Contaminated Land Officer, the submitted details are 
considered to be acceptable and comply with the requirements of the condition.  

 
Condition 67 – (drainage management and maintenance plan)   
 
3. Details of the management and maintenance of the drainage systems in connection with 

the leisure centre and sports pitches have been submitted. The Council’s Drainage and 
Flood Risk Engineer has reviewed the submitted details and has advised that they are 
not sufficient to address the requirements of the condition. There should be one 
document for all drainage features for the leisure centre and sports pitches and the 
document needs to be useable for any future maintainer. The document is required to 
include a plan of all drainage features, highlight all critical features including their 
location, a Table of Maintenance for each component/feature and provide a list all 
specific components (i.e. the type of hydrobrake in case they need replacing). A table to 
record all inspections/maintenance and actions should also be included.  

Page 189



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
4. This information has been forwarded to the applicant and an updated drainage 

management and maintenance plan has been requested. However once revised details 
are received they will need to be reviewed by the Council’s Drainage and Flood Risk 
Engineer. As the remainder of the details submitted with this application are considered 
acceptable, the Planning Committee is requested to delegate to the Development 
Manager the approval of any drainage management and maintenance plan details 
subject to no objection being raised to those details by the Council’s Drainage and Flood 
Risk Engineer.       

 
Condition 84 – (cycle storage for Leisure Centre) and Condition 85 – (Travel Plan for 
Leisure Centre)  
 
5. The proposed cycle storage area is well sited to the front of the building and would have 

an acceptable appearance. 24no. cycle parking spaces would be provided for users of 
the leisure centre only (separate from any school cycle parking). The Parking Standards 
SPD does not set any cycle parking standard for such uses and as such the provision is 
considered acceptable. The County Highway Authority has also raised no objection to 
the details submitted.  

 
6. A revised Travel Plan has been submitted with the application in response to earlier 

comments of the Travel Plan Officer at the County Highway Authority. The County 
Highway Authority has reviewed the revised Travel Plan and has advised that it is 
acceptable. The submitted information is considered to comply with the requirements of 
the condition.    

 
Condition 86 – (Refuse storage details for the Leisure Centre)  
 
7. A refuse storage area would be provided to the front (left) side of the leisure centre 

building, accessed directly from the car park. The refuse store will make provision for 
both refuse and recycling bins. The refuse store will be faced with metal cladding in a 
pearl beige colour (RAL 1035) which will match the colour of the cladding on the leisure 
centre building. It will provide an acceptable subservient enclosure, being complimentary 
to the appearance of the adjacent building. The proposed details are therefore 
considered to be acceptable and comply with the requirements of the condition.   
 

CONCLUSION 
 
8. The details submitted are considered acceptable and would meet the requirements of 

Conditions 29, 84, 85 and 86. The submitted details are also considered to comply with 
Policies CS18 and CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012, Policies DM5 and DM8 of 
the DM Policies DPD 2016 and the NPPF. The details submitted are therefore 
recommended for approval as noted in the recommendation below.  
 

9. With regard to details pursuant to Condition 67, it is requested that delegated authority 
be given to the Development Manager to approve any details subject to no objection 
being raised to those details by the Council’s Drainage and Flood Risk Engineer. In this 
scenario the details would comply with Policy CS9 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012.  
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
File - COND/2020/0169  
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Page 190



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
It is recommended that the Planning Committee authorises the Development Manager to 
approve any details submitted pursuant to Condition 67 – (drainage management and 
maintenance plan) once the Council’s Drainage and Flood Risk Engineer is satisfied with 
the submitted details/documents and raises no objection. Those submitted 
details/documents will then form part of the approved details for this condition.  
 
It is recommended that following details submitted are APPROVED as follows: 
 
Condition 29 – (contamination verification) 
 
Details approved:  

- Earthworks Completion Statement by Hague Construction received on 26.11.2020; 
 
Condition 84 – (cycle storage for Leisure Centre) 
 
Details approved:  

- Cycle Storage Plan (Bicycle Shelter plan by Pozzoni P4235-02_0126 Rev C1) 
received on 18.12.2020; and 

- Agent’s email confirming cycle store details received on 18.12.2020. 
 
Condition 85 – (Travel Plan for Leisure Centre)  
 
Details approved:  

- Revised Travel Plan – Sport and Leisure Facility Travel Plan by Motion (Final Rev 4 
dated 13.01.2021) received on 20.01.2021; 

 
Condition 86 – (Refuse storage details for the Leisure Centre)  
 
Details approved:  

- Bin store plan and enclosure (Bin store plan by Pozzoni P4235-02_0128 Rev C2) 
received on 26.01.2021; and  

- Agent’s email confirming bin store details received on 26.01.2021. 
 
Notes to applicant: The applicant is advised that the development is required to be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details. 

Page 191





ITEM 6h – COND/2020/0169

Land At Bishop David Brown School, 
Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking.

Approval of details pursuant to Conditions 29 (Contamination 
Verification), 67 (Drainage Management and Maintenance 

Plan), 84 (Cycle storage for Leisure Centre), 85 (Travel Plan for 
Leisure Centre) and 86 (Refuse Storage details for Leisure 

Centre) of planning permission PLAN/2018/0374 for the 
Sheerwater Regeneration relating to the Leisure Centre only.

Slide 59  

P
age 193



Cycle and Bin store locations -

COND/2020/0169

Slide 60

P
age 194



Cycle and Bin store details – COND/2020/0169

Slide 61 

P
age 195





Sheerwater Estate,
Albert Drive, Sheerwater, 

Woking

COND/2019/0185

Partial approval of details pursuant to condition 89 (fixed plant and equipment) for the 
Leisure Centre phase only to planning permission PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater 

Regeneration

Page 197

Agenda Item 6i





Page 199





23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

6i                     COND/2019/0185                                                                      WARD: C 
 
LOCATION:   Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking 
 
PROPOSAL: Partial Approval of details pursuant to Condition 89 (fixed plant and 

equipment) for the Leisure Centre phase only to planning permission 
PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater Regeneration 

 
APPLICANT:  Thameswey & Pellikaan Construction    OFFICER: Joanne Hollingdale

    

 

 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE  
 
One of the applicants is Thameswey and under the Scheme of Delegation, applications for 
approval of details pursuant to condition, by this applicant, fall outside the delegation to 
Officers and thus such applications are required to be determined by the Planning 
Committee.   
 
SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

 
This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Condition 89 (fixed plant 
and equipment) for the Leisure Centre phase only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0374.   
 
PLANNING STATUS  
 

 Urban Area 

 Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km) 

 Priority Place  

 Flood Zone 1 and 2 (some areas) 

 Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area & SSSI 

 Urban Open Space 

 Local Centre  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE details submitted. 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
This conditions application relates to the Leisure Centre phase of the Sheerwater 
Regeneration. This phase relates to the Leisure Centre which is almost complete and is 
located within the grounds of Bishop David Brown School.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The most relevant planning history for this application is as follows:  
 
PLAN/2018/0374 - Section 73 application to remove Condition 26 (bund), to vary Condition 4 

(approved plans insofar as they relate to the Leisure Centre and sports pitches), Condition 23 (phase 
1b playing fields timeline), to submit details to satisfy Condition 21 (on/off-site drainage works), 
Condition 27 (drainage details for phase 1a(i)), Condition 28 (drainage details for phase 1a(ii)), 
Condition 29 (drainage details for phase 1a(iii)), Condition 30 (drainage details for phase 1b), 
Condition 52 (external materials for Leisure Centre), Condition 53 (details of finished floor levels for 
Leisure Centre), Condition 54 (sustainability - substitution of combined heat and power plant with a 
ground source heat pump) and amendments to wording of Condition 36 (phase 1c details of front 

Page 201



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

boundary enclosures), Condition 38 (phase 1c biodiversity enhancement measures), Condition 43 
(phase 1c external materials), Condition 45 (phase 1c details of bin storage areas), Condition 46 
(phase 1c details of photovoltaic panels), Condition 47 (phase 1c sustainability measures), Condition 
49 (protection of residential properties from noise), Condition 51 (phase 1c details of play area/trim 
trail delivery) to alter the timing for the submission of details for approval, of planning permission 
PLAN/2015/1260 for the redevelopment of the Sheerwater Estate. Permitted 18.04.2019 subject to a 
S106 Legal Agreement and Executive Obligations.  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Condition 89 (fixed plant 
and equipment) for the Leisure Centre phase only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0374.   
 
Condition 89 requires the approval of details relating to any plant and equipment to be 
installed in connection with the leisure centre building.  
 
An assessment of noise is provided in the submitted noise report ‘Discharge of Acoustic 
Planning Conditions’, which includes details of the proposed plant to be installed, locations 
of plant/equipment and details relating to their noise levels. This report has been amended 
since it was originally submitted to address issues raised by the Environmental Health 
Officer.   
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
WBC Environmental Health Officer: Based on the conclusions of the revised Acoustic 
report, which takes into account night time noise and states there is no tonal noise 
equipment, there is no objection to the discharge of Conditions 58 and 89.    
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
As this application seeks approval of details pursuant to a condition on a planning 
permission, there is no statutory requirement for neighbour notification.   
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES 
 
Woking Core Strategy 2012 
CS21 – Design 
 
DM Policies DPD 
DM5 – Environmental Pollution  
DM7 – Noise and Light Pollution  
 
PLANNING ISSUES 
 
1. The only issue to consider is whether the details submitted are considered acceptable to 

comply with the requirements of Condition 89.  
 
2. A revised noise report has been submitted with the application, which includes details of 

the proposed plant to be installed, locations of plant/equipment and details relating to 
their noise levels. The noise report identifies the nearest noise-sensitive residential 
receptors as being Devonshire Avenue and the future development in the vicinity of 
Loder Close. The existing noise baseline measurements have been considered, along 
with the noise predictions for the leisure centre activity and the predicted noise levels 
from the individual items of plant. Some plant will be located within individual rooms in 
the leisure centre, some in the external plant room and some on the roof.  

Page 202



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
3. The revised noise report advises that the lowest typical measured background noise 

level is 41dB for the period covering the opening hours of the leisure centre (06:30-
22:30 hours). The proposed plant noise is assessed in the report including proposed 
mitigation measures i.e. attenuators for air intake and exhausts. The report advises that 
with the mitigation measures the predicted noise levels from the proposed plant at the 
nearest noise sensitive residential receptors is 36dB which is 5dB below the background 
sound level indicating a low impact. Only the gas fired heating boilers to maintain 
temperature for the pool hall ventilation and pool water will be run overnight and the 
boilers are located internally in the main first floor plant room. The swimming pool air 
handling unit will also run overnight in night-time setback mode at reduced air volume 
and the fresh air and exhaust air ductwork incorporate attenuators. The revised report 
has assessed the night time noise from this plant and advised that it would be 3dB 
below the typical background noise level between 22:30 and 06:30 hours (34dB). The 
revised noise report concludes that the plant noise would have a low impact at the 
residential receptors.    

 
4. For completeness the noise report also considers the assumed internal activity noise 

levels within the building and states that the predicted noise levels would be around 10-
11dB below the background noise level. 

 
5. The revised noise report advises that the cumulative noise impact of plant noise and 

internal noise breakout are not normally summed together because the standards by 
which they are assessed are not applicable to the other noise type. Nonetheless for 
comparison purposes the noise levels have been summed and the predicted combined 
noise level at the nearest noise sensitive receptors would be 37dB. This would be 4dB 
below the background noise level and therefore a low cumulative impact is expected at 
the nearest residential receptors which is considered to be acceptable. Having regard to 
the submitted information the Council’s Environmental Health Officer raises no objection 
to the approval of the submitted details.  
 

CONCLUSION 
 
6. The details submitted are considered acceptable and would meet the requirements of 

Condition 89. The submitted details are also considered to comply with Policy CS21 of 
the Woking Core Strategy 2012, Policies DM5 and DM7 of the DM Policies DPD 2016 
and the NPPF. The details submitted are therefore recommended for approval as noted 
in the recommendation below.  
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
File - COND/2019/0185  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that details submitted are APPROVED as follows: 
 
Details approved:  

- Discharge of Acoustic Planning Conditions Noise Assessment Report by MLM Group 
(Ref: 103331-MLM-ZZ-XX-RP-YA-0002 Revision C04 dated 25.01.2021) received 
on 26.01.2021;  

- Details contained in agent’s email dated 26.01.2021; and  
- Roof Services Layout Plan (M/19/12/0074/17 Rev D) received on 26.01.2021. 

 

Page 203



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

Notes to applicant: The applicant is advised that the development is required to be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details. If the internal activity nose levels in 
the proposed spaces are expected to or operate above the assumed levels then a further 
assessment and potential mitigation will be required and will require subsequent LPA 
approval.   
 
The applicant is advised that the approved details relate to the Leisure Centre Phase only 
and details pursuant to this condition require LPA approval for all other phases of the 
development in accordance with the requirements of the condition.  
 
 

Page 204



ITEM 6i – COND/2019/0185

Land At Bishop David Brown School, 
Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking.

Partial approval of details pursuant to condition 89 (fixed plant 
and equipment) for the Leisure Centre phase only to planning 

permission PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater Regeneration.

Slide 62

P
age 205





Sheerwater Estate,
Albert Drive, Sheerwater, 

Woking

COND/2020/0136

Approval of details pursuant to Conditions 56 (alternative renewable energy technology), 57 
(extract and ventilation equipment) and 58 (acoustic insulation and ventilation) of planning 

permission PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater Regeneration relating to the Leisure Centre 
only.

Page 207

Agenda Item 6j





Page 209





23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

6j                     COND/2020/0136                                                                      WARD: C 
 
LOCATION:   Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking 
 
PROPOSAL: Approval of details pursuant to Conditions 56 (alternative renewable 

energy technology), 57 (extract and ventilation equipment) and 58 
(acoustic insulation and ventilation) of planning permission 
PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater Regeneration relating to the 
Leisure Centre only. 

 
APPLICANT:  Pellikaan Construction                           OFFICER: Joanne Hollingdale

    

 

 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE  
 
Although the applicant is the contractor for the Leisure Centre phase of the Sheerwater 
Regeneration, legal advice is that this conditions application falls outside the Scheme of 
Delegation and thus such applications are required to be determined by the Planning 
Committee.     
 
SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

 
This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Conditions 56 (alternative 
renewable energy technology), 57 (extract and ventilation equipment) and 58 (acoustic 
insulation and ventilation) of planning permission PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater 
Regeneration relating to the Leisure Centre only.   
 
PLANNING STATUS  
 

 Urban Area 

 Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km) 

 Priority Place  

 Flood Zone 1 and 2 (some areas) 

 Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area & SSSI 

 Urban Open Space 

 Local Centre  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE details submitted. 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
This conditions application relates to the Leisure Centre phase of the Sheerwater 
Regeneration. This phase relates to the Leisure Centre which is almost complete and is 
located within the grounds of Bishop David Brown School.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The most relevant planning history for this application is as follows:  
 
PLAN/2018/0374 - Section 73 application to remove Condition 26 (bund), to vary Condition 4 

(approved plans insofar as they relate to the Leisure Centre and sports pitches), Condition 23 (phase 
1b playing fields timeline), to submit details to satisfy Condition 21 (on/off-site drainage works), 

Page 211



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

Condition 27 (drainage details for phase 1a(i)), Condition 28 (drainage details for phase 1a(ii)), 
Condition 29 (drainage details for phase 1a(iii)), Condition 30 (drainage details for phase 1b), 
Condition 52 (external materials for Leisure Centre), Condition 53 (details of finished floor levels for 
Leisure Centre), Condition 54 (sustainability - substitution of combined heat and power plant with a 
ground source heat pump) and amendments to wording of Condition 36 (phase 1c details of front 
boundary enclosures), Condition 38 (phase 1c biodiversity enhancement measures), Condition 43 
(phase 1c external materials), Condition 45 (phase 1c details of bin storage areas), Condition 46 
(phase 1c details of photovoltaic panels), Condition 47 (phase 1c sustainability measures), Condition 
49 (protection of residential properties from noise), Condition 51 (phase 1c details of play area/trim 
trail delivery) to alter the timing for the submission of details for approval, of planning permission 
PLAN/2015/1260 for the redevelopment of the Sheerwater Estate. Permitted 18.04.2019 subject to a 
S106 Legal Agreement and Executive Obligations.  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Conditions 56 (alternative 
renewable energy technology), 57 (extract and ventilation equipment) and 58 (acoustic 
insulation and ventilation) of planning permission PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater 
Regeneration relating to the Leisure Centre only.   
 
Condition 56 – (alternative renewable energy technology) 
As part of the planning application a ground source heat pump was proposed under the 
sports pitches. However due to the extent of the surface water drainage system under the 
pitches, air source heat pumps (ASHPs) and photovoltaic panels (PV) are now proposed.  
 
Details of the ASHPs have been provided and in terms of noise they have also been 
included in the noise assessment report provided for Condition 58 below and Condition 89 
(fixed plant) (COND/2019/0185).  
 
Condition 57 – (extract and ventilation equipment)   
This condition relates to the extract and ventilation equipment associated with the kitchen 
facilities in the building and plans and details of the proposed equipment are provided.  
 
Condition 58 – (acoustic insulation and ventilation) 
This condition relates to the acoustic insulation and ventilation of the leisure centre building 
relating to noise breakout. An assessment of noise is provided in the revised noise report 
‘Discharge of Acoustic Planning Conditions’. An Acoustic Design Review report has also 
been submitted.   
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
WBC Environmental Health Officer: The additional information regarding Conditions 56 
and 57 is noted. Activity noise is expected to have a low impact as measured at the nearest 
residential receptors based on the assumed activity noise levels as set out in the report, 
although it does not provide an indication of likely noise levels in the immediate vicinity of 
the leisure centre. The report notes that if the internal noise activity in the proposed spaces 
are expected to operate above the assumed levels then a further assessment would be 
required and noise limiters may be necessary to keep music at a certain level. There are no 
further concerns to raise on environmental health grounds.  
 
Following the receipt of a revised noise assessment report the Environmental Health 
officer has advised that: Based on the conclusions of the revised Acoustic report, which 
takes into account night time noise and states there is no tonal noise equipment, there is no 
objection to the discharge of Conditions 58 and 89.    
 
REPRESENTATIONS 

Page 212



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
As this application seeks approval of details pursuant to a condition on a planning 
permission, there is no statutory requirement for neighbour notification.   
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES 
 
Woking Core Strategy 2012 
CS21 – Design 
CS22 – Sustainable construction  
 
DM Policies DPD 
DM5 – Environmental Pollution  
DM7 – Noise and Light Pollution  
 
PLANNING ISSUES 
 
1. The only issue to consider is whether the details submitted are considered acceptable to 

comply with the requirements of Conditions 56, 57 and 58.  
 
Condition 56 – (alternative renewable energy technology) 
 
2. As part of the planning application, PLAN/2018/0374, a ground source heat pump was 

proposed under the sports pitches to provide the renewable energy technology for the 
leisure centre. However due to the extent of the surface water drainage system, 2no. air 
source heat pumps and photovoltaic panels (PV) are now proposed. The ASHPs will be 
located within the external plant room and the PV panels will be located on the roof of 
the leisure centre building.  
 

3. The submitted noise report in relation to Condition 58 below and also Condition 89 (fixed 
plant) (COND/2019/0185) includes the consideration of the ASHPs in terms of noise 
impact. It is noteworthy that in terms of noise the revised noise report concludes that the 
proposed plant would result in a low impact to the nearest noise sensitive residential 
receptors.  

 
4. Policy CS22 of the Woking Core Strategy requires developments such as leisure 

centres to reduce the total carbon emissions from the development by 10%. In this 
particular case the use of ASHPs and PVs would result in a 20% reduction in carbon 
emissions, thus significantly exceeding the policy requirements. The proposed 
alternative renewable energy technology in accordance with the submitted details is 
therefore considered to be acceptable and would comply with the requirements of the 
condition.  

 
Condition 57 – (extract and ventilation equipment)   
 
5. The leisure centre building includes a kitchen and dining room area which are for the 

sole use of Bishop David Brown School and also two other small servery/café areas 
internal to the leisure centre building. Details of the filters, ventilation systems and a roof 
plan showing the flues, have been provided with the application. The submitted details 
have been reviewed by the Council’s Environmental Health Officer and no objections or 
concerns have been raised to the details submitted. The submitted details are therefore 
considered to comply with the requirements of the condition.      

 
Condition 58 – (acoustic insulation and ventilation) 
 

Page 213



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

6. A revised noise report has been submitted in relation to this condition and assesses the 
predicted noise levels from the likely internal activity within the leisure centre building. 
For completeness the revised noise report also includes the noise assessment for the 
plant/equipment (Condition 89) which also includes the ASHP units. The revised Plant 
Noise Impact Assessment report identifies the nearest noise-sensitive residential 
receptors as being Devonshire Avenue and the future development in the vicinity of 
Loder Close. 
 

7. The revised noise report advises that the lowest typical measured background noise 
level is 41dB for the period covering the opening hours of the leisure centre (06:30-
22:30 hours). The proposed plant noise is assessed in the report including proposed 
mitigation measures i.e. attenuators for air intake and exhausts. The report advises that 
with the mitigation measures the predicted noise levels from the proposed plant at the 
nearest noise sensitive residential receptors is 36dB which is 5dB below the background 
sound level indicating a low impact. Only the gas fired heating boilers to maintain 
temperature for the pool hall ventilation and pool water will be run overnight and the 
boilers are located internally in the main first floor plant room. The swimming pool air 
handling unit will also run overnight in night-time setback mode at reduced air volume 
and the fresh air and exhaust air ductwork incorporate attenuators. The revised report 
has assessed the night time noise from this plant and advised that it would be 3dB 
below the typical background noise level between 22:30 and 06:30 hours (34dB). The 
revised noise report concludes that the plant noise would have a low impact at the 
residential receptors.    

 
8. Based on the assumed internal activity noise levels within the building and the building 

envelope constructions as detailed in the submitted Acoustic Design Review report, the 
predicted noise levels would be around 10-11dB below the background noise level. The 
applicant has advised that the building has been constructed in accordance with the 
details in the Acoustic Design Review report. A note to the applicant is included within 
the recommendation relating to the assumed internal activities.    

 
9. The revised noise report advises that the cumulative noise impact of plant noise and 

internal noise breakout are not normally summed together because the standards by 
which they are assessed are not applicable to the other noise type. Nonetheless for 
comparison purposes the noise levels have been summed and the predicted combined 
noise level at the nearest noise sensitive receptors would be 37dB. This would be 4dB 
below the background noise level and therefore a low cumulative impact is expected at 
the nearest residential receptors which is considered to be acceptable. Having regard to 
the submitted information the Council’s Environmental Health Officer raises no objection 
to the approval of the submitted details.   
 

CONCLUSION 
 
10. The details submitted are considered acceptable and would meet the requirements of 

Conditions 56, 57 and 58. The submitted details are also considered to comply with 
Policy CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012, Policies DM5 and DM7 of the DM 
Policies DPD 2016 and the NPPF. The details submitted are therefore recommended for 
approval as noted in the recommendation below.  
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
File - COND/2020/0136  
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Page 214



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
It is recommended that details submitted are APPROVED as follows: 
 
Condition 56 – (alternative renewable energy technology) 
 
Details approved:  

- Roof Plan (Roof Services Layout) by DiS (Drawing no. M/19/12/0074/BW1 Rev D) 
received on 26.11.2020; 

- Roof Plan by Pozzoni (Drawing no. P4235_02_2002 Rev C4) insofar as it shows the 
position of the PV panels received on 12.01.2021;  

- Leisure Centre Building Emissions Note by DiS received on 26.11.2020; 
- Plan of ASHP by Lochinvar (Drawing no. SCDI.50002 Rev A) received on 26.11.2020; 
- Technical Submission of ASHP by Lochinvar received on 26.11.2020; 
- Thermal Comfort Report by Stroma (Ref: 08-19-79100 TC1) received on 26.11.2020 

(Note: Except for the open times which are incorrectly noted in this report and are to 
be in accordance with Condition 113); 

- Agent’s cover note of details for submission received on 26.11.2020;  
- Revised Discharge of Acoustic Planning Conditions Noise Assessment Report by 

MLM Group (Ref: 103331-MLM-ZZ-XX-RP-YA-0002 Revision C04 dated 
25.01.2021) received on 26.01.2021;and  

- Details contained in agent’s email dated 11.01.2021. 
 
Condition 57 – (extract and ventilation equipment)   
 
Details approved:  

- Details contained in agent’s email received on 16.11.2020 (email dated 13.11.2020); 
- Airguard Type 2 Baffle Filter technical details received on 16.11.2020; 
- Kitchen Ventilation details received on 16.11.2020; 
- Technical Details – Servery Areas Ventilation details by DiS Ltd received on 

16.11.2020; 
- Ventilation Flow Rate Calculations by Airedale Ventilation Services received on 

16.11.2020;  
- Plan of Kitchen Ventilation Canopies (Drawing no. AVS2059 Rev B) received on 

16.11.2020;  
- Roof Plan (Roof Services Layout) by DiS (Drawing no. M/19/12/0074/BW1 Rev D) 

received on 16.11.2020; and 
- Elevations Plan by Pozzoni (Drawing no. P4235_02_0301 Rev F) received on 

28.09.2020. 
 
Condition 58 – (acoustic insulation and ventilation) 
 
Details approved:  

- Revised Discharge of Acoustic Planning Conditions Noise Assessment Report by 
MLM Group (Ref: 103331-MLM-ZZ-XX-RP-YA-0002 Revision C04 dated 
25.01.2021) received on 26.01.2021; 

- Roof Plan (Roof Services Layout) by DiS (Drawing no. M/19/12/0074/BW1 Rev D) 
received on 26.01.2021; 

- Acoustic Design Review by MLM Group (Ref: 103331-MLM-ZZ-XX-RP-YA-0001 
Revision C02 dated 02.09.2020) received on 11.01.2021;  

- Details contained in agent’s email dated 11.01.2021 
- Details contained in agent’s email dated 26.01.2021; 

 
Notes to applicant: Condition 58 - If the internal activity nose levels in the proposed spaces 
are expected to or operate above the assumed levels then a further assessment and 
potential mitigation will be required and will require subsequent LPA approval.   

Page 215



23 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

  

 
The applicant is advised that the development is required to be implemented in accordance 
with the approved details. 

Page 216



ITEM 6j – COND/2020/0136

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, 
Woking.

Approval of details pursuant to Conditions 56 (alternative 
renewable energy technology), 57 (extract and ventilation 
equipment) and 58 (acoustic insulation and ventilation) of 
planning permission PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater

Regeneration relating to the Leisure Centre only.

Slide 63 

P
age 217





41 Strathcona Gardens, 
Knaphill, Woking.

TREE/2021/8021

Tree Works

Page 219

Agenda Item 6k





Page 221





 

1 

 

Agenda Item No. 6K 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE –  
 
Granting consent for Tree Works Application REF. TREE/2021/8012 at 41 Strathcona Gardens, 
Knaphill, Woking, GU21 2AY 

 

Executive Summary  

The purpose of this report is to recommend to the Committee that consent for a tree works application at 
41 Strathcona Gardens, Knaphill, Woking, GU21 2AY be granted. The proposal for works is as follows – 
 
T1 Lime - Re-pollard to previous points. T2 Oak - Raise tree crown to 6 metres above ground level. 
Reduce the crown by 2-3 metres/ previous pruning points. Thin crown by 10% and remove dead wood 
 
 
Recommendations 

The Committee is requested to: 

RESOLVE that consent be granted for the Tree Works Application REF. TREE/2021/8012  

This Committee has authority to determine the above recommendations. 

Background Papers: 

1. Completed application form by the applicant 

2. Map 

 
 
Reporting Officer: 

Thomas James 
Ext. (74)3435, E Mail: Thomas. james@woking.gov.uk 
 
Contact Officer: 

Dave Frye, Arboricultural Officer 
Ext. (74)3749, E Mail dave.frye@woking.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 223



 

2 

Introduction 

A tree works application (Appendix 1) was submitted to the council on 11.01.2021 making a formal request 
to prune 1 Lime tree and 1 Oak tree.  

1.1 The plan from the application showing the location of the trees is attached at Appendix 2. 

1.2 No Objections have been received in relation to this application.  

1.3 The recommendation would be to grant consent for the works 

2.0 Background Information 

2.1 T1 and T2 are a mature lime and oak respectively. The two trees are approximately 13m in height 
and are of moderate public amenity value. The trees have normal crown vitality and have both been 
reduced in the past. The works to reduce the two trees back to previous pruning points along with 
crown thin and lift for T2 is seen as reasonable and of good practice. 

2.2 The applicant has identified that they are a council employee. 

3.0 Implications 

 Financial 

3.1 None 

 Human Resource/Training and Development 

3.2 None 

 Environmental/Sustainability 

3.3 The two trees which are the subject of this application are likely to continue making a significant 
contribution to the character and amenities of the locality for many years to come and the works 
would be of limited detriment to the trees and character of the area.  

4.0 Conclusions 

The trees are essentially healthy and are of moderate public amenity value.  The trees have been 
reduced in the past, therefore the works are seen as reasonable and of good arboricultural practice and 
would not be of significant detriment to the trees and surrounding area.   
 
REPORT ENDS 
 
 

Page 224



ITEM 6k – TREE/2021/8012

41 Strathcona Gardens, Woking.

Tree works

Slide 64 

P
age 225



– TREE/2021/8012

Slide 65 

P
age 226



– TREE/2021/8012

Slide 66 

P
age 227





SECTION C

APPLICATION REPORTS NOT TO BE 

PRESENTED BY OFFICERS UNLESS REQUESTED

 BY A MEMBER OF THE COMMITTEE

(Note:   Ordnance Survey Extracts appended to the reports are for locational 
purposes only and may not include all current developments either major or 

minor within the site or the area generally)

Page 229




	Agenda
	5 Planning and Enforcement Appeals
	6 Planning Applications
	Table of Contents

	 Section A - Applications for Public Speaking
	 Section B - Application reports to be introduced by Officers
	6a 2020/0894  Qaro, Pyrford Heath, Pyrford, Woking
	6aa Site plan
	6a 20.0894 Qaro. Pyrford Heath
	6a 20.0894 Qaro, Pyrford Heath.

	6b 2017/1307  Part of Five Acres and land to south of Brookwood Lye Road, Woking
	6ba Site plan
	6b 17.1307 Brookwood Lye Road Traveller site
	6b 17.1037 Part of Five Acres and Land To South Of Brookwood Lye Road, Woking.

	6c 2020/1037  Fairfield, Sun Hill, Hook Heath, Woking
	6ca Site plan
	6c 20.1037 Fairfield, Sun Hill, Hookheath, Woking
	6c 20.1037 Fairfield, Sun Hill, Hookheath, Woking.

	6d 2020/1136  G4S Industrial Building, Monument Way West, Woking
	6da Site plan
	6d 20.1136 Plot 2 G4S Building
	6d 20.1136 Plot 2 G4S Undustrial Building, Monument Way West, Woking.

	6e 2020/1095  23 Oriental Road, Woking
	6ea Site plan
	6e 2020.1095 23 Oriental Road
	6e 20.1095 23 Oreintal Road, Woking.

	6f COND/20/0137  Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking
	6fa Site plan
	6f 20.0137 Sheerwater Red phase Condition 16 CEMP
	6f 20.0137 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking.

	6g COND/20/0139  Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking
	6ga Site plan
	6g 20.0139 Sheerwater Red phase Condition 17 CTMP
	6g 20.0139 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking

	6h COND/20/0169  Land At Bishop David Brown School, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking
	6ha Site plan
	6h 20.0169 Sheerwater Leisure Conditions 29, 67, 84, 85, 86
	6h 20.0169 Land At Bishop David Brown, Albert Drive, Woking.

	6i COND/19/0185  Land At Bishop David Brown School, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking
	6ia Site plan
	6i 19.0185 Sheerwater Leisure Conditions 89 Fixed plant
	6i 19.0185 Land At Bishop David Brown School, Albert Drive, Woking.

	6j COND/20/0136  Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking
	6ja Site plan
	6j 20.0136 Sheerwater Leisure Conditions 56, 57 and 58
	6j 20.0136 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking.

	6k TREE/2021/8012  41 Strathcona Gardens, Knaphill, Woking
	6ka Site plan
	6k TREE.2021.8012  41 Strathcona Gardens
	6k 21.8012 41 Strathcona Gardens, Woking.

	 Section C - Application Reports not to be introduced by officers unless requested by a Member of the Committee

